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FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Statements in this Form 10-K (or otherwise madédddlue or on JetBlue’s behalf) contain variousviinddooking statements within tt
meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 398 amended, or the Securities Act, and Secfi@a? the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, which reptesir managemestbeliefs and assumptions concerning future evévit@n used in thi
document and in documents incorporated herein feyeece, the words “expects,” “plans,” “anticipatémdicates,” “believes,” “forecast,”
“guidance,” “outlook,” “may,” “will,” “should,” “seeks,” “targets” and similar expressions are intehtteidentify forward-looking statements.
Forward-looking statements involve risks, uncettasiand assumptions, and are based on informetioantly available to us. Actual results
may differ materially from those expressed in theviard-looking statements due to many factorspiticlg, without limitation, our extremely
competitive industry; increases and volatility iref prices, increases in maintenance costs ankgtteates; our ability to implement our gro
strategy; our significant fixed obligations and staimtial indebtedness; our ability to attract agtdin qualified personnel and maintain our
culture as we grow; our reliance on high daily miftutilization; our dependence on the New Yorkmogolitan market and the effect of
increased congestion in this market; our reliantawtomated systems and technology; our being ctulgi@otential unionization, work
stoppages, slowdowns or increased labor costgetiance on a limited number of suppliers; our pre® in some international emerging
markets that may experience political or econométability or may subject us to legal risk; repiataal and business risk from information
security breaches; a negative impact on the Jettaed; the long term nature of our fleet orderihahanges in or additional government
rules, regulations or laws; changes in our indudtrg to other airlines’ financial condition; thepgatt on our growth because of economic
difficulties in Europe through a continuance of g@nomic recessionary conditions in the U.S. further economic downturn leading to a
continuing or accelerated decrease in demand fmedtic and business air travel; and external géag@dlevents and conditions. It is routine
for our internal projections and expectations targe as the year or each quarter in the year meggeand therefore it should be clearly
understood that the internal projections, beligig assumptions upon which we base our expectatiayschange prior to the end of each
quarter or year. Although these expectations maygé, we may not inform you if they do.

You should understand that many important faciaraddition to those discussed or incorporateddbgrence in this report, could cause
our results to differ materially from those expegbsn the forward-looking statements. Potentiatdescthat could affect our results include, in
addition to others not described in this repomsthdescribed in Item 1A of this report under “Riflelated to JetBlue” and “Risks Associated
with the Airline Industry.” In light of these riskend uncertainties, the forward-looking eventswised in this report might not occur.




ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

JetBlue Airways Corporation is a passenger aitim@wvn as much for its award-winning customer serénd free TV as for its
competitive fares. JetBlue believes it offers iistomers the best main cabin experience in maitkstsves with a strong core product and
reasonably priced optional upgrades. JetBlue opeaimarily on point-to-point routes with its ftesf 127 Airbus A320 aircraft and 53
EMBRAER 190 aircraft — one of the youngest and nfost-efficient fleet of any major U.S. airline. A$ December 31, 2012 , we served 75
destinations in 23 states, Puerto Rico, the U.gjiWislands, Mexico and 12 countries in the Cagdaband Latin America. JetBlue is New
York’s Hometown Airline. Most of our flights have an origin or destination one of our six focugesit New York, Boston, Fort Lauderdale,
Los Angeles (Long Beach), Orlando and San JuantéRéco. By the end of 2012 , we operated an ayeecd 750 daily flights. For the year
ended December 31, 2012 , JetBlue was the sixglesapassenger carrier in the United States baseglvenue passenger miles as reported b
these passenger airlines. As used in this Form lie<terms “JetBlue”, “we”, “us”, “our” and similderms refer to JetBlue Airways
Corporation and its subsidiaries, unless the cambebcates otherwise.

JetBlue was incorporated in Delaware in August 188 commenced service February 11, 2000. Ouripghexecutive offices are
located at 27-01 Queens Plaza North, Long Islamyl Qiew York 11101 and our telephone number is Y2B%-7900.

Where You Can Find Other Information

Our website isvww.jetblue.com Information contained on our website is not dirthis report. Information we furnish or file withe
SEC, including our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, @erdy Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports om#8+K and any amendments to or
exhibits included in these reports are availabtedfovnload, free of charge, on our website soocer &ftich reports are filed with or furnished to
the SEC. Our SEC filings, including exhibits fildgerewith, are also available at the SEC’s welsitgww.sec.gov. You may obtain and copy
any document we furnish or file with the SEC at 8t&C’s public reference room at 100 F Street, N&QrR 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549.
You may obtain information on the operation of 8&C’s public reference facilities by calling theG&t 1-800-SEC-0330. You may request
copies of these documents, upon payment of a dupligfee, by writing to the SEC at its principffiae at 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580,
Washington, D.C. 20549.




OUR HISTORY

JetBlue began operations in 2000 as a well-funtittgp, which afforded us the ability to make $iigant investments in our product
offerings, including all new aircraft equipped widather seats and LiveTV. This product investnoemibined with superior customer service
at low fares led to widespread brand recogniticth @arly success, predominantly with leisure trageile New York. By the end of 2006,
JetBlue employed over 10,000 employees (to whomefeg as Crewmembers), operated 500 daily flightk e/ fleet of 119 aircraft and
generated annual revenues exceeding $2 billiorea debt load taken on to finance this rapid egmbyvth, a wide-spread economic
recession and record high energy prices led toanasses in 2005 and 2006. It became clear thigsdte of growth, as then reflected in our
aircraft order book, if not moderated, was unsustalie. Over time, we modified our growth rate tlylothe sale and deferral of aircraft.
Additionally, we began to structure our network ameest in offerings targeted to attract a highex of business travelers, particularly in
Boston. At the same time, we allocated growth tdlib@an routes which typically mature to profit#lifaster than domestic routes. As we
complete our 18year of operations, we believe our differentiateadpict and service offering combined with our cotitpye costs enables us
to fiercely compete in high-value geography.

We are the only major U.S. airline which began afiens post-deregulation to survive into a secosxthde of operation on our own. Our
continued plans to grow organically and our futsuecess are dependent upon our ability to adegi Bverehanging environment and enha
shareholder value. We believe we are well-positicimedo so.

Our Industry and Competition

The U.S. passenger airline industry is extremedllehging, competitive and volatile. It is highlgrsitive to GDP and economic
developments. We operate in one of the most hetaslyd industries, which is extremely capital andrgy intensive. U.S. passenger airlines
are uniquely susceptible to economic downturndement weather, international events, natural tésagnd acts of terrorism. Airline returns
are sensitive to even slight changes in fuel castsrage fare levels and passenger demand. Trapalicompetitive factors in the airline
industry include fares, capacity, customer servigete networks, flight schedules, aircraft typsdety records, reputations, code-sharing and
interline relationships, in-flight entertainmenssyms and frequent flyer programs.

Since 2001, the majority of traditional networkiaies have undergone significant financial restitiay, including bankruptcies, merge
and consolidations. These processes typically résal lower cost structure through reduction afdiacosts, restructuring of commitments
(including debt terms, leases and fleet), modiftcabr termination of pension plans, increased Wayde flexibility and innovative offerings.
They also provide significant opportunities to rgalroute networks, alliances and frequent fliexggams.

Historically, capacity and pricing actions takendiglines have had a significant influence on iriduprofitability. Beginning in 2008,
most traditional network airlines began to reduapacity growth in response to weak economic camulitiand high fuel costs. This industry
wide capacity discipline has continued throughdit2 We believe it will continue through 2013.

Price competition occurs through price discountfiage matching, targeted sale promotions, ancillaeyadditions and frequent flyer
travel initiatives. All of these measures are ugualatched by other airlines in order to maintdiait competitive position. Our ability to meet
this price competition depends on, among othegthipur ability to operate at costs equal to ordiothhan our competitors.

THE JETBLUE EXPERIENCE AND STRATEGY

We strive to offer our customers a distinctiverilyiexperience, referred to as the “JetBlue Expee&rby offering what we believe to be
the best domestic coach product and providing astotners high value. We believe our success isacied by our strong brand preference
and the price premium we are able to achieve thrqugduct differentiation. We also strive to maintiinancial strength and a cost structure
that enables profitable growth in the markets weeséNe are focused on delivering solid resultsofiar Crewmembers, our customers and our
shareholders.

We believe significant opportunities remain fortagrow profitably and responsibly. Unlike mostoafr competitors, who have been in
business for several decades and who are managingemetworks, we have been flying only since 2@@0wing our operations each year.
We believe further profitable growth is possibleaa®sult of our high-value network locations, tiekalow cost structure and differentiated
product. Further, the cities we serve include sofitbe largest high-value travel markets and mesisdly populated areas in the country,
including New York, Boston and Florida.

We believe our business model is unique in the dimairline industry. We are neither a low-cosliaé nor a traditional network
airline. Our profitable growth strategy enablesaisompete effectively with both types of carriers.




Low-Cost AirlinesLow-cost carriers view their service as a commoditth the belief that their customers will seleet @irline offering
the lowest fare in a given market. We are ableotoete well against low-cost airlines because waalwiew ourselves as purely a
commodity, and neither do our customers. We beliamd our historical experience reflects, our omgtis prefer a superior level of service
in-flight amenities. Further, they are willing taypa premium over a low-cost airline's product.ikinlow-cost airlines, we do not try to
maintain the lowest costs in the industry. Rather strive to achieve sustainable costs to suppofitable growth with competitive fares. This
approach results in a markedly better product tharlow-cost airlines.

Network Airlines. Network carriers rely upon vast global route rats. They generally operate a significant portbtheir flights using
at least one hub where connections are made ftdliover a spoke system. Although we do not haax@garable sized or a hub-and-spoke
network, we are able to compete effectively agaimstietwork airlines. Our route structure is basegoint-to-point flying providing greater
customer convenience. We expand our destinati@rinffs via our commercial partnerships. More imgatly, our relative costs are lower tt
those of the large network airlines. This factdéowas us to price fares competitively, while offegia differentiated coach product.

High Quality Service and Produc

Superior customer service in delivering the JetEuperience to our customers through our strongorét and awardvinning product it
core to our mission. We look to attract new custante our brand and give our current customersorea come back to us. A core elemet
our success in attracting new and retaining cuigastomers is that competitive fares and qualityravel need not be mutually exclusive.

Onboard JetBlue customers enjoy new aircraft wathmy seats and more legroom than other domesligesimprovide in their coach (al
on some, premium) service. Our in-flight entertaéminsystems include 36 channels of free Dire€T\L00 channels of free SiriusXM satellite
radio and premium movie channel offerings from lstB-eature$, our source of first run films. Our onboard offegs also include an
assortment of free and unlimited brand name snaw#everages. Additionally, customers can purchesmium beverages and food
selections and specially-tailored products for oigirt flights.

Our aircraft are all equipped with leather seata aomfortable single class layout. Our Airbus A32@raft, with 150 seats, has a wider
cabin than both the Boeing 737 and 757 aircraftatpd by many of our competitors on their domestides. Our EMBRAER 190 aircraft e¢
have 100 seats arranged in a space friendly twiwbyseating configuration and are wider than induaverage for this type of aircraft. We
offer the most legroom in the main cabin of all La8lines (based on average fleet-wide seat pitt® plan to introduce the Airbus A321 to
our fleet, with 190 seats. We expect to take defivé our first Airbus A321 during the fourth quartof 2013. The entry into service date of the
A321 will depend on the timing and successful catiph of the FAA certification process. We beligkie Airbus A321 will allow us to
operate our slot portfolio in New York more effintey, reduce unit costs and enhance the custonparince.

We believe our strong brand and the JetBlue Expegi@re key elements of our continued successhatend, we continually seek to
enhance and refine our product and service toeredtie for which people are willing to pay. Durid@12, we reconfigured our EMBRAER
190 aircraft to include an additional eight Evenrbld Space seats. We also began to offer separately Muoem™ Speed which allows
customers the option to enjoy an expedited secexiperience in most domestic JetBlue locationsingu2011, we executed an agreement:
ViaSat Inc. to develop and introduce state of thénaflight broadband connectivity technology eallKa-band. Ka-band offers more speed an
flexibility than the existing Ku-band and air-toegind technologies offered by some of our competitburing 2012, we began development
and testing of this technology; we plan to introglug-fi on our aircraft beginning in 2013.

We strive to provide a superior air travel experegrincluding communicating openly and honesthyhweiistomers about delays and
service disruptions. We introduced the JetBlue Ais/Customer Bill of Rights in 2007. This providescompensation to customers who
experience avoidable inconveniences (as well ag somavoidable circumstances), commits us to perfdrhigh service standards and hold
accountable if we do not. We are the first andently the only U.S. major airline to provide sucfuadamental benefit to customers. In 2012,
we completed 99% of our scheduled flights. Unlikestrother airlines, we have a policy of not oveiiog our flights.

Brand Strength. JetBlue is a widely recognized and respected glotzald. We believe our brand differentiates us foamcompetitors
and identifies us as a safe, reliable, high valdme. Our brand has evolved into an important satliable asset. Similarly, we believe
customer awareness of our brand has contributdtbtsuccess of our marketing efforts. It enable® ygomote ourselves as a preferred
marketing partner with companies across many diffeindustries. In 2012, we once again receivedrs¢prestigious awards, including being
voted “Highest in Airline Customer Satisfaction amgd_.ow-Cost Carriers” by J.D. Power and Associ&eshe eighth consecutive year.

Our customers have repeatedly indicated the JetBlperience is an important reason why they chagsaver other airlines. We belie
our high satisfaction rating serves as evidencecostomers value what we have to offer. We measute




monitor our customer feedback regularly to achi@ygimary goal of continuously improving customatisfaction. One way we do so is by
measuring our net promoter score, or NPS. Thisimistused by many industries to gauge customeer@pce. Our internal measurement
shows improvements in our NPS score from 2011 i®28nd we are focused on being an industry leadbis metric. Many of the leading
brands consumers are most familiar with receivd N&S scores and are recognized for great custeaneice. We believe a higher NPS score
leads to higher customer loyalty which resultsicréased revenue.

Marketing and Distribution

We market our services through advertising and ptams in various media forms including using irasiagly popular social media
outlets. We engage in large multi-market programesy local events and sponsorships as well as eotalketing programs. Our targeted
public and community relations efforts reflect c@ammitment to the communities we serve, as wefiramoting brand awareness and
complementing our strong reputation.

Our primary and preferred distribution channehi®tigh our websiteyww.jetblue.com our lowest cost channel. We re-designed our
website in 2012 to ensure our customers contintrave as pleasant an experience booking theirlteavihiey do in the air. Our participation
global distribution systems, or GDSs, supportsprofitable growth in the corporate market. We fihdt business customers are more likely tc
book through a travel agency or a booking produtttvrely on a GDS platform. Although the cost alles through this channel is higher than
through our website, the average fare purchaseddghrthe GDSs is generally higher and often cotrersncreased distribution costs. We
currently participate in several major GDSs andrmantravel agents, or OTAs. In 2012, we launchetita@pplications for both Apple and
Android devices designed to enhance our custorimavgl experience. These applications have rolmadgtifes, including real-time flight
information updates. Because the majority of owta@mers book travel on our website, we maintaiatiedly low distribution costs despite
increases in recent years in our participation d8&nd OTA.

We sell vacation packages through JetBlue GetaWagsone-stop, valupriced vacation website and service designed td mesgomer:
demand for self-directed packaged travel plannietBlue Getaways packages offer competitive fares for air traveleiBlue, along with a
selection of JetBlueecommended hotels and resorts, car rentals ardtainhs. We also offer a la carte hotel and catataeservations throug
our website which generates ancillary service raesn

Route Network. We believe knowing our customers and understgnithe purpose of their travel helps optimize ihedions, strengthen
our route schedules and increase unit revenuetoridally, we have been a strong leisure focusdiheiresulting in high seasonality in our
business. In recent years, in order to offsetdb#sonality, we have increased our relevance tbubi@ess customer, particularly in Boston.
Additionally, we have continued profitable growththe Latin America and Caribbean region, with & ofileisure and visiting friends and
relatives, or VFR, travelers. VFR travelers tenth¢cslightly less seasonal and less susceptildednomic downturns than traditional leisure
destination travelers. We have also expanded atifiofio of strategic commercial partnerships, whggmerate incremental customers
throughout our network and help to increase loatbfaduring our off-peak travel periods. We areufsmd on continuing to grow our network
and further reducing our seasonality by targetieqyy customers in the leisure, business and VFR a@asoperations primarily consist of
transporting passengers on our aircraft. Domest® bperations, including Puerto Rico, accounte@f#96 of our capacity in 2012 . The
historic distribution of our available seat miles capacity, by region is:

Year Ended December 31,

Capacity Distribution 2012 2011 2010
East Coast — Western U.S. 32.1% 32.4% 34.5%
Northeast — Florida 30.¢€ 32.2 31.4
Medium — haul 2.€ 3.2 8.8
Short — haul 7.2 7.t 7.€
Caribbean, including Puerto Rico 27.2 24.7 23.2
Total 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%

As of December 31, 2012 , we provided service tdg&inations in 23 states, Puerto Rico, the UiiVIslands, Mexico, and 12
countries in the Caribbean and Latin America. I162Z0ve commenced service to five diverse new datsins, including Dallas/Fort Worth,
Texas and Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands. We alsoeddservice tactically across our system, wharertarkets were not performing
adequately. In 2013, we intend to begin serviddédfollowing destinations:
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Service Scheduled to

Destination Commence
Charleston, South Carolina February 2013
Albuquerque, New Mexico April 2013
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania May 2013
Medellin, Colombia June 2013

In considering new markets, we generally focusitree underserved markets or those with high avefages. As a part of this process,
we analyze publicly available data from the Departof Transportation, or DOT, showing the histakicumber of passengers, capacity and
average fares over time. Using this data, combividdour knowledge and experience about how contpanaarkets have reacted in the past
to capacity changes, we forecast the expected téwi#mand that may result from our introductiorsefvice and lower prices. We also
consider the anticipated response of existingnaisliin the particular market. When deciding upah@mtering new markets, we analyze the
uniqueness of each market and design our operdtdasget the customer base which will allow usdmpete effectively and grow profitably.
For example, in the Caribbean our operations danegpily targeted on the leisure traveler, whereaBaston, we are focused on both the
business traveler and the leisure traveler.

These forecast techniques are designed to portnay we expect the market to produce upon matuifiy. measure maturity of a market
based upon cash break-even and profitability. Wesicker, among other things, the level of investnvembelieve may be required to reach a
steady state of performance in a given market. Eaate analysis is unique for many reasons incigidt not limited to, geography,
demographics, competitive dynamics and our exigting in the market. Generally, a business maake&tst two to three years to fully mature.
High leisure Caribbean markets, however, have inescases, matured in as little as six months. @uobjective is to achieve a sustainable
growth rate by offsetting the investment in new ke#s with the cash and profits generated from neatarkets.

Commercial Partnerships. Airlines frequently participate in marketindi@hces which, among other things, generally previm code-
sharing, frequent flyer program reciprocity, cooated flight schedules and other joint marketintivéies. Our commercial agreements
typically begin as an interline agreement, whidbva$ a customer to book one ticket with itinerag@smultiple airlines. As we expand our
portfolio of commercial partnerships, we have alsepened the relationship with some of our exigtagners from a basic interline agreen
to include a code-share element in which one aitilaces its name and flight number on flights afest by another airline. The benefits of
broad networks potentially attract more customadsexpand our growing network. We currently papite in several commercial
partnerships, primarily interline agreements, afitloentinue to seek additional strategic opportiasi as they arise. We believe our comme
partnerships allow us to leverage our strong netvaod drive incremental traffic and revenue whilgroving our off-peak periods.

Our commercial partnerships, of which there areenily 22, are structured with gateways primartiiNaw York’s JFK and Boston'’s
Logan International Airport. These arrangementaihternational travelers, whom we do not otheengsrve, to easily access many of our
key domestic and Caribbean routes. Our partnelsdaanany notable international carriers. We plarcontinuing to add commercial partners
throughout 2013.

Customer Loyalty Program. TrueBlue is an online program designed to relveanrd recognize our most loyal customers. The pragr
offers incentives to increase membéravel on JetBlue. TrueBlue members earn pointedapon the amount paid for JetBlue flights. Mer
accounts accumulate points which do not expir®@iag &s new flight points are earned at least ameeli2-month period. Redemption of points
for a one-way flight can begin once a member adtamfew as 5,000 points. The program has no ldatklates or seat restrictions and any
JetBlue destination can be booked if the membeehasgh points to exchange for the value of an cgah

There were approximately 753,000 travel segmeatsrflduring 2012 . TrueBlue award miles flown représapproximately 3% of our
total revenue passenger miles.

In 2012, we introduced a new badge of TrueBlueoformost loyal customers called Mosaic. In ordegualify for Mosaic status,
TrueBlue members must either (1) fly a minimum 0ftiBnes with JetBlue and acquire at least 12,06 lfigght points within a calendar year;
or (2) accumulate 15,000 base flight points withicalendar year. Mosaic customers enjoy benefitading free EvenMoré" Speed, early
boarding, access to a dedicated Customer serviealiailable 24 hours a day/7days a week, a fremndebag checked and free EvenMbBte
Space seat upgrades.

We have an agreement with American Express undmtwhissues JetBlue co-branded American Expresditccards, allowing
cardmembers to earn TrueBlue points. We have aagepagreement with American Express allowing amefican Express cardholder to
convert their Membership Rewards points into TrweBboints. Additionally, we have agreements with




other loyalty partners, including hotels and caitaécompanies, allowing their customers to eaueBtue points through participation in the
partners’ programs. We intend to develop and puosiver loyalty partnerships in the future.

In 2012, we launched an international co-brandgdlitg credit card jointly with Banco Santander RadRico and Mastercard. This new
Santander JetBlue Mastercard allows our customédPsierto Rico - where we are the largest cariilee -ability to take full advantage of our
TrueBlue loyalty program.

Our Cost Structure and Operations

Our cost structure has allowed us to price fare®idhan many of our larger competitors while dffgran award-winning product and
service. Our network initiatives and growth plaeguire a low cost platform. Maintaining a low cesucture relative to our competitors is
fundamental to our sustainable growth and profiitgbiFor the year ended December 31, 2012 , ost per available seat mile, excluding fuel,
of 6.99 cents is among the lowest reported bythkromajor U.S. airlines. However, as our fleet mumtkforce age, it is increasingly difficult
maintain this marginal advantage relative to ounpetitors. There are several contributing factorsur cost advantage, including high aircraft
utilization, new and efficient aircraft, limitedegt types, relatively low distribution costs, angraductive workforce.

We are continually focused on maintaining a cosaathge relative to our competitors while offerafigh-quality product and service
our customers value. We believe in making investsigrat will deliver future benefits, preserve taw cost advantage and drive efficiency.
Examples of such investments include sharklete@iorA320 aircraft to increase fuel efficiency and oonstruction of an international arrival
facility at Terminal 5 in New York to streamline ronternational operations.

Infrastructure

Unlike many network carriers operating under a hnld-spoke system, our point-to-point system iddhedation of our operation. The
majority of our routes are served by at least dreuo six focus cities. This structure allows ufiiimize costs and generate a revenue
premium in certain markets as we are able to acamiate customers' preference for non-stop itinesabering 2012 and 2011, approximately
90% of our customers flew on non-stop itineraries.

A vast majority of our operations are centeredrid around the northeast corridor of the UnitedeStancompassing some of the most
populated airspace in the world. Operating in tioisgested airspace, however, makes us suscetibézttiin operational constraints, includ
the increased susceptibility of prolonged recotangs stemming from weather events. We are conftinuerking on ways to increase our
overall operational efficiencies, including investiin technology and more robust operational systé&uring 2012, we made several impor
technological advancements. In particular, we veaneng the industry leaders in the efforts towanagi€menting the Next Generation Air
Transportation System, or NextGen. By DecembefB812, through a government funded program, we Qagped 35 of our Airbus A320
aircraft with ADS-B Out. ADS-B Out is a satelliteded technology aimed to facilitate the commuricatietween pilots and air traffic
controllers thereby improving safety and operati@&iticiency in this busy airspace. We expect tgihenitial testing in 2013. We anticipate
that when the technology is in place, average flighes will be reduced. Additionally, in 2012, Wwecame the first FAA certified Airbus A320
carrier in the United States to use satellite-b&melial Required Navigation Performance AuthoidraRequired, or RNP AR, approaches at
two of JFK's prime and most used runways, 13L &Rl IGiven our significant presence in JFK, we heithe unique procedures associated
with this technology will provide for shorter fligtimes and reduced greenhouse emissions.

The highest concentration of our network and irnfracture is in the New York metropolitan area, Bosand the Caribbean & Latin
America region.

* New York Metropolitan Area We are New York's Hometown Airlin& Since 2000, the majority of our operations havginsted
in New York City, the nation's largest travel markad the largest U.S. point of entry from inteioraal locations. We are the largest
domestic airline at New York's John F. Kennedyrma¢gional Airport, or JFK, as measured by passenged, by the end of 2012, our
domestic operations at JFK accounted for nearly 4084 domestic passengers at this airport. Intaadto JFK, we serve Newark,
NJ's Liberty International Airport, New York's La@uia Airport, Newburgh, NY's Stewart Internatiodadport and White Plains
NY's Westchester County Airport. We are the leadiagier in number of flights flown per day betwaba New York metropolita
area and Florida. JFK is New York's largest airpwith an infrastructure including four runwaysida facilities and a direct light-rail
connection to the New York City subway system dreltong Island Rail Road. In 2012, we began coostm of T5i, an
international arrivals facility, which will exparaur current Terminal 5, or T5, footprint. We bekethe new space will enable us to
increase efficiencies, provide savings and stre@dur operations and the overall customer expegien

* Boston. We are the largest carrier in terms of flighitsl seats offered at Boston's Logan Internatioivgloft, or Boston.
Additionally, we serve twice as many non-stop degitons from Boston than any other airline. By ¢ne of




2012, our domestic operations accounted for mae #90% of all domestic flights at this airport. \étinue to capitalize on
opportunities in the changing competitive landsdayadding routes and frequencies and increasingetevance to local travelers,
including corporate travelers. These actions hasalted in significant growth for us over the pghsee years. During 2012, we
continued to invest in our Boston infrastructurelirling opening a new hangar to accommodate owviggooperations. We intend to
continue to grow to 150 flights per day from appnoately 110 flights per day currently.

« Caribbean and Latin America. A main driver of the growth of our route neti@ince 2008 has been through the addition of new
destinations in the Caribbean and Latin AmericasEhmarkets have historically matured more quitkbgrms of cash break-even
and profitability than mainland flights of compalablistances. As of December 31, 2012, approxim&el of our capacity was in
the Caribbean and Latin America. We expect thislmemto continue to grow as we continue to seizeodppities. VFR traffic
strongly complements leisure travel in the Carilbessgion allowing for our profitable growth and sess in this area of our network.
Additionally, competitive landscape changes in $aan, Puerto Rico have allowed us to increase rsepce there. We continue to
invest in our Caribbean operations, including idtroing new intra-Caribbean service out of PuermRWe are the largest airline in
terms of capacity serving all of Puerto Rico. Dgr2012, we relocated to an all new terminal in $&m to accommodate our
continued growth. We currently serve approxima8iylights per day in San Juan and plan to conttowgrow our operations to 50
flights per day. During 2012, we began offeringvims to and from our sixth destination in the Doiwém Republic, where we are also
the largest airline in terms of capacity. While @&ribbean and Latin American region is a growiag pf our network, operating in
some of these developing countries can presenatipeal challenges, including working with less dieyped airport authorities,
political instability and increased civil disturlgs.

Fleet

High aircraft utilization. By scheduling and operating our aircraft efficly we are able to spread our fixed costs ovgreater numbe
of flights and available seat miles. For the yeatezl December 31, 2012, our aircraft operated arage of 11.8 hours per day which we
believe is among the highest of all major U.Sim@d. Our airport operations allow us to scheduteaircraft with minimum ground time. We
offer a significant percentage of overnight "ree&flights, which due to the limited ground timeepents us with maintenance challenges.

Aircraft reliability and efficiency. We currently operate only two aircraft types, tHebAs A320 and the EMBRAER 190. Reliability
and durability of our fleet is essential to our @gi®Nns running smoothly, and is critical to deling a superior experience for our customers.
The average age of our fleet is 6.7 years, whiclb&lieve is one of the youngest of any major Uiina. Operating a younger fleet and
incorporating the latest technologies results inaitcraft being more efficient and dependable tblaer aircraft. We have the world's largest
fleet of Airbus A320 aircraft. Of the large AirbA820 operators in North America, we have amongost dispatch reliability. We are
continually working internally and with our airctaind engine manufacturers to enhance our religlitid efficiency metrics. Beginning in
2018, we expect to take delivery of 40 A320 newirm@ption, or A320neo, aircraft, which incorporatesvolutionary engine design expected
to increase fuel efficiency by up to 16% comparethe current A320 design. Beginning in 2013, wangb equip our Airbus aircraft with
curved extensions to the wings designed to progidater and cleaner aerodynamic lift, or sharklats.expect the sharklets will produce be
fuel efficiency for the aircraft, with up to threercent less fuel burn on long-haul flights, pravigfor fuel savings and range flexibility. We
expect to have 12 A320 aircraft equipped with sledskby the end of 2013.

Labor

Productive workforce. Our Crewmember efficiency results from flexible grdductive work rules resulting from the direct
relationship between JetBlue and its highly enga@emivmembers. We firmly believe maintaining theedirrelationship with our
Crewmembers is core to the JetBlue Culture we bailesince we began operations in 2000. We bel@wenon-union workforce allows us
increased flexibility, which in turn allows us tdapt more quickly in a changing environment. Ourtowed profitable growth is dependent
upon this ability to quickly adapt. Our pilots ammong the most productive in the U.S. passeng@raindustry, ranking second in average
annual block hours per pilot. We also effectivedg part-time Crewmembers and automate tasks thitbiegise of technology to gain
efficiencies. We are cognizant of the competitiongroductive labor in key industry positions. Afilainally, new government rules requiring
higher qualifications are predicted to result ingodial labor shortages in the upcoming years. @iginoongoing collaboration with peer-elected
frontline Crewmembers from our internal major wgrkups (which we refer to as Values Committees)emgire we have the input necessary
to help us manage and run the business in the pnoductive and efficient way. We continue to wolisely with our Crewmembers and
Values Committees to ensure our Crewmembers reemgjaged and productive.




Culture

We believe one of our competitive strengths issmivice-oriented culture. Our culture places vaipen and stresses the importance of
providing high quality customer service. We believe highly productive, engaged workforce allowsaikeep our costs low and, ultimately,
achieve our financial goals. Our success dependaippeople and their capabilities, individuallydazollectively, delivering the best customer
service experience while living our five key valudsafety, caring, integrity, passion and fun. $theve to select, train and maintain a flexible
and diverse workforce of caring, passionate, fuhfaiendly people who want to provide our customgith the best experience possible.
Further, our historical experience, as confirmecdbsnerous surveys, reveals customer satisfactidrifanlikelihood of returning customers is
highly correlated with and can be directly linkedetxperiences with engaged Crewmembers.

Our ability to continue to hire, retain, and deyefeople who fit within our Culture and are comedtto delivering the JetBlue
Experience to our customers is a key componenttotaining our valuable brand. Our culture is firgtoduced to all new Crewmembers
through a screening process and an extensive atiemtprogram which emphasizes the importance stiocner service, productivity and cost
control. We reinforce the importance of this cutiy providing continuous training for our Crewmeard) including technical training, a
specialized Captain training program unique initftistry, a leadership program, training focusednensafety value and front line training for
our customer service teams. Our emphasis on tdélopment enables us and our Crewmembers todiegitally aligned and has resultes
a high rate of internal growth opportunities for @rewmembers.

None of our Crewmembers are currently unionized.baleeve a direct relationship between JetBlue @rembers and its leaders — not
third-party representation — is in the best intesre$ our Crewmembers, customers and sharehoMérnter into individual employment
agreements with each of our Federal Aviation Adsimation, or FAA, licensed Crewmembers, which csinsf pilots, dispatchers, technicians
and inspectors as well as air traffic controllfiisese agreements are intended to drive higherd@feingagement and alignment with the
Company’s strategy, culture of customer servicearatall financial success. Each employment agreéidor a term of five years and
renews for an additional five-year term unless@nhewmember is terminated for cause or the Crewmemilbets not to renew. Pursuant to
these agreements, these Crewmembers can onlyrbi@ased for cause. In the event of a downturn inbusiness calling for a reduction in
flying and related work hours, we are obligategay these Crewmembers a guaranteed level of inemmé¢o continue their benefits. In
addition, we provide what we believe to be indu$tigding job protection language in these agreesnarthe event of a merger or acquisition
as well as the establishment of a legal defense tiimuse in connection with seniority integraticgrgatiations.

Our leadership team strives to communicate on alaetpasis with all JetBlue Crewmembers in ordantintain a direct relationship
with and keep all Crewmembers informed about negsjlts and challenges affecting the airline. Effecand frequent communication
throughout the organization is fostered throughousr means, including email messages from our GitDother senior leaders at least weekly
employee engagement surveys, a quarterly digitgbaiae, active leadership participation in new biientations and periodic open forum
meetings across our network, called “pocket sesgiovhich are often videotaped and posted on our ietrdBy soliciting feedback for ways
improve our service, teamwork and work environmeunt,leadership team strives to keep Crewmembeyagad, make our business decisions
transparent and find cost and revenue improventkatsare best recognized by Crewmembers closésétactivity.

Our full-time equivalent employees at December2811L2 consisted of 2,204 pilots, 2,472 flight att@mtd, 3,550 airport operations
personnel, 541 technicians (whom others refer tmeshanics), 945 reservation agents, and 2,741 geament and other personnel. At
December 31, 2012 , we employed 10,573 full-time 24774 part-time employees.




Aircraft Fuel

Aircraft fuel is our largest expense representiagrty 40% of our total operating costs in 2012 e Phice and availability of aircraft fuel
are extremely volatile due to global economic aedmplitical factors we can neither control nor aately predict. We use a third party fuel
management service to procure most of our fuel.lHitorical fuel consumption and costs for the gearded December 31 were:

2012 2011 2010
Gallons consumed (millions) 563 52t 48€
Total cost (millions) $ 1,80¢ $ 1662 $ 1,11¢
Average price per gallon $ 321 % 317 % 2.2¢
Percent of operating expenses 39.2% 39.8% 32.4%

Total cost and average price per gallon each iectethted fuel taxes as well as effective fuel lregigains and losses.

Our approach to fuel price management seeks tdge@/form of insurance to protect against sigaificand sharp increases in fuel
prices. We attempt to do so by entering into aetgrdf hedging instruments, including swaps anthcaontracts with underlyings of jet fuel
well as crude and heating oil. We also use fixed/éod price agreements, or FFPs, which allow Uedk in the price of fuel for specified
guantities and at specified locations in futurdqus. At December 31, 2012 , of our projected 2fuE8 requirements, we had hedged
approximately 5% and managed approximately 6% ®#Rs. In January and February 2013, we enteredeihfoel swap and cap agreements
covering an additional 6% of our 2013 projected fequirements.

Maintenance

Our FAA-approved maintenance program is administered byeotnical operations department. Consistent withcore value of safet
we use qualified maintenance personnel, ensurehtfvey comprehensive training and maintain our afitend associated maintenance record:
in accordance with, if not exceeding, FAA regulao

The maintenance work performed on our fleet isddidiinto five general categories: modification Jingcraft line maintenance, aircraft
heavy maintenance, component repairs and powetr plaimtenance. The bulk of line maintenance requingts are handled directly by JetB
technicians and inspectors and consist of dailgkfieovernight and weekly checks, “A” checks, diegfits and routine repairs. All other
maintenance activity is sub-contracted to qualifiegintenance, repair and overhaul organizations.

Aircraft heavy maintenance checks consist of a&sef more complex tasks that take from one to Weeeks to accomplish. The typical
frequency for these events is once every 15 mokltlessend our aircraft to FAA-approved Aeroman faes in El Salvador, Pemco in Tampa,
Florida, Timco in Lake City, Florida and Embraer&aft Maintenance Services in Nashville, Tennesshis work is all performed with
oversight by JetBlue personnel.

Component and power plant maintenance, repair®aghauls on equipment such as engines, auxiliewep units, landing gears,
pumps and avionic computers are performed by a euwtdifferent FAA-approved repair stations. Frample, maintenance of our V2500
series engines which power our Airbus A320 airdsafterformed under a 15-year service agreemehtMitU Maintenance Hannover GmbH
of Germany, or MTU. MTU is also a manufacturer iy of these engines components. Many of our maamiee service agreements are
based on a fixed cost per flying hour, which cary\vmsed upon the age and other operating factgradting the related component. Requirec
maintenance not covered by one of our agreemepgrfisrmed on a time and materials basis.

LiveTV, LLC

LiveTV, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of JetBlugrovides in-flight entertainment, voice communioatand data connectivity
services for commercial and general aviation aftctaveTV’ s assets include certain tangible equipment areddsts in systems installed on
customers’ aircraft, system components and spats ijpainventory, an air-to-ground spectrum licegsanted by the Federal Communications
Commission, a network of approximately 80 grouradishs across the continental U.S., and rightettai patents and intellectual property.
LiveTV’s major competitors in the in-flight enteiianent systems market include Rockwell Collins, [Ee&vionics and Panasonic Avionics.
Only Panasonic is currently providing in-seat ligkevision. In the voice and data communicatiowises market, LiveTV’s primary
competitors are GoGo, Row 44, Panasonic, OnAirAsrdmobile.




LiveTV has agreements with six other domestic amterhational commercial airlines for the sale arsfallation of certain hardware,
programming and maintenance of its live in-seatlB television and certain other products anmdises. LiveTV also has general aviation
customers to which it supplies voice and data coniaation services. LiveTV continues to pursue adddl customers and related product
enhancements. In 2011, JetBlue entered into areangnet with ViaSat Inc. for in-flight broadband ceuwtivity. LiveTV is partnering with
ViaSat Inc. to develop this ifight broadband connectivity for JetBlue and wi#llp us to introduce it on our aircraft beginnin@2013. LiveT\
is also working with ViaSat Inc. to support in-figconnectivity for other airlines in the future.

Government Regulation

General. We are subject to regulation by the agencighefederal government, including, but not limitedthe DOT, the FAA, the
Transportation Security Administration, or TSA, astler governmental agencies. The DOT primarilytatgs economic issues affecting air
service such as certification and fithess, insuganonsumer protection and competitive practices. DOT has the authority to investigate anc
institute proceedings to enforce its economic ragohs and may assess civil penalties, revoke Gipgrauthority and seek criminal sanctions.
In February 2000, the DOT granted us a certificdiggublic convenience and necessity authorizingpiengage in air transportation within the
United States, its territories and possessions.

The FAA primarily regulates flight operations aidparticular, matters affecting air safety suctamaorthiness requirements for aircr.
the licensing of pilots, mechanics and dispatchand,the certification of flight attendants. TheA-fequires each airline to obtain an operatinc
certificate authorizing the airline to operate péafic airports using specified equipment. We hand maintain FAA certificates of
airworthiness for all of our aircraft and have tieeessary FAA authority to fly to all of the citiee currently serve.

Like all U.S. certified carriers, we cannot flynew destinations without the prior authorizatiorited FAA. The FAA has the authority to
modify, suspend temporarily or revoke permanentlyauthority to provide air transportation or tb&bur licensed personnel, after providing
notice and a hearing, for failure to comply withA£egulations. The FAA can assess civil penaltigsstich failures or institute proceedings
the imposition and collection of monetary fines tioe violation of certain FAA regulations. The FA&An revoke our authority to provide air
transportation on an emergency basis, without ginginotice and a hearing, where significant saifetyes are involved. The FAA monitors
our compliance with maintenance, flight operatiand safety regulations, maintains onsite repreteassand performs frequent spot
inspections of our aircraft, employees and records.

The FAA also has the authority to issue airworteindirectives and other mandatory orders relatngrnong other things, inspection of
aircraft and engines, fire retardant and smokectietedevices, collision and windshear avoidanatesys, noise abatement and the mandator
removal and replacement of aircraft parts that Hailed or may fail in the future.

The TSA operates under the Department of Homelawedi8y and is responsible for all civil aviatioacsirity, including passenger and
baggage screening, cargo security measures, aggautity, assessment and distribution of inteflige and security research and developmer
The TSA also has law enforcement powers and tHeatt to issue regulations, including in casesational emergency, without a notice or
comment period.

In December 2009, the DOT issued a rule, which amather things, requires carriers not to permit dstic flights to remain on the
tarmac for more than three hours (the “Tarmac Dedgylations”). The rule became effective in AR2@10. Violators can be fined up to a
maximum of $27,500 per passenger. The new ruleiaisazduced requirements to disclose on-time petforce and delay statistics for certain
flights. This new rule may have adverse consequeonaur business and our results of operation®ctober 2011, several airport and
navigational system outages combined with a sewarer storm impacted the northeast which resuhetlimerous flight diversions, by us ¢
other domestic and international carriers, to Hadtf CT's Bradley International Airport. Due to viieer, field and airport terminal conditions,
five of our six diverted flights were held on tlarhac for times which exceeded the DOT'’s estaldishemac delay limits. As a result, the
DOT is formally investigating these incidents anel avay be subject to a civil penalty.

As part of an additional set of consumer protectidas issued by the DOT, as of January 2012, (@& Bequires any advertised price
airfare or a tour package including airfare (eaghptel/air vacation package) to be the total piadee paid by the customer, including all
government taxes and fees. The new policy apmied 1J.S. and foreign air carriers and ticket agehat advertise in the U.S. (including via
the internet). Under the new rule, carriers anketiagents are permitted to include a statemeatrmihg customers of the base fare versus
government taxes and fees, but such a break-dommotée more prominent than the advertised toteépFailure to comply could result in
fines and penalties by the DOT as well as reputatidamage, particularly in light of the substdnti@dia coverage on the new rule and the
perception that total price advertising is in tlestinterest of the customer. The DOT is reviewingther certain practices and advertising
programs by JetBlue since January 2012 are in darmga with the new rule and applicable guidance.
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We believe we are operating in material complianite DOT, FAA, TSA and applicable international afiedeign regulations and hold
all necessary operating and airworthiness authiiwizeand certificates. Should any of these autlations or certificates be modified,
suspended or revoked, our business could be niatexitversely affected.

We are also subject to state and local laws andaggns in a number of states in which we operate.

The airline industry is one of the most heavilygdin the U.S., with taxes and fees accountingpqroximately 16% of the total fare
charged to a customer. Airlines are obligated talfall of these taxes and fees regardless of didity to pass these charges on to the
customer. Additionally, if the TSA were to chanbe tvay the Aviation Security Infrastructure Feassessed, our security costs could be
higher.

Airport Access. Historically, JFK, LaGuardia Airport, or LaGuta, and Ronald Reagan Washington National AirpowWashington
D.C., or Reagan National, were slot-controlled @it® subject to the FAA's "High Density Rule," while limited the air traffic in and out of
the airport during specific times. For JFK and La@lia, those rules expired in 2007. Following a#igant increase in air traffic in and out of
these airports, in 2008, the FAA reinstated temiyonales limiting operations for JFK, LaGuardia addwark, N.J.'s Liberty International
Airport, or Newark. These temporary rules contiirueffect today. Due to airspace congestion innbwheast, especially in the New York
metropolitan region, and during inclement weathdetays at JFK, LaGuardia and Newark remain amoadidhest in the nation.

At Reagan National where we increased our presan?2@12 and now operate 18 daily departures tode&inations, the High Density
Rule remains in place. We operate with slots peantiy assigned to us as well as with leased slots.

Westchester County Airport in White Plains, NY isaa slot-controlled airport, although unlike JElaGuardia, Newark and Reagan
National, it is governed by local, not federal riagions. We have 26 slots available for use andectly operate 13 weekday round trip flig
from White Plains, NY to six destinations.

Long Beach (California) Municipal Airport is a slobntrolled airport as a result of a 1995 courtieetént. We have 32 slots available
use and currently operate them to 12 domesticsdit@m coast to coast.

Environmental. We are subject to various federal, state aodl laws relating to the protection of the envir@mt) including the
discharge or disposal of materials and chemicalstla@ regulation of aircraft noise administerechioynerous state and federal agencies.

The Airport Noise and Capacity Act of 1990 recogsithe right of airport operators with special agisoblems to implement local noise
abatement procedures as long as those procedures daerfere unreasonably with the interstate faneign commerce of the national air
transportation system. Certain airports, includdan Diego and Long Beach, California, have estadtigestrictions to limit noise which can
include limits on the number of hourly or daily ogons and the time of such operations. Thesediions serve to protect the local noise-
sensitive communities surrounding the airport. €alreduled flights at Long Beach and San Diegoraoeinpliance with the noise curfew
limits but when we experience irregular operati@mspccasion, we may violate these curfews. We hgveed to a payment structure with the
Long Beach City Prosecutor for any violations whied pay quarterly to the Long Beach Public LibrBoundation. The payment is based on
the number of infractions in the preceding quartéis local ordinance has not had, and we beliewdlinot have, a negative effect on our
operations.

We use our “Jetting to Green” programwww.jetblue.conto educate our customers and Crewmembers aboubamental issues and
to inform the public about our environmental préitae initiatives. Our most recent corporate susthility report for the years 2010-2011 is
available on our website and addresses our enveatahprograms, including those aimed at curbiregpghouse emissions, our conservation
efforts and our social responsibility efforts.

Foreign Operations  International air transportation is subjecextensive government regulation. The availabilitynternational
routes to U.S. carriers is regulated by treatiesratated agreements between the United Statefoegign governments. We currently operate
international service to the Bahamas, the DominReapublic, Bermuda, Aruba, the Netherlands Antjidexico, Colombia, Costa Rica,
Jamaica, Barbados, Saint Lucia, the Turks and Gd#tands and the Cayman Islands. To the extersiewk to provide air transportation to
additional international markets in the future,wa@uld be required to obtain necessary authoritynftbe DOT and the applicable foreign
government.

Foreign Ownership. Under federal law and the DOT regulations, westie controlled by United States citizens. Is tieigard, our
president and at least two-thirds of our boardifadors must be United States citizens and noerttan 24.99% of our outstanding common
stock may be voted by non-U.S. citizens. We beliggeare currently in compliance with these owngrghiovisions.

Other Regulations. All air carriers are also subject to certaioyisions of the Communications Act of 1934 becaafgbeir extensive
use of radio and other communication facilities] ane required to obtain an aeronautical radicmbegfrom the FCC. To the extent we are
subject to FCC requirements, we will take all nsaeg steps to comply with those requirements. @ooil relations are covered under Title I
of the Railway Labor Act of 1926 and are subjedhjurisdiction of the
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National Mediation Board. In addition, during petsoof fuel scarcity, access to aircraft fuel mayblgject to federal allocation regulations.
are also subject to state and local laws and régokaat locations where we operate and the regukabf various local authorities operating
airports we serve.

Civil Reserve Air Fleet. We are a participant in the Civil Reserve Aegdt Program, which permits the United States Dtepeamt of
Defense to utilize our aircraft during national egencies when the need for military airlift exceéus capability of military aircraft. By
participating in this program, we are eligible id bn and be awarded peacetime airlift contracth e military.

Insurance

We carry insurance of types customary in the @rinmdustry and at amounts deemed adequate to pust@nd our property and to
comply both with federal regulations and certaimof credit and lease agreements. As a resultedfetfiorist attacks of September 11, 2001
(the Terrorist Attacks), aviation insurers sigrafirtly reduced the amount of insurance coveragéadlaito commercial air carriers for liability
to persons other than employees or passengerkforscresulting from acts of terrorism, war or danievents (war-risk coverage). At the same
time, these insurers significantly increased thepums for aviation insurance in general. The d&ernment has agreed to provide
commercial war-risk insurance for U.S. based a#sircurrently through September 30, 2013, covdasges to employees, passengers, third
parties and aircraft. We currently have such cayeia addition to our overall hull and liabilitySarance coverage. If the U.S. government
were to cease providing such insurance in whola part, it is likely we would be able to obtainngparable coverage in the commercial
market, but we would likely incur higher premiunraglanore restrictive terms.

Iran Sanctions Disclosure

Pursuant to Section 13(r) of the Securities Exchahet of 1934, or the Exchange Act, if during 203&tBlue or any of its affiliates have
engaged in certain transactions with Iran or wighspns or entities designated under certain exaratders, JetBlue would be required to
disclose information regarding such transactionsuinAnnual Report as required under Section 21®eiran Threat Reduction and Syria
Human Rights Act of 2012, or ITRA. During 2012,Bleie did not engage in any transactions with Irawith persons or entities related to
Iran.

Deutsche Lufthansa AG, or Lufthansa, is a stockérotd approximately 17% of JetBlue's outstandingrel of common stock and |
two representatives on our Board of Directors. dkdingly, it may be deemed an “affiliatef JetBlue, as that term is defined in Exchange
Rule 12b2. In response to our inquiries, Lufthansa infadnus that it does not engage in transactions tloaidvbe disclosable under ITF
Section 219. However, Lufthansa informed us thdbées provide air transportation services frormkfart, Germany to Tehran, Iran purst
to Air Transport Agreements between the respediwsernments. Accordingly, Lufthansa may have agesgmin place to support such
transportation services with the appropriate agenor entities, such as landing or overflight féesydling fees or technical/refueling fees
addition, there may be additional civil aviatiodated dealings with Iran Air as part of typicallimie to airline interactions. In response to
inquiry, Lufthansa did not specify the total reveritireceives in connection with the foregoing $@etions, but confirmed the transactions
not prohibited under any applicable laws.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Risks Related to JetBlue
We operate in an extremely competitive industry.

The domestic airline industry is characterizeddw profit margins, high fixed costs and signific@nice competition in an increasingly
concentrated competitive field. We currently conepeith other airlines on all of our routes. Mostoofr competitors are larger and have gre
financial resources and name recognition than wé-dibowing our entry into new markets or expansibrexisting markets, some of our
competitors have chosen to add service or engagetémsive price competition. Unanticipated shdgfa expected revenues as a result of
price competition or in the number of passengemsethwould negatively impact our financial reswdtsd harm our business. The extremely
competitive nature of the airline industry coul@yent us from attaining the level of passengefitraf maintaining the level of fares required
to maintain profitable operations in new and erigtinarkets and could impede our profitable growtéitagy, which would harm our business.
Additionally, if a traditional network airline wete fully develop a low cost structure, or if weneeo experience increased competition from
low cost carriers, our business could be materedlyersely affected.

Our business is highly dependent on the availalyildf fuel and subject to price volatility.

Our results of operations are heavily impactedheygrice and availability of fuel. Fuel costs corspra substantial portion of our total
operating expenses and are our single largest tipgexpense. Historically, fuel costs have bedrjestt to wide price fluctuations based on
geopolitical factors and supply and demand. Thdahility of fuel is not only dependent on crudé lmiit also on refining capacity. When even
a small amount of the domestic or global oil refqncapacity becomes unavailable, supply shortagiesesult for extended periods of time.
The availability of fuel is also affected by demdodhome heating oil, gasoline and other petrolguaducts, as well as crude oil reserves,
dependence on foreign imports of crude oil andmt@khostilities in oil producing areas of the WwbBecause of the effects of these factors o
the price and availability of fuel, the cost antlfe availability of fuel cannot be predicted wéthy degree of certainty.

Our aircraft fuel purchase agreements do not preieegainst price increases or guarantee theadliil of fuel. Additionally, some of
our competitors may have more leverage than wa abtaining fuel. We have and may continue to eintera variety of option contracts and
swap agreements for crude oil, heating oil, andujeltto partially protect against significant ireses in fuel prices; however, such contracts
and agreements do not completely protect us agaiitet volatility, are limited in volume and dumti, and can be less effective during volatile
market conditions and may carry counterparty fishder the fuel hedge contracts we may enter frome to time, counterparties to those
contracts may require us to fund the margin astetiith any loss position on the contracts if pinee of crude oils falls below specified
benchmarks. Meeting our obligations to fund thesegim calls could adversely affect our liquidity.

Due to the competitive nature of the domesticragrindustry, at times we have not been able tousatety increase our fares to offset the
increases in fuel prices nor may we be able toodio $he future. Future fuel price increases, cared high fuel price volatility or fuel supply
shortages may result in a curtailment of schedségdices and could have a material adverse effeouofinancial condition and results of
operations.

We have a significant amount of fixed obligationsi@ we will incur significantly more fixed obligaties, which could harm our ability
to service our current or satisfy future fixed olgitions.

As of December 31, 2012, our debt of $2.85 bilk@meounted for 60% of our total capitalizationatidition to long-term debt, we have a
significant amount of other fixed obligations untkases related to our aircraft, airport termimelce, other airport facilities and office space.
As of December 31, 2012 , future minimum paymentsen noncancelable leases and other financingatigigs were approximately $1.02
billion for 2013 through 2017 and an aggregatelo8$ billion for the years thereafter. We have algnstructed, and in October 2008 began
operating, a new terminal at JFK under a 30-ye@sdavith the Port Authority of New York and Newskr, or PANYNJ. The minimum
payments under this lease are being accounted fafiaancing obligation and have been includetthéfuture minimum payment totals aba

As of December 31, 2012 , we had commitments of@pmately $5.00 billion to purchase 115 additioagtraft and other flight
equipment through 2021, including estimated amofartsontractual price escalations. We may incutitiwhal debt and other fixed
obligations as we take delivery of new aircraft atiter equipment and continue to expand into nevkets. In an effort to limit the incurrence
of significant additional debt, we may seek to dsfeme of our scheduled deliveries, sell or leaseadt to others, or pay cash for new aircraft,
to the extent necessary or possible. The amoumtioéxisting debt, and other fixed obligations, @otential increases in the amount of our
debt and other fixed obligations could have impartaonsequences to investors and could requirestautial portion of cash flows from
operations for debt service payments, thereby iadube availability of our cash flow to fund wonkj capital, capital expenditures and other
general corporate purposes.
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Our high level of debt and other fixed obligatiamuaild:

e impact our ability to obtain additional finangito support capital expansion plans and for wayldapital and other purposes on
acceptable terms or at all;

« divert substantial cash flow from our operationd arpansion plans in order to service our fixedgattions

e require us to incur significantly more interest expe than we currently do if rates were to incresisee approximately 40% of our d
has floating interest rates; and

» place us at a possible competitive disadvantagepared to less leveraged competitors and coropetitith better access to capital
resources or more favorable terms.

Our ability to make scheduled payments on our dedtother fixed obligations will depend on our feteperating performance and cash
flows, which in turn will depend on prevailing eamic and political conditions and financial, conifre¢, regulatory, business and other
factors, many of which are beyond our control. Weincipally dependent upon our operating casWvdland access to the capital markets tc
fund our operations and to make scheduled paynoentéiebt and other fixed obligations. We cannot i@sgau we will be able to generate
sufficient cash flows from our operations or froapital market activities to pay our debt and ofherd obligations as they become due; if we
fail to do so our business could be harmed. If veeumable to make payments on our debt and otkedl fibligations, we could be forced to
renegotiate those obligations or seek to obtaiitiaddl equity or other forms of additional finangi.

Our substantial indebtedness may limit our abiliy incur additional debt to obtain future financingeeds.

We typically finance our aircraft through eithecseed debt or lease financing. The impact on fir@ngstitutions from the global credit
and liquidity crisis and continuing economic magamsay adversely affect the availability and costredit to JetBlue as well as to prospective
purchasers of our aircraft we undertake to setthanfuture, including financing commitments we halready obtained for purchases of new
aircraft. To the extent we finance our activitieghvadditional debt, we may become subject to faiarand other covenants that may restrict
our ability to pursue our strategy or otherwisestoain our operations.

Our maintenance costs will increase as our fleeeag

Our maintenance costs will increase as our fleesalgp the past, we have incurred lower maintenarpenses because most of the part:
on our aircraft were under multi-year warrantiébgse warranties have for the most part expireghyfexisting maintenance provider with
whom we have a long-term "power by the hour" ages@mfails to perform or honor such agreements, \llaneur higher interim maintenance
costs until we negotiate new agreements.

Furthermore, as our fleet ages, we expect our Wiktequire various modifications over the negvsral years to ensure its continued
efficiency, modernization, brand consistency arfdtgaOur plans to equip our A320 aircraft with gtiats, for example, will, in some cases,
require significant modification time. These fleeddifications will require significant investmentear the several years, including taking
aircraft out of service for several weeks at a time

Our salaries, wages and benefits costs will increas our workforce ages.

As our employees' tenure with JetBlue maturessalaries, wages and benefits costs will increase plot pay structure, for example, is
based on an industry derived average and to tlemeatir competitors continue consolidating andéwib raising their pilot salaries in the face
of a possible pilot shortage, we may have to addreseased salary cost pressure to retain ouispilcan environment where our capacity is
also forecast to continue to grow. As our work éages, we expect our medical and related benefitcrease as well, despite an increased
corporate focus on crewmember wellness.

If we fail to successfully implement our strategyyr business could be harmed.

We have grown, and expect to continue to grow asirtess whenever practicable, by modifying thedezgy of flights to markets we
currently serve, expanding the number of marketsevee and increasing flight connection opportesitWWe have modified our rate of growth
several times over the past few years due to hifyletiprices, the competitive pricing environmentiather cost increases, by deferring some
of our scheduled deliveries of new aircraft, sgllstome used aircraft, terminating our leases foresof our aircraft, and leasing aircraft to o
operators. A continuation of the economic downtuay cause us to further reduce our future growdhgfrom previously announced levels.

To the extent we continue to grow our businessnimgenew markets requires us to commit a substanti@unt of resources even before
the new services commence. Expansion is also depéngon our ability to maintain a safe and seoperation and requires additional
personnel, equipment and facilities. An inabiliyhire and retain personnel, timely secure theiredequipment and facilities in a cost-
effective manner, efficiently operate our expanfhailities, or obtain the necessary regulatory apals may adversely affect our ability to
achieve our growth strategy, which could harm asitess.
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In addition, our competitors often add service uadtheir fares and/or offer special promotiontfeing our entry into a new market. We
cannot assure you we will be able to profitablyamngbour existing markets or establish new markebe@ble to adequately temper our growtt
in a cost effective manner through additional deferor selling or leasing aircraft; if we fail o so, our business could be harmed.

There are risks associated with our presence in goof our international emerging markets, includingolitical or economic instability
and failure to adequately comply with existing ldgaquirements.

Expansion to new international emerging markets hee risks due to factors specific to those mark&merging markets are countries
which have less developed economies and are vibieeiaeconomic and political problems, such asiigant fluctuations in gross domestic
product, interest and currency exchange rated,disturbances, government instability, nationalmaand expropriation of private assets,
trafficking and the imposition of taxes or otheaoyes by governments. The occurrence of any oétleesnts in markets served by us and the
resulting instability may adversely affect our mesis.

We have expanded and, if market and other conditiearrant it, may continue to expand our serviceotantries in the Caribbean and
Latin America, some of which have less developedllsystems, financial markets, and business aliticabenvironments than the United
States, and therefore present greater politicghlJeeconomic and operational risks. We emphasigal lcompliance and have implemented ant
continue to implement and refresh policies, procesland certain ongoing training of employees watard to business ethics, anti-corruption
policies and many key legal requirements; howethere can be no assurance our employees will adbengr code of business ethics, anti-
corruption policies, other Company policies, orastlegal requirements. If we fail to enforce ouligies and procedures properly or maintain
adequate record-keeping and internal accountingfipes to accurately record our transactions, we Ibgasubject to sanctions. In the event we
believe or have reason to believe our employees bawmay have violated applicable laws or regutetjave may be subject to investigation
costs, potential penalties and other related awisish in turn could negatively affect our reputati@and our results of operations and cash flow

We may be subject to risks through the commitmemtsl business of LiveTV, our wholly-owned subsidiary

LiveTV has agreements to provide in-flight entertaent products and services with six other airlidéDecember 31, 2012 , LiveTV
services were available on 439 aircraft under tlaggeements, with firm commitments for 219 addaicaircraft through 2018nd with option
for 52 additional installations through 2014 . Beriance under these agreements requires LiveTWeothain and retain qualified employees,
obtain component parts unique to its systems amices from their suppliers and secure facilitiesessary to perform installations and
maintenance on those systems. Should LiveTV belanatsatisfy its commitments under these thirdypeontracts, our business could be
harmed.

We may be subject to unionization, work stoppagaewdowns or increased labor costs; recent changpethe labor laws may make
unionization easier to achieve.

Our business is labor intensive and, unlike mdsgioairlines, we have a non-union workforce. Themization of any of our employees
could result in demands that may increase our tipgraxpenses and adversely affect our financiatitin and results of operations. Any of
the different crafts or classes of our employeesddcanionize at any time, which would require usiggotiate in good faith with the employee
group’s certified representative concerning a ctile bargaining agreement. In 2010, the NationatiMtion Board, or NMB, changed its
election procedures to permit a majority of thoséng to elect to unionize (from a majority of tieas the craft or class). These rule changes
fundamentally alter the manner in which labor gmbpve been able to organize in our industry dineénception of the Railway Labor Act.
Ultimately, if we and a newly elected representatitere unable to reach agreement on the termsdfextive bargaining agreement and all of
the dispute resolution processes of the RailwayL&ut were exhausted, we could be subject to vetokpages. In addition, we may be
subject to other disruptions by organized labougsoprotesting our noanion status. Any of these events would be disvepty our operation
and could harm our business.

Our high aircraft utilization rate helps us keep owosts low, but also makes us vulnerable to delagd cancellations in our operatin
regions; such delays and cancellations could redume profitability.

We maintain a high daily aircraft utilization rgte amount of time our aircraft spend in the airging passengers). High daily aircraft
utilization allows us to generate more revenue foamaircraft and is achieved in part by reducingparound times at airports so we can fly
more hours on average in a day. Aircraft utilizati® reduced by delays and cancellations from wuarfactors, many of which are beyond our
control, including adverse weather conditions, sécuequirements, air traffic congestion and uresilied maintenance. The majority of our
operations are concentrated in the Northeast amritig| which are particularly vulnerable to weathrd congestion delays. Reduced aircraft
utilization may limit our ability to achieve and mtain profitability as well as lead to customessiitisfaction.
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Our business is highly dependent on the New Yorkimogolitan market and increases in competition oorgestion or a reduction in
demand for air travel in this market, or governmeitreduction of our operating capacity at JFK, wadiharm our business.

We are highly dependent on the New York metropolitearket where we maintain a large presence wiinegmately one-half of our
daily flights having JFK, LaGuardia, Newark, Wesster County Airport or Newburgh’s Stewart Interoaal Airport as either their origin or
destination. We have experienced an increaseghtfielays and cancellations at JFK due to airpamgestion which has adversely affectec
operating performance and results of operations.bDsiness could be further harmed by an increasigei amount of direct competition we
face in the New York metropolitan market or by @gouned or increased congestion, delays or canaafisitiOur business would also be harmec
by any circumstances causing a reduction in derf@mair transportation in the New York metropolitarea, such as adverse changes in local
economic conditions, negative public perceptioiNew York City, terrorist attacks or significant giincreases linked to increases in airport
access costs and fees imposed on passengers.

We rely heavily on automated systems to operatelusginess; any failure of these systems could havar business.

We are dependent on automated systems and teclirtologerate our business, enhance customer semwitachieve low operating
costs. The performance and reliability of our awted systems and data center is critical to odityatw operate our business and compete
effectively. These systems include our computeri&edihe reservation system, flight operations systtelecommunications systems, website,
maintenance systems, check-in kiosks, in-flighegatnment systems and our primary and redunddataggters. Our website and reservation
system must be able to accommodate a high volurtraftit and deliver important flight informatiofhese systems require upgrades or
replacement periodically, which involve implemerdatand other operational risks. Our business nealydymed if we fail to operate, replac
upgrade our systems or data center infrastructureessfully.

We rely on the third party providers of our currantomated systems and data center infrastruatuteéhnical support. If the current
provider were to fail to adequately provide techh&gupport for any one of our key existing systemi new or updated components were not
integrated smoothly, we could experience serviseugiions, which, if they were to occur, could fesuthe loss of important data, increase
expenses, decrease our revenues and generallyobatmisiness and reputation. Furthermore, our aatieansystems cannot be completely
protected against events beyond our control, inetydatural disasters, computer viruses, otherrgigdareaches, or telecommunications
failures. Substantial or sustained system failapedd impact customer service and result in outarusrs purchasing tickets from other
airlines. We have implemented security measureshadge control procedures and have disaster racplans as well as requiring our third
party providers to have disaster recovery plangidver, we cannot assure you these measures areadeeq prevent disruptions, which, if
they were to occur, could result in the loss of@am@nt data, increase our expenses, decreasevaummues and generally harm our business an
reputation.

Our reputation and business may be harmed and weyrba subject to legal claims if there is loss, unfal disclosure or
misappropriation of, or unsanctioned access to, awstomers’, employees’, business partners’ or own information or other breaches of
our information security.

We make extensive use of online services and datladata processing, including through third ypa#rvice providers. The secure
maintenance and transmission of customer and emgliojormation is a critical element of our opayasi. Our information technology and
other systems maintain and transmit customer irdition, or those of service providers or businesgpes, may be compromised by a
malicious third party penetration of our networksaty, or of a third party service provider or mess partner, or impacted by deliberate or
inadvertent actions or inactions by our employeeshose of a third party service provider or basgpartner. As a result, personal informa
may be lost, disclosed, accessed or taken withangent.

We transmit confidential credit card information\wgy of secure private retail networks and relyeanryption and authentication
technology licensed from third parties to provide security and authentication necessary to effsmire transmission and storage of
confidential information, such as customer credidanformation. The Company has made signific#fiores to secure its computer network. If
any compromise of our security or computer netweeke to occur, it could have a material adversecefin the reputation, business, opera
results and financial condition of the Company, aadld result in a loss of customers. Additionaflpy material failure by the Company to
achieve or maintain compliance with the Payment@adustry, or PCI, security requirements or rgctifsecurity issue may result in fines and
the imposition of restrictions on the Company'dighio accept credit cards as a form of payment.

Any such loss, disclosure or misappropriation ofaccess to, customers’, employees’ or businesagyat information or other breach of
our information security can result in legal claiordegal proceedings, including regulatory invgstions and actions, may have a negative
impact on our reputation and may materially advgraffect our business, operating results and firercondition. Furthermore, the loss,
disclosure or misappropriation of our businessrimi@tion may materially adversely affect our busi@perating results and financial
condition.
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Our liquidity could be adversely impacted in theegw one or more of our credit card processors wayémpose material reserve
requirements for payments due to us from credit ddransactions.

We currently have agreements with organizationsghacess credit card transactions arising froncipases of air travel tickets by our
customers. Credit card processors have finandllagsociated with tickets purchased for travettvigian occur several weeks after the
purchase. Our credit card processing agreememntgpréor reserves to be deposited with the proaesseertain circumstances. We do not
currently have reserves posted for our credit pandessors. If circumstances were to occur requinmto deposit reserves, the negative im
on our liquidity could be significant which couldaterially adversely affect our business.

If we are unable to attract and retain qualified pgonnel or fail to maintain our company culture, albusiness could be harmed.

We compete against the other major U.S. airlinepilots, mechanics and other skilled labor; sorf#hem offer wage and benefit
packages exceeding ours. As more pilots in thestmdwapproach mandatory retirement age, the Urhaindustry may be affected by a pilot
shortage, to some extent. We may be required tease wages and/or benefits in order to attractetaéh qualified personnel or risk
considerable employee turnover. If we are unabldre train and retain qualified employees, owibess could be harmed and we may be
unable to implement our growth plans.

In addition, as we hire more people and grow, wiebe it may be increasingly challenging to conério hire people who will maintain
our company culture. One of our competitive streags our service-oriented company culture thatlemsjzes friendly, helpful, team-oriented
and customer-focused employees. Our company cuffumgportant to providing high quality customengee and having a productive
workforce in order to help keep our costs low. Asaentinue to grow, we may be unable to identifse br retain enough people who meet the
above criteria, including those in management beiokey positions. Our company culture could otlisevbe adversely affected by our
growing operations and geographic diversity. Iffaiéto maintain the strength of our company cudtusur competitive ability and our business
may be harmed.

Our results of operations fluctuate due to seasdhahnd other factors.

We expect our quarterly operating results to flatéudue to seasonality including high vacation leisdire demand occurring on the
Florida routes between October and April and onveestern routes during the summer. Actions of ametitors may also contribute to
fluctuations in our results. We are more susceptibladverse weather conditions, including snownsteand hurricanes, as a result of our
operations being concentrated on the East Coast,sdhme of our competitors. As we enter new masketsould be subject to additional
seasonal variations along with any competitive asps to our entry by other airlines. Price chamge#craft fuel as well as the timing and
amount of maintenance and advertising expendiisssimpact our operations. As a result of thestofa, quarter-to-quarter comparisons of
our operating results may not be a good indicatauo future performance. In addition, it is possilm any future period our operating results
could be below the expectations of investors arydpablished reports or analyses regarding JetBtusuch an event, the price of our commor
stock could decline, perhaps substantially.

We are subject to the risks of having a limited nber of suppliers for our aircraft, engines and a k&omponent of our in-flight
entertainment system.

Our current dependence on two types of aircrafteargines for all of our flights makes us vulnerablsignificant problems associated
with the Airbus A320 aircraft or the IAE Internatial Aero Engines V2527-A5 engine and the EMBRAER &Bcraft or the General Electric
Engines CF-34-10 engine, including design defents;hanical problems, contractual performance byrtaeufacturers, or adverse perception
by the public would result in customer avoidancénactions by the FAA resulting in an inability éperate our aircraft. Carriers operating a
more diversified fleet are better positioned thanase to manage such events.

One of the unique features of our fleet is evest seeach of our aircraft is equipped with fredlight entertainment including DirecTV
®. An integral component of the system is the ardemrich is supplied to us by KVH Industries IncKd/H. If KVH were to stop supplying
us with its antennas for any reason, we would ti@awecur significant costs to procure an alterrsatgplier.

Our reputation and financial results could be harrden the event of an accident or incident involviraur aircraft.

An accident or incident involving one of our airitya&r an aircraft containing LiveTV equipment, ¢tinvolve significant potential
claims of injured passengers or others in additorepair or replacement of a damaged aircraftisncbnsequential temporary or permanent
loss from service. We are required by the DOT toyciability insurance. Although we believe we pemtly maintain liability insurance in
amounts and of the type generally consistent witlustry practice, the amount of such coverage nap@ adequate and we may be forced to
bear substantial losses from an accident. Subatafdims resulting from an accident in excessuwofrelated insurance coverage would harm
our business and financial results.
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Moreover, any aircraft accident or incident, eviefully insured, could cause a public perceptionare less safe or reliable than other airlines
which would harm our business.

An ownership change could limit our ability to usaur net operation loss carryforwards.

As of December 31, 2012 , we had approximately $8ifllon of federal net operating loss carryforwaifdr U.S. income tax purposes
that begin to expire in 2025 . Section 382 of thterdnal Revenue Code imposes limitation on a catpmr’s ability to use its net operating loss
carryforwards if it experiences an “ownership chein@imilar rules and limitations may apply forteténcome tax purposes. In the event an
“ownership change” were to occur in the future, ability to utilize our net operating losses cobtlimited.

Our business depends on our strong reputation ahd value of the JetBlue brand.

The JetBlue brand name symbolizes high-qualityhfiig customer service, innovation, fun, and a @easravel experience. JetBlue is a
widely recognized and respected global brand; ¢tlde brand is one of our most important and Valkiassets. The JetBlue brand name anc
our corporate reputation are powerful sales andetizg tools and we devote significant resourcgsréanoting and protecting them. Adverse
publicity (whether or not justified) relating totadties by our employees, contractors or agentddtarnish our reputation and reduce the v
of our brand. Damage to our reputation and lodwafd equity could reduce demand for our servioéstlaus have an adverse effect on our
financial condition, liquidity and results of op&oas, as well as require additional resourcegbuild our reputation and restore the value of
our brand.

We may be subject to competitive risks due to tmeglterm nature of our fleet order book.

At present, we have existing aircraft commitmehtsugh 2021. As technological evolution occursun imdustry, through the use of
composites and other innovations, we may be comyi disadvantaged because we have existing sixeifleet commitments that would
prohibit us from adopting new technologies on apeslited basis.

Risks Associated with the Airline Industry
The airline industry is particularly sensitive tchanges in economic condition.

Fundamental and permanent changes in the dométtie éndustry have been ongoing over the pasesswears as a result of several
years of repeated losses, among other reasonse Tdssgs resulted in airlines renegotiating omgtténg to renegotiate labor contrac
reconfiguring flight schedules, furloughing or ténating employees, as well as considering othécieffcy and cost-cutting measures. Despite
these actions, several airlines have reorganizddru@hapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code to pettmim to reduce labor rates, restructure
debt, terminate pension plans and generally retheiecost structure. Since 2005, the U.S. airiimistry has experienced significant
consolidation and liquidations. The global econoreiession and related unfavorable general econooniditions, such as higher
unemployment rates, a constrained credit marketsing-related pressures, and increased businesstiogecosts can reduce spending for botl
leisure and business travel. Unfavorable econowmdlitions could also impact an airline’s abilityraise fares to counteract increased fuel,
labor, and other costs. It is foreseeable thah&rairline reorganizations, consolidation, bankeigs or liquidations may occur in the current
global recessionary environment, the effects ofclwhie are unable to predict. We cannot assurehodcurrence of these events, or pote
changes resulting from these events, will not haumbusiness or the industry.

A future act of terrorism, the threat of such acts escalation of U.S. military involvement overseasuld adversely affect our industr

Acts of terrorism, the threat of such acts or estgah of U.S. military involvement overseas couéyé an adverse effect on the airline
industry. In the event of a terrorist attack, wieetbr not successful, the industry would likely esipnce increased security requirements and
significantly reduced demand. We cannot assuretlyese actions, or consequences resulting from #egmns, will not harm our business or
the industry.

Changes in government regulations imposing additedmequirements and restrictions on our operationsthe U.S. Government
ceasing to provide adequate war risk insurance abiricrease our operating costs and result in seevitelays and disruptions.

Airlines are subject to extensive regulatory amghl@equirements, both domestically and internaiigninvolving significant complianc
costs. In the last several years, Congress hasg&mss, and the agencies of the federal governrmatading, but not limited to, the DOT,
FAA, CBP and the TSA have issued regulations madgti the operation of airlines that have requsigdiificant expenditures. We expect to
continue to incur expenses in connection with cympl with government regulations. Additional lawsgulations, taxes and airport rates and
charges have been proposed from time to time thatisignificantly increase the cost of airline md®ns or reduce the demand for air travel.
If adopted or materially amended, these measunds t@ave the effect of raising ticket prices, radgair travel demand and/or revenue and
increasing costs. The FAA has published new regustrelating to crew rest requirements, which weaurrently analyzing. Should the final
rules
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require us to make significant changes to our gestrequirements, our cost structure could beradiyeaffected. We cannot assure you these
and other laws or regulations enacted in the futtilenot harm our business.

The U.S. Government currently provides insuranaerage for certain claims resulting from acts ofdgsm, war or similar events.
Should this coverage no longer be offered, the m@mesthat would be available to us through comraégsiiation insurers may have
substantially less desirable terms, result in higlosts and not be adequate to protect our riskpdwhich could harm our business.

Compliance with future environmental regulations ngdnarm our business.

Many aspects of airlines’ operations are subjeatdoeasingly stringent environmental regulaticarsd growing concerns about climate
change may result in the imposition of additiorsgulation. There is growing consensus some forfadsral regulation may be forthcoming
with respect to greenhouse gas emissions (incluchnigon dioxide (COZ2)) and/or “cap and trade” llgisn, compliance with which could
result in the creation of substantial additionadtsdo us. The U.S. Congress is considering clicladémge legislation and the Environmental
Protection Agency issued a rule which regulategelaemitters of greenhouse gases. Since the danaédine industry is increasingly price
sensitive, we may not be able to recover the dosbmpliance with new or more stringent environnaéfdws and regulations from our
passengers, which could adversely affect our basin&lthough it is not expected the costs of commglyvith current environmental regulatic
will have a material adverse effect on our finahpisition, results of operations or cash flowsaseurance can be made the costs of
complying with environmental regulations in theuig will not have such an effect. The impact taod our industry from such actions is
likely to be adverse and could be significant, ipatarly if regulators were to conclude emissiorei commercial aircraft cause significant
harm to the upper atmosphere or have a greatercinopeclimate change than other industries.

Compliance with recently adopted DOT passenger potibns rules may increase our costs and may ultieda negatively impact our
operations.

The DOT'’s passenger protection rules, which becaffeetive in April 2010, provide, among other thinghat airlines return aircraft to
the gate for deplaning following tarmac delaysentain circumstances. On October 29, 2011, a sevieter storm and multiple failures of
critical navigational equipment in the New York#rea, severely impacted air travel in the noghednich resulted in several flight
diversions by JetBlue and many other domestic atatriational carriers to Hartford, CT’s Bradleydmtational Airport, or Bradley. JetBlue
diverted a total of six flights to Bradley, five which were held on the tarmac in excess of thmeed) thus exceeding the DOT’s established
tarmac delay limits. As a result, the DOT is inigating these incidents and we may be subjectnmiaetary penalty. Based on the allowable
maximum DOT fine proscribed by the Tarmac Delaytations, we could be assessed a fine of up tocappately $15 million. We have
issued compensation to the impacted customersciréance with our Customer Bill of Rights, and esenplying with the requests of the Dt
investigation and believe the final determinaticoni the DOT should be made in the next few months.

We could be adversely affected by an outbreak disease or an environmental disaster that signifitly affects travel behavior.

In 2009, there was an outbreak of the H1IN1 virugtwhad an adverse impact throughout our netwoadtuding on our operations to &
from Mexico. Any outbreak of a disease (including@sening of the outbreak of the H1N1 virus) afifeg travel behavior could have a
material adverse impact on us. In addition, outksed disease could result in quarantines of owsgrel or an inability to access facilities or
our aircraft, which could adversely affect our ggems. Similarly, if an environmental disaster &&y occur and adversely impact any of our
destination cities, travel behavior could be atdcand in turn, could materially adversely impagt lousiness.

The unknown impact from the Dodd-Frank Act as wel$ the rules to be promulgated under it could reguihe implementation of
additional policies and require us to incur adminrative compliance costs.

The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumerdetimn Act of 2010, or the Dodd-Frank Act, contaangariety of provisions
designed to regulate financial markets. Many aspefcthe Dodd-Frank Act remain subject to rulemgkimat will take effect over several
years, thus making it difficult to assess its intpatus at this time. We expect to successfullylémgnt any new applicable legislative ¢
regulatory requirements and may incur additionatsassociated with our compliance with the newlegpns and anticipated additional
reporting and disclosure obligations; howeverhat time we do not expect such costs to be materias.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Aircraft

As of December 31, 2012 , we operated a fleet stingiof 127 Airbus A320 aircraft each poweredWwg 1AE International Aero
Engines V2527-A5 engines and 53 EMBRAER 190 aitarath powered by two General Electric Engines G Bengines:

Seating Capital Operating Average Age
Aircraft Capacity Owned Leased Leased Total in Years
Airbus A320 15C 93 4 3C 127 7.4
EMBRAER 190 10C 23 — 3C 53 4.6
Totals 11€ 4 6C 18C 6.7

Our aircraft leases have an average remaining teaseof approximately 8.8 years at December 31220The earliest of these terms
ends in 2014 and the latest ends in 2026 . We ti@veption to extend most of these leases for madik periods or to purchase the aircraft at
the end of the related lease term. All but 11 of 46 owned aircraft and all but nine of our 38 edrspare engines are subject to secured de
financing.

In July 2012, we amended our EMBRAER purchase ageeé accelerating the delivery of one aircraft@d2, which was previously
scheduled for delivery in 2014. Additionally, wetexded the date for which we may elect not to frimend our purchase agreement to ¢
a new EMBRAER 190 variant, if developed, to July 3Q13. If not elected, seven EMBRAER 190 aircvadtpreviously deferred may either
be returned to their previously committed to deljvdates in 2013 and 2014 or canceled and sulmjazricellation fees. In December 2012, we
further amended our EMBRAER purchase agreementeaatiag the delivery of four aircraft from 20182013.

As of December 31, 2012 , we had on order 115afiravhich are scheduled for delivery through 20&ur aircraft delivery schedule

Firm
Airbus Airbus Airbus EMBRAER

Year A320 A321 A320neo 190 Total
2013 3 4 — 7 14
2014 — 9 — 1 10
2015 — 10 — 7 17
2016 3 7 — 8 18
2017 8 = = 5 13
2018 — — 10 3 13
2019 = = 10 = 10
2020 — — 10 — 10
2021 — — 10 — 10

14 30 40 31 115
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Facilities

We occupy all of our facilities at each of the aitg we serve under leases or other occupancyragrés. Our agreements for terminal
passenger service facilities, which include ticd@inter and gate space, operations support areldagiydge service offices, generally have
terms ranging from less than one year to five yemrd contain provisions for periodic adjustmeriteeatal rates, landing fees and other
charges applicable under the type of lease. Weagitsoesponsible for maintenance, insurance,iesiland certain other facility-related
expenses and services. We have entered into wsgaments at each of the airports we serve prayidinthe non-exclusive use of runways,
taxiways and other airport facilities. Landing feesler these agreements are typically based omutimder of aircraft landings and the weight
of the aircraft.

Our focus cities include New York, Boston, Long BeaOrlando, Fort Lauderdale and San Juan, Puécto R

In November 2005, we executed a lease agreememthatPANYNJ for the construction and operatioffefminal 5 which became our
principal base of operations at JFK; we began &raip from it in October 2008. The lease term emd®ctober 22, 2038, the thirtieth
anniversary of the date of our beneficial occupafahis terminal, and we have a one-time earlgnteation option five years prior to the end
of the scheduled lease term. In December 2010 xeeuéed a supplement to this lease agreementdoréiminal 6 property (our original base
of operations at JFK) adjacent to our operatiorigeaminal 5 for a term of five years, which prodeertain use and development rights. In
2012, we commenced construction on an expansiderminal 5, or T5i, which will be used as an intgfanal arrival facility.

Our operations at Boston’s Logan International Aitpor Logan, are based at Terminal C where weatpd 7 gates and 42 ticket
counter positions. In 2011, Massport completed vemhnecting two concourses within Terminal C, caizing the security checkpoint and
providing our customers the convenience of 14 goiotiis gates.

Our West Coast operations are based at Long Beartichal Airport, or Long Beach, which serves ttaeslAngeles basin. We operate
four gates at Long Beach. In 2010, the Long Beaicho#t began work on redevelopment efforts, inahgda new parking structure and new
terminal, which opened in December 2012.

In Florida, our primary operations are at Orlandtnational Airport, or Orlando, and Fort Laudédedidollywood International Airport,
or Fort Lauderdale. We operate from Terminal A imta@do with eight domestic and one internationaégl Fort Lauderdale, we operate fr
Terminal 3 with seven domestic gates.

Our operations in San Juan, Puerto Rico are badadsaMufioz Marin International Airport, or Sanaiu In June 2012, we relocated our
San Juan operations to a newly renovated Terminitthpreferential use of seven gates.

We lease a 70,000 square foot aircraft maintenhangar and an adjacent 32,000 square foot offidexamehouse facility at JFK to
accommodate our technical support operations assepger provisioning personnel. The ground leasthi® site expires in 2030. In addition,
we occupy a building at JFK where we store aircspéire parts and perform ground equipment maintenduring 2012, we moved to Hangar
8 in Boston, a total of approximately 80,000 squast of space, which includes an aircraft mainterehangar and office space. The ground
lease for this site expires in 2017.

We also occupy a training center at Orlando Intiéonal Airport which is equipped with seven fulight simulators, two cabin trainers, a
training pool, classrooms and support areas. Huititl/ is being used for the initial and recurrénaining of our pilots and in-flight crew, as
well as support training for our technical opemasi@nd airport crew. In addition, we lease a 704&fitare foot hangar at Orlando International
Airport which is used by Live TV for the installati and maintenance of in-flight satellite telewsgystems and aircraft maintenance. The
ground leases for our Orlando support facilitiegiexin 2035.

As of December 31, 2012, our primary corporateceffiwere located in Long Island City, New York, where occupy space under a
lease that expires in 2023. Our office in Salt L&k, Utah, where we occupy space under a leageesttpires in 2014, contains a core team o
employees who are responsible for group salespmgstservice, dttome reservation agent supervision, disbursemeauitsertain other finant
functions.

At most other locations, our passenger and baghageling space is leased directly from the airpathority on varying terms depend
on prevailing practice at each airport. We alsontzén administrative offices, terminal, and othigpart facilities, training facilities,
maintenance facilities, and other facilities, icleaase as necessary to support our operatiohs itittes we serve.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

In the ordinary course of our business, we areygarvarious legal proceedings and claims whichbekeve are incidental to the
operation of our business. Other than as desctihddr Note 1Z=ontingencies to our consolidated financial statgsacluded in Part Il Ite
8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we believe thtimate outcome of these proceedings to whiclaneecurrently a party will not have a
material adverse effect on our business, finarpmaltion, results of operations or cash flows.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable
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EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

Certain information concerning JetBlse2xecutive officers as of the date of this refatbws. There are no family relationships betw:
any of our executive officers.

David Barger, age 55, is our President and Chief Executived®ffiHe has served in this capacity since May 20@Fas President since
June 2009. He is also a member of our Board ofdiirs. He previously served as our President frargust 1998 to September 2007 and
Chief Operating Officer from August 1998 to Mardb0Z. From 1992 to 1998, Mr. Barger served in vaimanagement positions with
Continental Airlines, including Vice President, Nemik hub. He held various director level position€antinental Airlines from 1988 to 1995.
From 1982 to 1988, Mr. Barger served in varioustfms with New York Air, including Director of Stians.

Mark D. Powers age 59, is our Chief Financial Officer, a positlee has held since April 2012. Mr. Powers joinednuJuly 2006 as
Treasurer and Vice President, Corporate Financev&$epromoted to Senior Vice President, Treasar20D7. Prior to joining JetBlue, Mr.
Powers was an independent advisor to several enia¢ilated companies and has held a number ofi@osiin both the finance and legal
departments of Continental Airlines, Northwest iiels and General Electric's jet engine unit.

Rob Maruster, age 41, is our Executive Vice President and QDjggrating Officer and has served in this capasiitge June 2009.
Mr. Maruster joined JetBlue in 2005 as Vice Presid®perations Planning, after a 12-year caredr dlta Air Lines in a variety of
leadership positions with increasing responsibk#itin the carrier's Marketing and Customer Serdiggartments, culminating in being
responsible for all operations at Delta’s largegi hs Vice President, Airport Customer Service atsield-Jackson Atlanta International
Airport. In 2006, Mr. Maruster was promoted to Senice President, Airports and Operational Plagrand in 2008, Mr. Maruster’'s
responsibilities expanded to include the CustoneeviSes group which included Airports, Inflight Sies, Reservations, and System
Operations.

Robin Hayes age 46, is our Executive Vice President and GB@hmercial Officer. He joined JetBlue in AugusD8after nineteen
years at British Airways. In his last role at BsftiAirways, Mr. Hayes served as Executive Vice ilezg for The Americas and before that
served in a number of operational and commercisitipos in the UK and Germany.

James Hnat age 42, is our Executive Vice President Corpobditairs, General Counsel and Secretary and hagddn this capacity
since April 2007. He served as our Senior Vice iHezg, General Counsel and Assistant Secretarg $ifarch 2006 and as our General
Counsel and Assistant Secretary from February 2008arch 2006. Mr. Hnat is a member of the bar ey ork and Massachusetts.

Don Danielsage 45, is our Vice President and Chief Accoun@fiicer, a position he has held since May 2009 skleved as our Vice
President and Corporate Controller since Octob87 2Ble previously served as our Assistant Contrsilece July 2006 and Director of
Financial Reporting since October 2002.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY; RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Globak8eMarket under the symbol JBLU. The table belbawgs the high and low
sales prices for our common stock.

High Low

2011 Quarter Ended

March 31 $ 7.1 % 5.44
June 30 6.3¢ 5.3t
September 30 6.2¢€ 3.8¢
December 31 5.6 3.4C
2012 Quarter Ended

March 31 $ 6.3z $ 4,73
June 30 5.4 4.0¢€
September 30 5.9¢ 4.7¢
December 31 5.9¢ 4,717

As of January 31, 2013, there were approximate/idders of record of our common stock.

We have not paid cash dividends on our common stadkhave no current intention of doing so. Anyfatdetermination to pay cash
dividends will be at the discretion of our Boardifectors, subject to applicable limitations unBedaware law, and will be dependent upon
our results of operations, financial condition aider factors deemed relevant by our Board of Damsc

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Afiated Purchases

Total number of shares Maximum number of

Total Number  Average purchased as part of  shares that may yet to be
of Shares price paid publicly announced purchased under the
Period Purchased per share program program
October 2012 (1) —$ = =
November 2012 (1) 478,88: % 5.11 478,88:
December 2012 (1) 3,598,76: $ 5.5¢ 3,598,76.
Total 4,077,64'$ 5.5¢% 4,077,64! 20,922,35

(1) In September 2012, our Board of Directors aped a share repurchase program for up to 25 miii@ares over a five year period.
The repurchases may be commenced or suspendedirfirerto time without prior notice. The shares repased under our share
repurchase program were purchased in open masketactions and are held as treasury stock.

Stock Performance Graph

This performance graph shall not be deemed “filedth the SEC or subject to Section 18 of the Exghkalkct, nor shall it be deemed
incorporated by reference in any of our filings enthe Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

The following line graph compares the cumulativialtstockholder return on our common stock withdheulative total return of the
Standard & Poos 500 Stock Index and the NYSE Arca Airline Indeonfi December 31, 2007 to December 31, 2012. Thepaason assumi
the investment of $100 in our common stock andacheof the foregoing indices and reinvestment lodigldends. The stock performance
shown represents historical performance and isepresentative of future stock performance.
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—k— JetBlue Airways Corporation S&P 500 Stock Index
= @ = NYSE Arca Airline Index (1)
12/31/2007 12/31/2008 12/31/2009 12/31/2010 12/31/2011 12/31/2012
JetBlue Airways Corporation $ 10C $ 12C % 92 % 11z $ 88 % 97
S&P 500 Stock Index 10C 63 8C 92 94 10¢
NYSE Arca Airline Index (1) 10C 71 99 137 95 12¢

(1) As of December 31, 2012 , the NYSE Arca Airlindex consisted of Alaska Air Group Inc., AMR Corgtion, Copa Holdings S.A., Delta
Air Lines, Inc., Gol Linhas Aereas Inteligentes S.Hawaiian Holdings, JetBlue Airways Corporatitt§ Airways Group, Inc., LAN
Airlines S.A., Southwest Airlines Company, Repulflicways Holding, Inc., Ryanair Holdings Ads., Skgét, Inc, TAM S.A., and UAL
Corporation.

25




ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following financial information for the five ges ended December 31, 2012 has been derived fuocoasolidated financial
statements. This information should be read inwaetjon with the consolidated financial statememd related notes thereto included
elsewhere in this report.

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Statements of Operations Data:
Operating revenues $ 498: $ 450 % 3,77¢ % 3,29: % 3,392
Operating expenses:
Aircraft fuel and related taxes 1,80¢ 1,66¢ 1,11¢ 94t 1,39
Salaries, wages and benefits (1) 1,04¢ 947 891 77€ 694
Landing fees and other rents 271 24t 22¢ 218 19¢
Depreciation and amortization (2) 25¢ 23¢ 22C 22¢ 20t
Aircraft rent 13C 13t 12€ 12¢ 12¢
Sales and marketing 204 19¢ 17¢ 151 151
Maintenance materials and repairs 33¢ 227 17z 14¢ 127
Other operating expenses (3) 54¢ 532 51t 41¢ 377
Total operating expenses 4,60¢ 4,18: 3,44¢ 3,001 3,27¢
Operating income 37¢€ 322 33< 28t 113
Other income (expense) (4) (167) a77) (172 (187) (202
Income (loss) before income taxes 20¢ 14k 161 104 (89
Income tax expense (benefit) 81 58 64 43 (5)
Net income (loss) $ 126 $ 86 9 97 $ 61 9 (84)
Earnings (loss) per common share:
Basic $ 0.4t % 0.31 % 0.3¢ % 024 % (0.37)
Diluted $ 04C % 0.2 % 031 % 021 % (0.37)
Other Financial Data:
Operating margin 7.5% 7.1% 8.8% 8.€% 3.2%
Pre-tax margin 4.2% 3.2% 4.2% 3.2% (2.6)%
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges (5) 1.7% 1.52x 1.5¢x 1.3% —
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ 69¢ 9 614 $ 52: % 48¢ % (27)
Net cash used in investing activities (867) (502) (69€) (457) (247)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (322) 96 (25¢) 30€ 635

(1) In 2010, we incurred approximately $9 millimnonetime implementation expenses related to our newoer service syste

(2) In 2008, we wroteff $8 million related to our temporary terminatiity at JFK

(3) In 2012, we sold six spare engines and twarair resulting in gains of approximately $10 naifii Additionally, in 2012, LiveTV
terminated a customer contract resulting in a gaepproximately $8 million. In 2009, 2008 and 20@& sold two, nine and three
aircraft, respectively, which resulted in gainsbafmillion, $23 million and $7 million, respectiyelin 2010, we recorded an impairm
loss of $6 million related to the spectrum licehséd by our LiveTV subsidiary. In 2010, we alsouned approximately $13 million in
one-time implementation expenses related to ourcwestomer service system.

(4) In 2012, we recorded a net of $1 million isdes related to the early extinguishment of $22llomin principal of debt securing nine
aircraft. In 2011, we recorded $6 million loss tethto the repurchase of $39 million principal amtoof our 6.75% convertible
debentures due 2039. In 2008, we recorded $13omilti additional interest expense related to thiy eanversion of a portion of our
5.5% convertible debentures due 2038 and a $1lé{bmijain on extinguishment of debt. In 2008, weorded a holding loss of $53
million related to the valuation of our auctiongaecurities.

(5) Earnings were inadequate to cover fixed charge®lBBp million for the year ended December 31, 2

26




As of December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(in millions)
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 182 % 672 % 468 % 89€ $ 561
Investment securities 68¢ 591 62¢ 24¢ 244
Total assets 7,07C 7,071 6,59: 6,54¢ 6,01¢
Total debt 2,851 3,13¢ 3,03¢ 3,30¢ 3,14¢
Common stockholders’ equity 1,88¢ 1,75% 1,65¢ 1,54¢ 1,27(C
Year Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Operating Statistics (unaudited):
Revenue passengers (thousands) 28,95¢ 26,37( 24,25¢ 22,45( 21,92(
Revenue passenger miles (millions) 33,56 30,69¢ 28,27¢ 25,95¢ 26,07:
Available seat miles (ASMs) (millions) 40,07t 37,23: 34,744 32,55¢ 32,44;
Load factor 83.8% 82.4% 81.4% 79.1% 80.4%
Aircraft utilization (hours per day) 11.¢ 11.7 11.€ 11t 12.1
Average fare $ 157.1: $ 154.7¢  $ 140.6¢ $ 130.67 $ 139.5¢
Yield per passenger mile (cents) 13.5¢ 13.2¢ 12.0% 11.3(C 11.7:
Passenger revenue per ASM (cents) 11.3¢ 10.9¢ 9.82 9.01 9.4:
Operating revenue per ASM (cents) 12.4: 12.1(C 10.8¢ 10.11 10.4¢
Operating expense per ASM (cents) 11.4¢ 11.2¢ 9.92 9.24 10.11
Operating expense per ASM, excluding fuel

(cents) 6.9¢ 6.7¢ 6.71 6.3¢ 5.8(C
Operating expense per ASM, excluding fuel &

profit sharing (cents) 6.9¢ 6.7€ 6.71 6.33 5.8C
Airline operating expense per ASM (cents) (6) 11.3¢ 11.0€ 9.71 8.9¢ 9.87
Departures 264,60( 243,44t 225,50: 215,52¢ 205,38
Average stage length (miles) 1,08t 1,091 1,10C 1,07¢ 1,12C
Average number of operating aircraft during

period 173.¢ 164.¢ 153.t 148.( 139.t
Average fuel cost per gallon, including fuel taxe® 321 % 3171 % 22¢ % 208 % 3.0¢
Fuel gallons consumed (millions) 563 52t 48€ 45E 452
Full-time equivalent employees at period end (6) 12,07( 11,73¢ 11,12 10,70« 9,89t

(6) Excludes results of operations and employéésveTV, LLC, which are unrelated to our airlin@erations and are immaterial to our
consolidated operating results.

The following terms used in this section and elsenstin this report have the meanings indicatedvizelo
“ Revenue passengérsepresents the total number of paying passerfgmis on all flight segments.
“ Revenue passenger milagepresents the number of miles flown by revenagspngers.
“ Available seat milesrepresents the number of seats available forgragss multiplied by the number of miles the saetsflown.

“ Load factor” represents the percentage of aircraft seatingagpactually utilized (revenue passenger milesdéid by available seat
miles).

“ Aircraft utilization” represents the average number of block hoursabgeper day per aircraft for the total fleet otwift.

“ Average fare represents the average one-way fare paid pértfiggment by a revenue passenger.
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“ Yield per passenger miterepresents the average amount one passengetqiy®ne mile.

“ Passenger revenue per available seat rhilepresents passenger revenue divided by avaitsaemiles.
“ Operating revenue per available seat niilepresents operating revenues divided by availabht miles.
“ Operating expense per available seat itepresents operating expenses divided by avails&at miles.

“ Operating expense per available seat mile, exclyfliel” represents operating expenses, less aircraft disgdted by available seat
miles.

“ Average stage lengthrepresents the average number of miles flownflggrt.

“ Average fuel cost per galldrrepresents total aircraft fuel costs, includinglftaxes and effective portion of fuel hedgingjdid by the
total number of fuel gallons consumed.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW

In 2012, we executed on our plans for sustaingdotditable growth while continuing to strengtherr balance sheet and improve our operatin
margin. Every day, we commit to delivering a safd eeliable JetBlue Experience to our customerdenhaintaining a competitive cost
advantage and improving returns for our sharehslder

2012 Highlights and Accomplishments

»  We reported our fourth consecutive year of nebme and our highest earnings per diluted sh@ré0$ since 2003, and generated
record revenues of nearly $5 billion .

 We improved our return on invested capital, @@, by approximately one percentage point eveweagrew our operations,
increasing capacity by 8%.

* We generated $698 million in cash from operatiashile strengthening our balance sheet with irserddines of credit and reductions
to our overall debt balance.

We expanded our portfolio of commercial airlpertnerships, adding eight new airline partnerstiping the year, bringing our total
to 22 airline partnerships as of December 31, 2012.

»  We further solidified our position as New York'snhetown airline with the opening of our new headtgrarin Long Island City and
we commenced construction of an international atsifacility at John F. Kennedy International Airper JFK.

We were recognized by J.D. Power and Assocfatethe eighth consecutive year as the “Highegtiitine Customer Satisfaction
among Low-Cost Carriers.”

* We preserved the direct relationship with our Cre@mrbers, an important driver of our culture and i

We continue to deliver a unique JetBlue Experignaaur customers with the superior service theyelmme to expect from us. In
addition, our commitment to deliver increased nesuior our shareholders remains at the core obwerall business strategy. We believe our
continued focus on financial discipline, produgtoration and network enhancements, combined wittservice excellence, will drive our
future success. Some of our major initiatives ascdbed below.

Strengthening of our Balance She

Throughout 2012, we were focused on strengthenimdpalance sheet. We believe we made significagrpss in doing so, and we
remain committed to further improving our balanbeet. We ended the year with unrestricted cash, @asivalents and shaterm investmen
at approximately 15% of trailing twelve months neue. During 2012, we prudently used cash to investir business while maintaining a
solid liquidity profile. Throughout the year, wedteced our overall debt balance by $285 million wliilcreasing our total property and
equipment by nearly 10%. Our investments also deducapital spending for slot acquisitions, oueiinational arrival facility at JFK and
aircraft prepayments. We believe spending wisely mdll generate future returns, through balancesslitaprovements and, ultimately, by
helping us maintain the flexibility to be able &ké advantage of future growth opportunities. Addally, in September 2012, our Board of
Directors approved a share repurchase progranpftw @5 million shares over a five year period. iDgthe fourth quarter of 2012, we
repurchased approximately 4.1 million shares ofammmon stock for $23 million .

Airport Infrastructure Investments

During 2012, we made significant airport infrastire enhancements in several of our focus citreSan Juan, we moved into a larger
space in the all-new Terminal A at Luis Mufioz Mdriternational Airport. In Boston, we opened a nevanovated hangar to support our
growing operations. In New York, we commenced ansion of a new international arrival extensiorotg existing Terminal 5 at JFK. The
creation of a new dedicated site to handle U.StdDus and Border Protection checks at Terminal beliihinate the need for our international
customers to arrive at an often slow Terminal 4.dng Beach, we moved into our own concourse imgwly modernized terminal facility.

Network Initiatives

We continue to make network adjustments in furthegaof our overall network growth plans. Our netwfmrcus over the past several
years has primarily been on Boston and the Caribbhed Latin America. We feel there remains oppatyun
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grow our revenue in these regions due to our diffeated product offerings. In Boston, for examplih our product and network
enhancements, we have been able to better accornertmgsiness customers which has helped us to mihue momentum from corporate
share gains.

Throughout 2012, we continued to improve our raleeato business customers in Boston. We offer nopm-service to more destinations
from Boston's Logan International Airport than anilger carrier at Boston. East Coast short-haul etarik Boston were the best performing
region in our network during 2012, as measureddayr pver year unit revenue growth, even while waeddsignificant capacity.

Our growth in the Caribbean and Latin America agntinued in 2012; we now have approximately 27%uwfcapacity in this important
region. We remain focused on growing our networdt famther reducing seasonality by targeting newamers, including leisure travelers,
business travelers, visiting friends and relatiees/FR, traffic and international airline partners

New Service

As part of our ongoing network initiatives and muwaiptimization efforts, we continued to make schednd frequency adjustments
throughout 2012. In Boston, particularly, we didtsdetter accommodate business customers andseir relevance. During 2012, we
commenced service to five new destinations: Datas/Worth, Texas, Cartagena, Colombia, Samana,iioam Republic, Grand Cayman,
Cayman Islands and Providence, Rhode Island. Axtditly, we have announced plans to begin servitleedollowing destinations in 2013:
Charleston, South Carolina, Albuquerque, New Mexiluladelphia, Pennsylvania and Medellin, ColomfBiar growth includes adding new
routes between existing cities. Our commitmentrtdifable growth also resulted in the discontinoatof certain routes and reduced service in
our network throughout 2012.

Ancillary Revenue Initiatives

Our ancillary revenue initiatives are focused arréasing high margin revenue streams. Our EvenMaued8uct continued to be
successful throughout 2012. We reconfigured our RMBR 190 fleet, converting eight seats per aird@ftvenMore™ Space seats.
Additionally, we began selling EvenMore™ Speed, expedited security option, on a standalone basisast of our U.S. domestic locations.

During 2012, we introduced a new badge to our TlueBequent flyer program called Mosaic, whiclidésigned to recognize and rew
our most loyal customers. The program's enhancenecitide early boarding and a free second chelbbgdamong many others. We also
launched a new co-branded credit card exclusivalydsidents of Puerto Rico, where we are the &rgarier, which will allow residents to
enjoy the full benefits of our TrueBlue loyalty gram.

Outlook for 2013

As we enter 2013, we believe we are well positioteelduild upon our 2012 performance. We aim towlimproved year over year
margins and increased returns for our sharehol@ns2013 plan aims to achieve these goals andreesswe are able to maintain our
competitive cost advantage and build upon our kigjlne network. We plan to introduce new servicevalt as expand our portfolio of
commercial airline partnerships during 2013. Weticwously look to expand our other ancillary revermpportunities, including our
EvenMore™ product offering and improving our True8loyalty program. We also remain committed terggthening our balance sheet and
prudently investing in infrastructure and produth@ cements to enable us to reap future benefits.

For the full year, we estimate our operating cagéoi increase approximately 5.5% to 7.5% over 2@1BA the net addition of three
Airbus A320 aircraft and seven EMBRAER 190 airctafbur operating fleet. We will also take delivefyour first four Airbus A321 aircraft
in the latter part of 2013. The entry into serviege of the Airbus A321 will depend on the timimglasuccessful completion of the FAA
certification process. Assuming fuel prices of $3p2r gallon, net of our fuel hedging activity, @ast per available seat mile for 2013 is
expected to increase by 1.5% to 3.5% over 201% &kypected increase is primarily a result of cargthmaintenance cost pressures associat
with the aging of our fleet. Additionally, salarje@sages and benefits are expected to increaseodhe tncreasing tenure of our Crewmembers
combined with efforts to maintain competitivenesur compensation packages.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Year 2012 Compared to Year 2011
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We reported net income of $128 million in 2012 camgyl to net income of $86 million in 2011 . In 2QM2e had operating income of
$376 million , an increase of $54 million over 201dnd an operating margin of 7.5%, up 0.4 poirdsf2011. Diluted earnings per share wert
$0.40 for 2012 compared to diluted earnings pereshf$0.28 for 2011 .

During 2012 , despite uncertain economic conditi@nsevere hurricane hitting the core of our op@natand the persistent
competitiveness of the airline industry, we managegroduce solid financial results. We generatausistent unit revenue growth throughout
the year by continuing to manage the structurenaixcbf our network. We further complemented outdrigally leisure focused travel markets
with higher yielding business markets. Our effootgapitalize on key growth regions were primafdgused in Boston and the Caribbean
region, which resulted in increased capacity dugig? .

Our on-time performance, defined by the DOT asalsiwithin 14 minutes of schedule, was 79.1% ih26ompared to 73.3% in 2011.
While improved in 2012, our on-time performancetighout the year and on a year-over-year basisinechahallenged by our concentration
of operations in the northeast United States, whartains some of the most congested and delayemiports in the U.S.

2012 vs. 2011 Highlights

» During the fourth quarter of 2012, Hurricane Sadihgctly and significantly impacted our operatioa®sing many East Coast airpc
for several days. We canceled approximately 1,1#8t§ over a six day period.

» Operating capacity increased approximately 8% t0&8illion available seat miles in 20
» Average fares for the year increased 2% to $157cwdiso resulted in an increase of $4 million $s@ciated credit card fe

e Operating expenses per available seat mile incte2®eto 11.49 cents. Excluding fuel, our cost p&ilable seat mile increased 3%
2012.

» Invested in four new owned EMBRAER 190 airciaitd seven new owned Airbus A320 aircraft. Eighthefe aircraft were debt
financed.

« Commenced service to five new cities during 20X#alldepartures increased ¢
» Extended the leases on three aircraft during 201@eer rates
* The average age of our fleet increased to 6.7 yaadsas of December 31, 2012, our oldest operaticgaft had an age of 13.1 ye.

» Early extinguishment of approximately $220 roitliin principal of long-term debt resulted in a aE$1 million in losses recorded in
interest income and other.

Operating Revenues

Year-over-Year

(Revenues in millions) Change
2012 2011 $ %

Passenger Revenue $ 455 $ 4,08( $ 47C 11.5
Other Revenue 432 424 8 2.C
Operating Revenues $ 498: $ 4,50¢ $ 47€ 10.€
Average Fare $ 1571 $ 154.7: 2.37 g
Yield per passenger mile (cents) 13.5¢ 13.2¢ 0.2¢ 2.C
Passenger revenue per ASM (cents) 11.3¢ 10.9¢ 0.3¢ 3.€
Operating revenue per ASM (cents) 12.4: 12.1C 0.3t 2.€
Average stage length (miles) 1,08t 1,091 (6) (0.5
Revenue passengers (thousands) 28,95¢ 26,37( 2,58¢ 9.¢
Revenue passenger miles (millions) 33,56: 30,69¢ 2,86¢ 9.2
Available Seat Miles (ASMs) 40,07t 37,23. 2,84: 7.€
Load Factor 83.8% 82.4% 1.4 pts

We derive our revenue primarily from transportiraggengers on our aircraft. Passenger revenue deddon 91% of our total operating
revenues for the year ended December 31, 2012eriReg generated from international routes, includin
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Puerto Rico, accounted for 26% of our total passengvenues in 2012 . Revenue is recognized eithen transportation is provided or after
the ticket or customer credit expires. We measapacity in terms of available seat miles, whichrespnts the number of seats available for
passengers multiplied by the number of miles tlassare flown. Yield, or the average amount onasgrager pays to fly one mile, is calculated
by dividing passenger revenue by revenue passemites. We attempt to increase passenger revenoeply by increasing our yield per flig
which produces higher revenue per available selat o RASM. Our objective is to optimize our fanéx to increase our overall average fare
while continuing to provide our customers with catitive fares. Passenger revenue also includesivevieom our EvenMore™ Space
ancillary product offering.

In 2012, the increase in passenger revenues wasynagiributable to the increased capacity anddase in yield. Our EvenMore™ Sp
seats continued to be a significant ancillary potdgenerating approximately $150 million in revenan increase of approximately 19% over
2011 primarily as a result of additional EvenMor&pace seats on our EMBRAER 190 fleet, increasedaitgpand revised pricing.

Other revenue consists primarily of fees chargezigiomers in accordance with our published pdicidese include reservation
changes and baggage limitations, EvenMore™ Spegeldéed security, the marketing component of TrueBioint sales, concession
revenues, revenues associated with transportingaméicargo, revenues associated with the groundlimg of other airlines and rental
income. Revenues earned by our subsidiary, LivdT\G, for the sale of, and on-going services prodiflar, in-flight entertainment systems
on other airlines are also included in Other Reeenu

Other revenue increased primarily as a result gfhmillion increase in revenues from certain pagsr related fees such as change
and excess baggage. These increased fees wertdyshifiset by a $10 million guarantee recorded @12 related to our co-branded credit card

Operating Expenses

Year-over-Year

(dollars in millions) Change per ASM

2012 2011 $ % 2012 2011 % Change
Aircraft fuel and related taxes $ 1,80¢ $ 1,66/ $ 14z 8.€ 4.50 4.47 0.¢
Salaries, wages and benefits 1,04¢ 947 97 10.z 2.60 2.54 2.4
Landing fees and other rents 271 24k 32 12.¢ 0.69 0.66 4.8
Depreciation and amortization 25¢ 23¢ 25 10.t 0.65 0.63 2.7
Aircraft rent 13C 13t 5) (3.6) 0.33 0.36 (10.9
Sales and marketing 204 19¢ 5 3.C 0.51 0.53 4.3
Maintenance materials and repair: 33¢ 227 111 48.4 0.84 0.61 37.¢
Other operating expenses 54¢ 53z 17 3.2 1.37 1.43 (4.2
Total operating expenses $ 460t $ 4,182 $ 424 10.1 11.49 11.23 .2

Aircraft Fuel and Hedging

The price and availability of aircraft fuel are exhely volatile due to global economic and geojmaitfactors we can neither control nor
accurately predict. During 2012 fuel prices remdiwuelatile, increasing 1% over average 2011 prigés.maintain a diversified fuel hedge
portfolio by entering into a variety of fuel hedgentracts in order to provide some protection agfasharp and sudden volatility and further
increases in fuel prices. In total, we hedged 30%uo total 2012 fuel consumption. We also usedikerward price agreements, or FFPs,
which allow us to lock in a price for fixed quarg# of fuel to be delivered at a specified datthenfuture, to manage fuel price volatility. As of
December 31, 2012, we had outstanding fuel hedgiamis covering approximately 8% of our forecast@asumption for the first quarter of
2013 and 5% for the full year 2013. As of Decenfer2012, we had 6% of our 2013 fuel consumptiguirements covered under FFPs. In
January and February 2013, we entered into jetsivap and cap agreements covering an additionaif@¥r 2013 forecasted consumption.
We will continue to monitor fuel prices closely aintend to take advantage of reasonable fuel hedgiportunities as they become available.

Aircraft fuel expense represented approximately 40%ur total operating expenses. The increasear-pver-year average fuel cost per
gallon resulted in $20 million of higher fuel exjgen Additionally, we consumed 38 million more ga#i@f aircraft fuel, resulting in
$122 million of higher fuel expense. Based on oyreeted fuel volume for 2013, a 10% per galloneéase in the cost of aircraft fuel would
increase our annual fuel expense by approximated $nillion.
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During 2012, we recorded $10 million in effectiveesf hedge gains which offset fuel expense; thispames to $3 million in 2011. Fuel
derivatives not qualifying as cash flow hedges@t2resulted in approximately $3 million in lossesorded in interest income and other,
compared to an insignificant amount in 2011. Acemgnineffectiveness on fuel derivatives classifeexdcash flow hedges resulted in
insignificant losses in 2012 and $2 million in 20tdcorded in interest income and other. We arélerta predict what the amount of
ineffectiveness will be related to these instruragat the potential loss of hedge accounting wisaetermined on a derivative-by-derivative
basis, due to the volatility in the forward markitisthese commodities.

Salaries, Wages and Benefits

The increasing tenure of our Crewmembers, risiraitheare costs and efforts to maintain competigégsnin our overall compensation
packages are presenting cost pressures. In anpattemroactively manage future increases in heatthcosts as a result of new healthcare
reform legislation and impending tax increasescamprehensively re-designed our 2013 healthcarespla

During 2012, the average number of full-time eqlémbemployees increased by 4% resulting in areese to salaries, wages and
benefits. The average tenure of our Crewmembersased to 5.6 years as of December 31, 2012 mgguitian increase to average wages ant
benefits per full-time equivalent employees. Agsuit of increased wages, our guaranteed 5% regimeoontribution, which we refer to as
Retirement Plu, to all of our eligible Crewmembers increased Byndllion. Our increased profitability resulted$3 million of profit sharing
expense to be paid to our Crewmembers in March .2DtBng 2012, we also introducedR&tirement Advantageaogram, providing an
additional 3% retirement contribution for certafoor FAA-licensed Crewmembers, which resulted4méillion of increased expense.

Maintenance Materials and Repairs

Maintenance materials and repairs are generallgresgr when incurred unless covered by a long-tight hiour services contract.
Because the average age of our aircraft of 6.7s)isaelatively young, all of our aircraft currgntequire less maintenance than the fleet of
many of our competitors. As our fleet ages, oumggiance costs will increase significantly, botrearabsolute basis and as a percentage of
our unit costs, as older aircraft require additlpmeore expensive repairs over time.

In addition to the increase in operating aircrafi he aging of our fleet, several aircraft comafigof warranty contributed to higher
maintenance costs in 2012. Additionally, one of key engine and component repair maintenance peovidjuidated during the first quarter
of 2012. We believe the overall impact of the ldption was approximately $10 million in more cos#yairs while we found alternative
providers. During the third and fourth quarter 682, we engaged new maintenance providers to rephecliquidated provider. These new
maintenance providers will provide similar servieégompetitive rates. We are also working on @{term maintenance agreement for our
EMBRAER 190 aircraft components, which are curgentit covered under a maintenance agreement. Vieybedxpanding the scope of our
maintenance services covered under long-term agnetsnwill help us to better manage and predict teaance costs over time.

We are continuously exploring opportunities to gate and level the increase in maintenance expirtsading by improving operation
efficiencies. We also continue to work with ourigas maintenance repair partners and manufacturerst recently we entered into an
agreement to mitigate the risk of cost overrunsceased with our EMBRAER 190 heavy maintenance kbe@/e expect the rate of increast
maintenance expense to lessen in the next few gedi®e heavy maintenance hurdle from our mid-20@0aft deliveries subsides and we
benefit from new maintenance agreements for bottAG20 and E190 fleets.

Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses consist of purchasedcsar(including expenses related to fueling, grduamtdling, skycap, security and
janitorial services), insurance, personnel experges of goods sold to other airlines by LiveTYofessional fees, passenger refreshme
supplies, bad debts, communication costs and takes than payroll and fuel taxes. During 2012 had several norecurring items impactir
other operating expenses. LiveTV terminated a ecostaontract resulting in a gain of approximateByniillion. We sold two EMBRAER 190
aircraft and six spare aircraft engines resultmg gain of approximately $10 million.

Income Taxes

Our effective tax rate was 39% in 2012 comparedtlfs in 2011 . Our effective tax rate differs frone tstatutory income tax rate
primarily due to state income taxes and the nonscigility of certain items for tax purposes as & the relative size of these items to our
2012 pre-tax income of $209 million and our 2014-tax income of $145 million . The rate decreass at&ributable to reductions in certain
non-deductible items and the relative size of tliesas to our pre-tax income.
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Year 2011 Compared to Year 2010

We reported net income of $86 million in 2011 conegisto net income of $97 million in 2010. In 20%& had operating income of $322

million, a decrease of $11 million over 2010, andoaerating margin of 7.1%, down 1.7 points frord@@Diluted earnings per share were
$0.28 for 2011 compared to diluted earnings pereshf$0.31 for 2010.

We generated consistent unit revenue growth throuigthe year by managing our network and balantiegeasonality created by our

highly leisure focused business. We complementedetsure travel markets with higher yielding biesie markets and capitalized on key
growth regions, primarily Boston and the Caribbeaich resulted in increased capacity.

Our on-time performance, defined by the DOT asalsiwithin 14 minutes of schedule, was 73.3% ihI26ompared to 75.7% in 2010.

Our on-time performance throughout the year and gear-over-year basis remained challenged byiguoifisant operations in the northeast
United States.

2011 vs 2010 Highlights

During the first quarter of 2011, the winterrstioseason was extremely severe. The operationadhgd the severe storm season
pressured our CASM, excluding fuel, and negatiwelyacted our completion factor.

During the third quarter of 2011, Hurricane keeseverely impacted our operations as its pattefiesd/directly through the core of our
network. Flights were suspended in New York andt@asresulting in approximately 1400 cancellationsr a three day period.

Operating capacity increased approximately 7% t@3MBillion available seat miles in 20

Average fares for the year increased 10% ov&026 $155, which also resulted in an increaseldfiillion in associated credit card
fees.

Operating expenses per available seat mile asec 13% to 11.23 cents. Excluding fuel, our cestpailable seat mile increased
0.9% in 2011.

Invested in five new owned EMBRAER 190 aircraft &adr new owned Airbus A320 aircraft, all of whialere debt finance
Opened seven new cities in 2011. Total departm@sased 89
Extended the leases on four aircraft during 201avegr rates
The average age of our fleet increased to 6.1 yaatdsas of December 31, 2011, our oldest operaiiegaft had an age of 12.1 ye.
In 2010, we had several items impacting other dpey@xpenses which did not recur in 2(

o We incurred approximately $13 million in otiexe implementation expenses related to our newomer service syste

o We recorded a $6 million one-time impairment exqeerelated to the intangible assets and othes egsbciated with
developing an air to ground connectivity capability

o We paid a $5 million rescheduling fee in connectioth the deferral of aircra

Early extinguishment of $39 million par value ofr@75% Series A convertible debt due 2039 resuftek6 million in losses record
in interest income and other.
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Operating Revenues

Year-over-Year

(Revenues in millions) Change
2011 2010 $ %

Passenger Revenue 4,08( 3,412 66¢ 19.¢
Other Revenue 424 367 57 15.2
Operating Revenues 4,50 3,77¢ 728 19.2
Average Fare 154.7+ 140.6¢ 14.0¢ 10.C
Yield per passenger mile (cents) 13.2¢ 12.07 1.22 10.2
Passenger revenue per ASM (cents) 10.9¢ 9.82 1.14 11.€
Operating revenue per ASM (cents) 12.1C 10.8¢ 1.2z 11.2
Average stage length (miles) 1,091 1,10¢ (9) (0.8
Revenue passengers (thousands) 26,37( 24,25¢ 2.11¢ 8.7
Revenue passenger miles (millions) 30,69¢ 28,27¢ 2,41¢ 8.€
Available Seat Miles (ASMs) 37,23: 34,744 2,48¢ 7.2
Load Factor 82.4% 81.4% 1.C pts

Passenger revenues increased 20% mainly attrileut@ihe capacity increase along with the incréageeld. Revenue from our Even
More Space seats increased $36 million as a rekuitreased capacity and revised pricing.

Other revenue increased 15% as a result of a $llidmincrease in marketing related revenues a$ agean $18 million increase in
revenues from certain passenger related fees sudamge fees and excess baggage. LiveTV thirg marénues increased approximately $14
million.

Operating Expenses

Year-over-Year

(dollars in millions) Change per ASM

2011 2010 $ % 2011 2010 % Change
Aircraft fuel and related taxes $ 1,66/ $ 1,11t $ 54¢ 49.2 4.47 3.21 39.2
Salaries, wages and benefits 947 891 5€ 6.2 2.54 2.57 (0.9
Landing fees and other rents 24k 22¢ 17 7.9 0.6€ 0.6t 0.7
Depreciation and amortization 23¢ 22C 13 6.3 0.6: 0.6: (0.9
Aircraft rent 13E 12€ 9 7.1 0.3¢€ 0.3¢€ —
Sales and marketing 19¢ 17¢ 2C 10.¢ 0.5: 0.52 3.5
Maintenance materials and repai 227 172 55 32.1 0.61 0.5C 23.2
Other operating expenses 532 51k 17 3.4 1.4% 1.4¢ (3.5
Total operating expenses $ 4,182 $ 3,44¢ $ T3¢ 21.¢ 11.2¢ 9.92 13.c

Aircraft Fuel and Hedging

Aircraft fuel expense increased 49%, and repredempproximately 40% of our total operating expensesrage fuel cost per gallon
increased 38% to $3.17 compared to $2.29 in 2@Hting in $461 million of higher fuel expense.dittbnally, we consumed 39 million
more gallons of aircraft fuel, resulting in $88 Insih of higher fuel expense.

We hedged approximately 43% of our total 2011 émelsumption. We recorded $3 million in effectivelfhedge gains, which offset fuel
expense, versus $3 million in effective fuel heliigses during 2010, which were an increase toeeénse. Accounting ineffectiveness on
fuel derivatives classified as cash flow hedgeslted in losses of $2 million in each of 2011 ai®d @, recorded in interest income and other.
We are unable to predict what the amount of ingiffeness will be related to
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these instruments, or the potential loss of hedgeunting which is determined on a derivative-byndgive basis, due to the volatility in the
forward markets for these commaodities.

Salaries, Wages and Benefits

The increase in salaries, wages and benefits vimaply due to a 5% increase in the number of ayersumber of full-time equivalent
employees needed to support our profitable growahs The increasing seniority levels of our Crewmhers combined with pay and benefit
increases also contributed to higher expense.

Maintenance Materials and Repairs

Maintenance expense represented a significantbadienge in 2011, increasing $55 million. In amditto the additional operating
aircraft and the aging of our fleet, several aifitocaming off of warranty contributed to higher miEnance costs. Maintenance expense is
expected to increase significantly as our fleesags older aircraft need additional, more expenspairs over time.

Income Taxes

Our effective tax rate was 41% in 2011 compareih in 2010. Our effective tax rate differs frone statutory income tax rate
primarily due to state income taxes, the changalnation allowance and the noeductibility of certain items for tax purposes dhd relative
size of these items to our 2011 pre-tax incomeldbdmillion and our 2010 pre-tax income of $161lionl. The rate increase was due to a
reduction in the valuation allowance attributallestate net operating loss carryforwards in 2010.

Costs per Available Seat Mile (Non-GAAP)

Our costs per available seat mile, or CASM, a commetric used in the airline industry, are sumnetim the table below. We have
listed separately our fuel costs and profit shaergense. While these amounts are included in CA8helieve excluding fuel costs, which
are subject to many economic and political fackagond our control, as well as profit sharing, hig sensitive to volatility in earnings, from
this metric is useful to management and invesities believe this non-GAAP measure is more indicadifzeur ability to manage our costs and
provides a meaningful comparison of our resulth#airline industry and our prior year resultadstors should consider this non-GAAP
financial measure in addition to, and not as atiuls for, our financial performance measures preg in accordance with GAAP.

Reconciliation of Operating expense per ASM, excludg fuel and profit sharing
(in millions, except per ASM data in cents)

Per ASM
Year-over-
2012 2011 Year Change
$ per ASM $ per ASM %
Total operating expenses $  4,60¢ 11.4¢ $ 4,18C 11.2¢ 2.2%
Less: Aircraft fuel and related taxes 1,80¢ 4.5C 1,66¢ 4.47 0.¢
Operating expenses, excluding fuel 2,80( 6.9¢ 2,51¢ 6.7€ 3.3
Less: Profit sharing 3 0.01 — — —
Operating expense, excluding fuel & profit shar$ 2,791 6.9¢ $ 251 6.7¢ 3.2

Quarterly Results of Operations

The following table sets forth selected financialaland operating statistics for the four quareided December 31, 2012. The
information for each of these quarters is unaudited has been prepared on the same basis as ftedarahsolidated financial statements
appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-K.
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Three Months Ended

March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2012 2012 2012 2012
Statements of Operations Data (dollars in millions)
Operating revenues $ 1,20: $ 1,277 $ 1,30¢ $ 1,194
Operating expenses:
Aircraft fuel and related taxes 437 45C 481 442
Salaries, wages and benefits 25¢E 26E 262 262
Landing fees and other rents 66 72 73 66
Depreciation and amortization 61 63 66 68
Aircraft rent 33 33 32 32
Sales and marketing 47 54 51 52
Maintenance materials and repairs 88 85 85 80
Other operating expenses (1) 131 12t 14E 14¢
Total operating expenses 1,11« 1,14 1,19¢ 1,15(C
Operating income (2) 89 13C 113 44
Other income (expense) (3) (40) (49 (40) (43
Income before income taxes 49 8€ 73 1
Income tax expense 19 34 28 —
Net income $ 30 $ 52 $ 45 $ 1
Operating margin 7.4% 10.2% 8.6% 3.7%
Pre-tax margin 4.0% 6.7% 5.6% 0.1%
Operating Statistics:
Revenue passengers (thousands) 6,85¢ 7,33¢ 7,747 7,01¢
Revenue passenger miles (millions) 7,90¢ 8,497 9,07t 8,08:
Available seat miles ASM (millions) 9,53¢ 9,961 10,70 9,87¢
Load factor 82.9% 85.2% 84.£% 81.%
Aircraft utilization (hours per day) 11.€ 11.¢ 12.4 11.c
Average fare $ 159.9:¢ $ 159.5¢ $ 154.0¢ $ 155.1°
Yield per passenger mile (cents) 13.8¢ 13.7¢ 13.1¢ 13.4;
Passenger revenue per ASM (cents) 11.4¢ 11.7¢ 11.1¢ 11.0¢
Operating revenue per ASM (cents) 12.62 12.8:2 12.21 12.0¢
Operating expense per ASM (cents) 11.6¢ 11.51 11.1¢€ 11.6¢
Operating expense per ASM, excluding fuel (cents) 7.1% 6.9¢ 6.67 7.17%
Operating expense per ASM, excluding fuel and psdfaring (cents) 7.1F 6.92 6.67 7.2¢
Airline operating expense per ASM (cents) (4) 11.5¢ 11.3¢ 10.9¢ 11.47
Departures 63,54¢ 66,06" 69,92 65,06:
Average stage length (miles) 1,077 1,081 1,094 1,08¢
Average number of operating aircraft during period 170.2 172.¢ 175.C 177.¢
Average fuel cost per gallon, including fuel taxes $ 3.2 $ 3.22 $ 3.17 $ 3.2C
Fuel gallons consumed (millions) 13¢ 14C 152 13¢
Full-time equivalent employees at period end (4) 11,96 12,30¢ 11,797 12,07(

(1) During the first quarter of 2012, LiveTV reded a gain of approximately $8 million relatedhe termination of a customer contract.
During the second quarter of 2012, we recordedjaris of approximately $10 million related to tlaesof two EMBRAER 190 aircra
and six spare aircraft engines.

(2) During the fourth quarter of 2012, operatingame was negatively impacted by approximately $8@on as a result of Hurricane
Sandy.

(3) During the second and fourth quarters of 2@de2recorded $2 million in gains and $3 millionasses, respectively, related to the early
extinguishment of a portion of our long-term debt.
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(4) Excludes results of operations and employéésveTV, LLC, which are unrelated to our airlinerations and are immaterial to our
consolidated operating results.

Although we experienced significant revenue groimtB012, this trend may not continue. We expectexyrenses to continue to increase
significantly as we acquire additional aircraft,cas fleet ages and as we expand the frequendigbtd in existing markets and enter into new
markets. Accordingly, the comparison of the finahdata for the quarterly periods presented mayeaheaningful. In addition, we expect
operating results to fluctuate significantly fromagter-to-quarter in the future as a result ofaagifactors, many of which are outside our
control. Consequently, we believe quarter-to-quartenparisons of our operating results may not sy be meaningful and you should no
rely on our results for any one quarter as an atdia of our future performance.

Network Concentrations and Seasonality

We have historically been a highly leisure-focuagtine subject to seasonality in our business. f0ous in recent years has been to
increase our mix of business customers, partiguiarBoston, to lessen the seasonality impact arbasiness. Additionally, we believe VFR
markets complement our leisure-driven markets foatihh a seasonal and day of week perspective. Hiesi levels of traffic and revenue on
our routes along the East Coast are generallyzeghfrom October through April and on our routeard from the western United States in the
summer. Many of our areas of operations in the i@t experience poor weather conditions in théawicausing increased costs associated
with de-icing aircraft, cancelled flights and aceoodating displaced customers. Many of our Floridé @aribbean routes experience bad
weather conditions in the summer and fall due tmtterstorms and hurricanes. As we enter new manketsould be subject to additional
seasonal variations along with competitive respgms®ur entry by other airlines. Given our higbgmrtion of fixed costs, this seasonality r
cause our results of operations to vary from quastguarter. As such, we remain focused on tryingeduce the seasonal impact of our
operations and increase demand and travel durengralngh periods.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The airline business is capital intensive. Ourighib successfully execute our profitable growtans is largely dependent on the
continued availability of capital on attractivertes. In addition, our ability to successfully operatir business depends on maintaining
sufficient liquidity. We believe we have adequageaurces from a combination of cash and cash dguaigsand investment securities on hand
and two available lines of credit. Additionally, asDecember 31, 2012, we had 11 unencumbered AB2€ft and nine unencumbered spare
engines which we believe could be an additionat@of liquidity, if necessary.

We believe a healthy cash balance is crucial tcability to weather any part of the economic cyaldle continuing to execute on our
plans for profitable growth and increased retu@sr goal is to continue to be diligent with ourdidity, maintaining financial flexibility and
allowing for prudent capital spending, which inrtuve expect to lead to improved returns for ourahelders. As of December 31, 2012 our
cash balance declined as compared to a year agaurfent environment of strong industry fundamisrdaad low interest rates enabled us to
adopt a more reasonable cash balance as compgpadrtgears (as measured by a percentage ofgailielve months revenue). We believe
our current level of cash of approximately 15%rafling twelve months revenue, combined with ouaitable lines of credit and portfolio of
unencumbered assets provides us with a stronglitguiosition and the potential for higher retuomscash deployment. We believe we have
taken several important actions during 2012 ind#fying our strong balance sheet and overall ligyidosition, including:

» Increased our available lines of credit up t@%#illion as of December 31, 20:

* Prepaid approximately $220 million in high cdsbt, which will result in an annual interest exgesavings of approximately $10
million .

* Increased the number of unencumbered aircrafit fone as of December 31, 2011 taaslof December 31, 20:
* Reduced our overall debt balance by $285 milidiile increasing our total property and equipmen$#83 million during 201.

* Prepaid $200 milliofior certain 2013 deliveries and deposits on futireraft deliveries in exchange for favorable pricterms

Return on Invested Capite

Return on invested capital, or ROIC, is an impdrfarancial metric which we believe provides meayfiirh information as to how well w
generate returns relative to the capital investealir business. During 2012, we improved our ROJQiéarly one percentage point to 4.8% .
We are committed to taking appropriate actions thidl allow us to continue to improve ROIC whildding capacity and continuing to gra
We believe this non-GAAP measure provides a medumlicgmparison of our results to the airline indystnd our prior year results. Investors
should consider this non-GAAP financial measuraddition to, and not as a substitute for, our foiahperformance measures prepared in
accordance with GAAP.
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Reconciliation of Return on Invested Capital (Non-@AP)
(in millions, except as otherwise noted)

Twelve Months Ended
December 31,

2012 2011
Numerator
Operating Income $ 37€ $ 322
Add: Interest income and other 1 (©)]
Add: Interest component of capitalized aircrant (a) 68 71
Subtotal 44~ 39C
Less: Income tax expense impact 172 15z
Operating Income After Tax, Adjusted $ 27 $ 237
Denominator
Average Stockholders' equity $ 1,822 $ 1,70¢
Average total debt 2,99/ 3,08t
Capitalized aircraft rent (a) 91z 947
Invested Capital $ 572¢ $ 573
Return on Invested Capital 4.8% 4.1%
(a) Capitalized Aircraft Rent
Aircraft rent, as reported $ 13C % 13t
Capitalized aircraft rent (7 * Aircraft rent) 91:¢ 947
Interest component of capitalized aircraft rentied interest at 7.5%) 68 71

Analysis of Cash Flows
Operating Activities

At December 31, 2012, we had cash and cash eqnotsaé $182 million and short-term investments 549 million , as compared to
cash and cash equivalents of $673 million and sleon investments of $553 million at December 3.2 We also had $136 million of long-
term investments at December 31, 2012 compare@88ardllion at December 31, 2011. Cash flows progilg operating activities totaled
$698 million in 2012 compared to $614 million in1A0and $523 million in 2010. The $84 million incsean cash flows from operations in
2012 compared to 2011 was primarily as a resuti®@B% increase in capacity and 2% increase irageciares, offset by a 1% higher price of
fuel. The $91 million increase in cash flows fropeeations in 2011 compared to 2010 was primarilg essult of the 10% increase in average
fares and 7% increase in capacity, offset by 38§fdri price of fuel. As of December 31, 2012, ourestricted cash, cash equivalents and
short-term investments as a percentage of trailirdve months revenue was approximately 15% . Wepremarily on cash flows from
operations to provide working capital for currentlduture operations.

Investing Activities

During 2012, capital expenditures related to oucpase of flight equipment included (1) $344 millimr seven Airbus A320 aircraft,
four EMBRAER 190 aircraft and five spare engin@3,%283 million for flight equipment deposits, whimcludes a $200 million prepayment
in exchange for favorable pricing terms and (3) $8on for spare part purchases. Capital expemdg for other property and equipment,
including ground equipment purchases, facilitiepriovements and LiveTV inflight-entertainment equénhinventory were $166 million,
which includes the final $32 million for the 16 "ave purchased at LaGuardia International Airpod Ronald Reagan International Airpol
2011 and $17 million for T5i, which was paid foiing cash from operations. The receipt of $46 millio proceeds from the sale of two
EMBRAER 190 aircraft and six spare engines is idelliin investing activities. Investing activitids@include the net purchase of $104
million in investment securities.

During 2011, capital expenditures related to ouchase of flight equipment included $318 milliom four Airbus A320 aircraft, five
EMBRAER 190 aircraft and nine spare engines, $44amifor flight equipment deposits and $27 milliéor
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spare part purchases. Capital expenditures for ptioperty and equipment, including ground equiptpemchases, facilities improvements
LiveTV inventory, were $135 million, which includ&g0 million for the 16 slots we purchased at La@islnternational Airport and Ronald
Reagan International Airport. Investing activities2011 also included the net proceeds from the satl maturities of $24 million in
investment securities.

We currently anticipate 2013 capital expenditumeddcility improvements, spare parts and grounclipases to be approximately
$245 million, including approximately $80 milliooff our investment at T5i.

Financing Activities

Financing activities during 2012 consisted of (@)eduled maturities of $198 million of debt anditalpease obligations, (2) the pre-
payment of $185 million in high-cost debt securgdseven Airbus A320 aircraft, (3) the repaymen$8% million of debt related to two
EMBRAER 190 aircraft which were sold in 2012, (4dpeeds of $215 million in non-public floating ratecraft-related financing secured by
four Airbus A320 aircraft and four EMBRAER 190 aaét, (5) the net repayment of $88 million under auailable lines of credit, (6) the
repayment of $12 million in principal related tor@enstruction obligation for Terminal 5 and (7§ thcquisition of 4.8 million treasury shares
for $26 million primarily related to our share repliase program and the withholding of taxes uperv#sting of restricted stock units.

Financing activities during 2011 consisted primaaf (1) the early extinguishment of $39 milliorimripal of our 6.75% Series A
convertible debentures due 2039 for $45 million,s¢heduled maturities of $188 million of debt aagital lease obligations, (3) the early
payment of $3 million on our spare parts pass-tijinazertificates, (4) proceeds of $121 million ixefil rate and $124 million in non-public
floating rate aircraft-related financing securedidyr Airbus A320 aircraft and five EMBRAER 190 aiaft, (5) the net borrowings of $88
million under our available line of credit, (6) thepayment of $10 million in principal related tor@onstruction obligation for Terminal 5 and
(7) the acquisition of $4 million in treasury sharelated to the withholding of taxes, upon theingof restricted stock units.

In November 2012, we filed an automatic shelf regton statement with the SEC. Under this univieshalf registration statement, we
have the capacity to offer and sell from time todidebt securities, pass-through certificates, comstock, preferred stock and/or other
securities. The net proceeds of any securitiesaleisder this registration statement may be ueddrid working capital and capital
expenditures, including the purchase of aircraft eonstruction of facilities on or near airportrdugh December 31, 2012, we had not issue
any securities under this registration statementhi& time, we have no plans to sell any such isiéesi under this registration statement. We
may utilize this universal shelf in the future &ise capital to fund the continued developmentunfwoducts and services, the
commercialization of our products and servicesoowother general corporate purposes.

None of our lenders or lessors are affiliated wish
Capital Resources

We have been able to generate sufficient funds fsparations to meet our working capital requireraeApproximately 70% of our
property and equipment is encumbered, excludingifdus A320 aircraft and nine spare engines whiehown free and clear. We have
historically financed our aircraft through eithecared debt or lease financing. At December 3122@& operated a fleet of 180 aircraft, of
which 60 were financed under operating leases, @re financed under capital leases and all buifthe remaining 116 were financed by
private and public secured debt. As noted abovegyregaid some of 2013 aircraft deliveries. We hearamitted financing for two
EMBRAER 190 aircraft scheduled for delivery in 20¥8e plan to opportunistically finance the remagn2013 scheduled deliveries at
favorable borrowing terms relative to our weightegrage cost of debt. Although we believe debt@ridase financing should be available
our remaining aircraft deliveries, we cannot gigswmance we will be able to secure financing omgeattractive to us, if at all. While these
financings may or may not result in an increasiainilities on our balance sheet, our fixed cosilf imcrease significantly regardless of the
financing method ultimately chosen. To the exteatoannot secure financing, we may be required ydrpaash, further modify our aircraft
acquisition plans or incur higher than anticipdiadncing costs.

Working Capital

We had working capital deficit of $508 million aeBember 31, 2012 compared to working capital oB6%2illion at December 31, 2011.
Working capital deficits can be customary in thdiree industry since air traffic liability is clagi®d as a current liability. The significant
decrease in our working capital is primarily atiititble to approximately $220 million in debt prepents made during 2012 and the $200
million prepayment for future aircraft deliverig3ur working capital includes the fair value of atort-term fuel hedge derivatives, which was
a net liability of $1 million and $4 million at Dember 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Also contributing to our working capital deficit aDecember 31, 2012 is $136 million in marketahleestment securities classified as
long-term assets, including $57 million relateditdeposit made to lower the interest rate on tie de
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secured by two aircraft. These funds on depositeadily available to us; however, if we were tawliupon this deposit, the interest rates on
the debt would revert to the higher rates in effgwr to the re-financing.

We have a corporate purchasing line with Americapr&ss allowing us to borrow up to a maximum of $hdllion for the purchase of
jet fuel. Borrowings, which are to be paid monttdye subject to a 6.9% annual interest rate sutgjexgrtain limitations. This borrowir
facility will terminate no later than January 51%0 During 2012, we had borrowed up to $125 millonthis corporate purchasing line, all of
which was fully repaid, leaving the line undrawnoci®ecember 31, 2012. In July 2012, we enterenlantevolving line of credit with Morgan
Stanley for up to $100 million , and increasedlthe of credit for up to $200 million in Decembed2. This line of credit is secured by a
portion of our investment securities held by Mor@ianley and the borrowing amount may vary accgigirhis line of credit bears interesi
a floating rate of interest based upon LIBOR pl08 asis points . During 2012, we had borrowedoupé maximum $200 million, all of
which was fully repaid, leaving the line undrawnoch®ecember 31, 2012.

We expect to meet our obligations as they becomelihough available cash, investment securitiesrtednally generated funds,
supplemented as necessary by financing activéiethey may be available to us. We expect to genpuasitive working capital through our
operations. However, we cannot predict what thec¢fn our business might be from the extremelypiitive environment we are operating
in or from events beyond our control, such as Velfel prices, economic conditions, weather-rmdadlisruptions, the impact of airline
bankruptcies, restructurings or consolidations,. thilitary actions or acts of terrorism. We beliglie working capital available to us will be
sufficient to meet our cash requirements for astiéi@e next 12 months.

Debt and Capital Lease

Our scheduled debt maturities are expected toaserever the next five years, with a scheduled pe2aR14 of nearly $600 million. Our
scheduled debt maturities in 2013 include final ty@ge payments on six Airbus A320 aircraft, whidh further increase our portfolio of
unencumbered assets. As part of our efforts tecifldy manage our balance sheet and improve R@Eexpect to continue to actively
manage our debt balances. Our approach to debtgearet includes managing the mix of fixed vs. flograte debt, managing the annual
maturities of debt, and managing the weighted ayeemst of debt. Further, we intend to continuegportunistically pre-purchase outstanding
debt when market conditions and terms are favoradaditionally, our unencumbered assets, includiftgA320 aircraft, allows us some
flexibility in managing our cost of debt and capitaquirements.

Contractual Obligations

Our noncancelable contractual obligations at Deeerth, 2012 include (in millions):

Payments due in

Total 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter
Long-term debt and capital lease
obligations (1) $ 345( $ 50¢ $ 672 $ 34z $ 527 $ 23€ $ 1,16:
Lease commitments 1,49: 19¢ 194 191 12t 111 673
Flight equipment obligations 5,00¢ 36( 52t 74k 76% 57¢ 2,03t
Financing obligations and other (2) 2,91t 39¢ 331 30€ 293 30¢€ 1,28(
Total $ 1286: $ 1,466 $ 1,720 $ 158 $ 171C $ 1228 $ 5,151

(1) Includes actual interest and estimated intdogdloating-rate debt based on December 31, 281&s
(2) Amounts include noncancelable commitments for tinelpase of goods and servic

The interest rates are fixed for $1.72 billion af debt and capital lease obligations, with theai@ing $1.13 billion having floating
interest rates. The floating interest rates adjustterly or semannually based on the London Interbank Offered RateIBOR. The weighte
average maturity of all of our debt was 6 yeaetember 31, 2012 . We are subject to certain fiiahnatios for our unsecured line of credit
issued in September 2011, including a requiren@emadintain certain cash and short-term investner@l$ and a minimum earnings before
income taxes, interest, depreciation and amortimatr EBITDA margin, as well as customary evetitdefault. We are subject to certain
collateral ratio requirements in our spare
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parts pass-through certificates and spare engia@ding issued in November 2006 and December 288ectively. If we fail to maintain
these collateral ratios, we are required to proedeitional collateral or redeem some or all of¢éh@ipment notes so the ratios return to
compliance. As a result of lower spare parts inmgnbalances and the associated reduced third paldtion of these parts, we pledged as
collateral a previously unencumbered spare engitiearcarrying value of approximately $7 millionréhg the second quarter of 2011. During
the third quarter of 2011, we did not meet the mimin ratios on our spare parts pass-through cetifecdue to the reduced third party
valuation of these parts. In order to maintainrétes, we elected to redeem $3 million of the pment notes in November 2011. At
December 31, 2012 , we were in compliance witlt@denants of our debt and lease agreements and#76&6 owned property and equipment
were pledged as security under various loan agnetsme

We have operating lease obligations for 60 airaxétft lease terms that expire between 2014 and.26i26 of these leases have variable
rate rent payments that adjust semi-annually barddBOR. We also lease airport terminal spaceathdr airport facilities in each of our
markets, as well as office space and other equipriiéa have approximately $30 million of restricesbets pledged under standby letters of
credit related to certain of our leases which eipire at the end of the related leases.

Our firm aircraft orders at December 31, 2012 cstesi of 14 Airbus A320 aircraft, 30 Airbus A321caaft, 40 Airbus A320 neo aircraft
and 31 EMBRAER 190 aircraft scheduled for delivasyfollows 14 in 2013, 10 in 2014, 17 in 2015,12016, 13 in 2017, 13 in 2018, 10 in
2019, 10 in 2020 and 10 in 2021. We expect to mmeepredelivery deposit requirements for our afitdogt paying cash or by using short-term
borrowing facilities for deposits required six t onths prior to delivery. Any predelivery depegitid by the issuance of notes are fully
repaid at the time of delivery of the related aiftr

Our aircraft orders reflect contract modificatiamgered in 2012. In July 2012, we amended our EMBRAurchase agreement
accelerating the delivery of one aircraft to 20X8ak was previously scheduled for delivery in 20Additionally, we extended the date by
which we may elect not to further amend our puretegreement to order a new EMBRAER 190 variamtevfeloped, to July 31, 2013. If the
new variant is not elected, seven EMBRAER 190 aftave previously deferred may either be returreetheir original delivery dates in 2013
and 2014 or canceled and subject to cancellaties: i@ December 2012, we further amended this aweeeffectively accelerating the
delivery of four aircraft from 2018 to 2013.

In October 2008, we began operating out of our iemninal 5 at JFK, or Terminal 5, which we had beenstructing since November
2005. The construction and operation of this fgci governed by a lease agreement we entereavittdhe PANYNJ in 2005. We are
responsible for making various payments underehsd, including ground rents for the terminal witéch began on lease execution in 2005
and facility rents commenced in October 2008 upamoacupancy of the terminal. The facility rents Based on the number of passengers
enplaned out of the terminal, subject to annuaimims. The PANYNJ has reimbursed us for costsisfgtoject in accordance with the terms
of the lease, except for approximately $76 millioteasehold improvements provided by us. For famameporting purposes, this project is
being accounted for as a financing obligation, wlith constructed asset and related liability begflgected on our balance sheets. Minimum
ground and facility rents for this terminal totai1.12 billion are included in the commitmentdéadbove as lease commitments and finar
obligations.

Our commitments also include those of LiveTV, whitgs several noncancelable Ialegm purchase agreements with various supplie
provide equipment to be installed on its customairgraft, including JetBlue’s aircraft.

We enter into individual employment agreements wabh of our FAA-licensed Crewmembers as well agdntors and air traffic
controllers. Each employment agreement is forma tefrfive years and automatically renews for anitialthl five-year term unless the
Crewmember is terminated for cause or the Crewmeglbets not to renew it. Pursuant to these agratanese Crewmembers can only be
terminated for cause. In the event of a downturounbusiness requiring a reduction in flying aathted work hours, we are obligated to pay
these Crewmembers a guaranteed level of incomeoacwhtinue their benefits. As we are not currentiligated to pay this guaranteed incc
and benefits, no amounts related to these guasaateancluded in the table above.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

None of our operating lease obligations are reflgcin our balance sheet. Although some of ourdairtgase arrangements are with
variable interest entities, as defined by @wnsolidationdopic of the Financial Accounting Standards BoardisFASB, Accounting Standards
Codification™, or Codification, none of them require consolidatin our financial statements. The decision tarfice these aircraft through
operating leases rather than through debt was lmsad analysis of the cash flows and tax consempseof each financing alternative and a
consideration of liquidity implications. We are pessible for all maintenance, insurance and otbhetscassociated with operating these airc
however, we have not made any residual value @raharantees to our lessors.
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We have determined that we hold a variable inténedtut are not the primary beneficiary of, certpass-through trusts which are the
purchasers of equipment notes issued by us todn#re acquisition of new aircraft and certainraitcspare parts owned by JetBlue and held
by such pass-through trusts. These pass-througts tmaintain liquidity facilities whereby a thirdny agrees to make payments sufficient to
pay up to 18 months of interest on the applicabléfacates if a payment default occurs. The lidtyigroviders for the Series 2004-1 aircraft
certificates and the spare parts certificates arelesbank Hessen-Thuringen Girozentrale and Mdsgmmey Capital Services Inc. The
liquidity providers for the Series 2004-2 aircredrtificates are Landesbank Baden-Wurttemberg atifob@k, N.A.

We use a policy provider to provide credit supporiour Class G-1 and Class G-2 floating rate enddhequipment notes. The policy
provider has unconditionally guaranteed the payroéiiterest on the certificates when due and thenent of principal on the certificates no
later than 18 months after the final expected rgdistribution date. The policy provider is MBlIAdurance Corporation (a subsidiary of
MBIA, Inc.). Financial information for the paremdmpany of the policy provider is available at tHeC3s website abhttp://www.sec.goer at
the SEC'’s public reference room in Washington, D.C.

We have also made certain guarantees and indemtatiher unrelated parties that are not refleotedur balance sheet which we
believe will not have a significant impact on oasults of operations, financial condition or caslwé. We have no other off-balance sheet
arrangements. See Notes 2, 3 and 12 to our coasadidinancial statements for a more detailed disiom of our variable interests and other
contingencies, including guarantees and indemnities

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of our financial statements in oomfty with generally accepted accounting principlequires management to adopt
accounting policies and make estimates and judgerdevelop amounts reported in our financiaksta&nts and accompanying notes. We
maintain a thorough process to review the appboatif our accounting policies and to evaluate thgrapriateness of the estimates that are
required to prepare our financial statements. Wierethat our estimates and judgments are reasgrtatwever, actual results and the timing
of recognition of such amounts could differ fronoglke estimates. In addition, estimates routinelyirecadjustment based on changing
circumstances and the receipt of new or betterindion.

Critical accounting policies and estimates arergfias those that are reflective of significangjuénts and uncertainties, and potenti
result in materially different results under diffat assumptions and conditions. The policies atichates discussed below have been reviewe
with our independent registered public accounting find with the Audit Committee of our Board ofr&itors. For a discussion of these and
other accounting policies, see Note 1 to our cadatdd financial statements.

Passenger revenue.Passenger ticket sales are initially deferreadiinraffic liability. The air traffic liability #so includes customer
credits issued and unused tickets whose travellrdet@assed. Credit for unused tickets and custoredits can each be applied towards
another ticket within 12 months of the original sdbled service or 12 months from the issuanceeo€tistomer credit. Revenue is recognized
when transportation is provided or when a ticketustomer credit expires. We also defer, in aifitréiability, an estimate for customer cred
issued in conjunction with the JetBlue Airways @usér Bill of Rights we expect to be ultimately redeed. These estimates are based on
historical experience and are periodically evaldassd adjusted if necessary, based on actual credlje.

Frequent flyer accounting. We utilize a number of estimates in accountmrgolur TrueBlue customer loyalty program, or TrueBlWe
record a liability, which was $10 million and $9lllon as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respelgtifer the estimated incremental cost of
outstanding points earned from JetBlue purchasgsil expect to be redeemed. The estimated cdatexincremental fuel, insurance,
passenger food and supplies, and reservation &staidjust this liability, which is included in araffic liability, based on points earned and
redeemed, changes in the estimated incrementa assbciated with providing travel and changehkérnTrueBlue program. In November 20
we launched an improved version of TrueBlue, whalbbws customers to earn points based on the yalicefor a trip rather than the length of
the trip. In addition, unlike our original prograthe improved version does not result in the autanggeneration of a travel award once
minimum award levels are reached, but instead dirggpare maintained in the account until usechigyrhember or until they expire 12 months
after the last account activity. As a result ofsitnehanges, breakage, or the points that ultimatedire unused, has been substantially reducec
Periodically, we evaluate our assumptions for appateness, including comparison of the cost esémto actual costs incurred as well as the
expiration and redemption assumptions to actuateepce. Changes in the minimum award levels tinérlives of the awards would also
require us to reevaluate the liability, potentiatygulting in a significant impact in the year bhage as well as in future years.

Points in TrueBlue can also be sold to particimptiompanies, including credit card and car rerdedganies. These sales are accounted
for as multiple-element arrangements, with one elemepresenting the fair value of the travel thifitultimately be provided when the points
are redeemed and the other consisting of marketila¢ed activities that we conduct
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with the participating company. The fair value lod transportation portion of these point saleefemed and recognized as passenger revenu
when transportation is provided. The marketingipartwhich is the excess of the total sales proses@r the estimated fair value of the
transportation to be provided, is recognized ireotievenue when the points are sold. Deferred tevéor points sold and not redeemed is
recognized as revenue when the underlying poimgs@xDeferred revenue was $101 million and $84iomilat December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

The terms of expiration of all points under ougoral loyalty program were modified with the laurmha new version of TrueBlue in
2009. We recorded $5 million and $3 million in raue for point expirations in 2012 and 2011, respebt

Our co-branded credit card agreement, under whizkell TrueBlue points as described above, provided minimum cash payment
guarantee, which was paid to us throughout theofiftie agreement if specified point sales andradheillary activity payments were not
achieved and was subject to refund in the eventctieh payments exceeded future minimums through 2@l 1. We recorded revenue relatec
to this guarantee when the likelihood of us prawidany future service was remote. We recognizedoappately $5 million related to this
guarantee in 2010 and the balance of this guaraf@gproximately $10 million in 2011.

Accounting for long-lived assets. In accounting for long-lived assets, we makeregtes about the expected useful lives, projected
residual values and the potential for impairmemiestimating useful lives and residual values afaitcraft, we have relied upon actual
industry experience with the same or similar aftdsgpes and our anticipated utilization of thecaaft. Changing market prices of new and t
aircraft, government regulations and changes immintenance program or operations could resuhanges to these estimates.

Our long-lived assets are evaluated for impairna¢heast annually or when events and circumstaincksate that the assets may be
impaired. Indicators include operating or cash flosses, significant decreases in market valudanges in technology. As our assets are all
relatively new and we continue to have positiverapeg cash flows, we have not identified any digant impairment related to our loriyed
assets at this time.

Lease accounting. We operate airport facilities, offices buildgngnd aircraft under operating leases with mininkemse payments
associated with these agreements recognized asxp@mnse on a straight-line basis over the expdessa term. Within the provisions of
certain leases there are minimum escalations impays over the base lease term and periodic addnssnof lease rates, landing fees, and
charges applicable under such agreements, as swalhawal periods. The effects of the escalatiodsogher adjustments have been reflecte
rent expense on a straight-line basis over theslesrsn, which includes renewal periods when itdsrded to be reasonably assured at the
inception of the lease that we would incur an ecoiegenalty for not renewing. The amortization pdrior leasehold improvements is the
term used in calculating straight-line rent expemistheir estimated economic life, whichever isréio

Derivative instruments used for aircraft fuel We utilize financial derivative instrumentsranage the risk of changing aircraft fuel
prices. We do not purchase or hold any derivatigérument for trading purposes. At December 31220 had a net $1 million liability
related to the net fair value of these derivathngtruments; the majority of which are not tradecagublic exchange. Fair values are deternm
using commaodity prices provided to us by indepenttdrd parties. When possible, we designate tivesteuments as cash flow hedges for
accounting purposes, as defined byBeivatives and Hedgintppic of the Codification which permits the defeéiwwhthe effective portions of
gains or losses until contract settlement.

TheDerivatives and Hedgintppic is a complex accounting standard and reqtiraswe develop and maintain a significant amafint
documentation related to (1) our fuel hedging paogand fuel management approach, (2) statisticdysis supporting a highly correlated
relationship between the underlying commodity ia derivative financial instrument and the risk lgeiredged (i.e. aircraft fuel) on both a
historical and prospective basis and (3) cash f@lesignation for each hedging transaction exectiele developed concurrently with the
hedging transaction. This documentation requiregstienate forward aircraft fuel prices since thiereo reliable forward market for aircraft
fuel. These prices are developed through the obdervof similar commaodity futures prices, suctcagle oil and/or heating oil, and adjusted
based on variations to those like commodities.dtiisally, our hedges have settled within 24 montherefore, the deferred gains and losses
have been recognized into earnings over a relgtsledrt period of time.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

The risk inherent in our market risk sensitive instents and positions is the potential loss arifiiog adverse changes to the price of
fuel and interest rates as discussed below. Thetsaty analyses presented do not consider thectsfthat such adverse changes may have o
the overall economic activity, nor do they considéditional actions we may take to mitigate ourasyre to such changes. Variabdte lease
are not considered market sensitive financial ims&nts and, therefore, are not included in thaasteate sensitivity analysis below. Actual
results may differ. See Notes 1, 2 and 13 to onsclidated financial statements for accountinggiesi and additional information.
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Aircraft fuel. Our results of operations are affected by ckang the price and availability of aircraft fuéb manage the price risk, we
use crude or heating oil option contracts or jet Bwap agreements. Market risk is estimated ggathetical 10% increase in the
December 31, 2012 cost per gallon of fuel. Basegrojected 2013 fuel consumption, such an increasedd result in an increase to aircraft
fuel expense of approximately $190 million in 20&8mpared to an estimated $175 million for 2012sunesd as of December 31, 2011. As of
December 31, 2012, we had hedged approximatelyfs8argprojected 2013 fuel requirements. All hedgateacts existing at December 31,
2012 settle by September 31, 2013.

The financial derivative instrument agreements aechwith our counterparties may require us to fathcor a portion of, outstanding Ic
positions related to these contracts prior to thefireduled maturities. The amount of collateratguhsf any, is periodically adjusted based on
the fair value of the hedge contracts.

Interest. Our earnings are affected by changes in inteadss due to the impact those changes have eregttexpense from variable-
rate debt instruments and on interest income getefeom our cash and investment balances. Theestteate is fixed for $1.72 billion of our
debt and capital lease obligations, with the remagi$1.13 billion having floating interest ratekinlterest rates were, on average, 100 basis
points higher in 2013 than they were during 2012,interest expense would increase by approxim&®b/million. This is determined by
considering the impact of the hypothetical chamg@aterest rates on our variable rate debt.

If interest rates average 10% lower in 2013 thay thid during 2012, our interest income from casth imvestment balances would
remain relatively constant, similar to the relatbanstant level of interest income for 2012 meadaseof December 31, 2011. These amounts
are determined by considering the impact of theotygtical interest rates on our cash equivalerdsmrestment securities balances at
December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Fixed Rate Debt. On December 31, 2012, our $285 million aggregaincipal amount of convertible debt had a tettimated fair
value of $398 million, based on quoted market @ritEthere were a 10% increase in stock pricesfalr value of this debt would have been
$428 million as of December 31, 2012.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
JETBLUE AIRWAYS CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in millions, except share data)

December 31,

2012 2011
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 182 % 672
Investment securities 54¢ 552
Receivables, less allowance (2012-$7; 2011-$8) 10€ 101
Inventories, less allowance (2012-$5; 2011-$4) 36 50
Prepaid expenses 11¢ 147
Other 1 5
Deferred income taxes 107 99
Total current assets 1,10( 1,62¢
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Flight equipment 5,16¢ 4,71¢
Predelivery deposits for flight equipment 33¢ 154
5,50¢ 4,87:
Less accumulated depreciation 99t 827
4,511 4,04¢
Other property and equipment 58t 531
Less accumulated depreciation 221 207
364 324
Assets constructed for others 561 561
Less accumulated amortization 93 71
46¢ 49(C
Total property and equipment 5,34: 4,86(
OTHER ASSETS
Investment securities 13¢€ 38
Restricted cash 51 67
Other 44( 47¢
Total other assets 627 58:
TOTAL ASSETS $ 7,07C $ 7,071

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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JETBLUE AIRWAYS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in millions, except share data)

December 31,

2012 2011
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 15 % 14¢
Air traffic liability 69:< 627
Accrued salaries, wages and benefits 172 152
Other accrued liabilities 19¢ 19¢
Short-term borrowings — 88
Current maturities of long-term debt and capitabks 394 19¢
Total current liabilities 1,60¢ 1,412
LONG-TERM DEBT AND CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS 2,457 2,85(
CONSTRUCTION OBLIGATION 514 52¢
DEFERRED TAXES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Deferred income taxes 481 392
Other 12z 134
60< 52¢
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value; 25,000,000 steart®rized, none issued — —
Common stock, $0.01 par value; 900,000,000 shart®azed, 330,589,532 and 326,589,0
shares issued and 281,007,806 and 281,777,91%shastanding at December 31, 2012 a
2011, respectively 3 3
Treasury stock, at cost; 49,581,726 and 44,811shabes at December 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively (35 (8)
Additional paid-in capital 1,49t 1,472
Retained earnings 43¢ 30¢
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 8 (15)
Total stockholders’ equity 1,88¢ 1,75%
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY $ 7,07C $ 7,071

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&sients.
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JETBLUE AIRWAYS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in millions, except per share amounts)

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
OPERATING REVENUES
Passenger $ 4550 % 4,080 % 3,41:
Other 432 424 367
Total operating revenues 4,98: 4,50¢ 3,77¢
OPERATING EXPENSES
Aircraft fuel and related taxes 1,80¢ 1,66¢ 1,11¢
Salaries, wages and benefits 1,04¢ 947 891
Landing fees and other rents 2717 24k 22¢
Depreciation and amortization 25¢ 23¢ 22(
Aircraft rent 13C 13t 12¢
Sales and marketing 204 19¢ 17¢
Maintenance materials and repairs 33¢ 227 172
Other operating expenses 54¢ 532 51t
Total operating expenses 4,60¢ 4,18: 3,44¢
OPERATING INCOME 37¢€ 322 33<
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
Interest expense (17¢) (79 (180)
Capitalized interest 8 5 4
Interest income and other 1 (©)] 4
Total other income (expense) (167) 77 (172)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 20¢ 14t 161
Income tax expense 81 5¢ 64
NET INCOME $ 126 $ 86 9 97
EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE:
Basic $ 0.4t $ 031 $ 0.3¢
Diluted $ 04C $ 0.2¢ % 0.31

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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JETBLUE AIRWAYS CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(in millions)
Years Ended December 31,
2012 2011 2010
NET INCOME $ 12¢ $ 86 % 97
Changes in fair value of derivative instrumentg,afeeclassifications into earnings (net
of $5, $4, and $7 of taxes in 2012, 2011 and 263<pectively) 7 (5) (11
Total other comprehensive income (loss) 7 5) (12)
$ 138 % 81 $ 8€

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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JETBLUE AIRWAYS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in millions)



CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activities:
Deferred income taxes
Depreciation
Amortization
Stock-based compensation
(Gains) losses on sale of assets, debt extinguistyi@ed customer contract termination
Collateral (paid) returned for derivative instrurteen
Restricted cash refunded by business partners
Changes in certain operating assets and liabilities
Decrease (increase) in receivables
Decrease (increase) in inventories, prepaid anef oth
Increase in air traffic liability
Increase in accounts payable and other accrueiitiesh
Other, net
Net cash provided by operating activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditures
Predelivery deposits for flight equipment
Refund of predelivery deposits for flight equipment
Proceeds from the sale of assets
Assets constructed for others
Purchase of held-to-maturity investments
Proceeds from maturities of held-to-maturity inneshts
Purchase of available-for-sale securities
Sale of available-for-sale securities
Sale of auction rate securities, or ARS
Net return of security deposits
Net cash used in investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from:
Issuance of common stock
Issuance of long-term debt
Short-term borrowings
Borrowings collateralized by ARS
Construction obligation
Repayment of:
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations
Short-term borrowings
Borrowings collateralized by ARS
Construction obligation
Other, net
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010
126 $ 86 97
76 58 62
23C 213 192
39 34 3€
13 13 17
a7 6 —
8 10 (19
— — 5
1 (10) @
38 4 @
66 112 7C
92 26 27
24 61 3€
69¢ 614 522
(542) (480) (249
(284) (45) (50)
1 1 =
46 — —
2 (€)] (14
(444) (450) (86€)
434 572 414
(532) (602) (1,069
43¢ 502 1,05:
— — 8&
18 1 1
(867) (502) (69€)
9 10 9
21F 24F 11€
37E 12¢ =
— — 2C
- 6 15
(418) (239 (339
(463) (40) —
= = (7€)
(12) (10) (5
(28) (5) (4)
(322) 96 (256)
(492) 20¢ (431)
672 465 89¢
18 $ 673 465

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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JETBLUE AIRWAYS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(in millions)
Accumulated
Additional Other
Common  Common  Treasury  Treasury Paid-In Retained Comprehensive
Shares Stock Shares Stock Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Total
Balance at December 31, 2009 3¢ % 8 27 % 2 $ 1,42: $ 122 1 $ 1,54¢
Net income — — — — — 97 — 97
Changes in comprehensive income — — — — — — (12) (11)
Total comprehensive income 8€
Vesting of restricted stock units 1 — 1 2 — — — 2
Stock compensation expense — — — — 15 — — 1t
Stock issued under crewmember stock purchase p 1 — — — 7 — — 7
Other 1 — — — 2 — — 2
Balance at December 31, 2010 322 3 28 (4) 1,44¢ 21¢ (10 1,65¢
Net income — — — — — 8€ — 8€
Changes in comprehensive income — — — — — — (5) 5)
Total comprehensive income 81
Vesting of restricted stock units 2 — 1 (4) — — — (4)
Stock compensation expense — — — — 15 — — 1t
Stock issued under crewmember stock purchase p 2 — — — 8 — — 8
Shares returned pursuant to 2008 share lending — — 1€ — — — — —
Other 1 — — — 3 — — 8
Balance at December 31, 2011 327 3 4t 8 1,472 30¢ (15) 1,751
Net income — — — — — 12¢ — 12¢
Changes in comprehensive income — — — — — — 7 7
Total comprehensive income 13t
Vesting of restricted stock units 2 — 1 4) — — — 4)
Stock compensation expense — — — — 13 — — 13
Stock issued under Crewmember stock purchase plan 2 — — — 7 — — 7
Shares repurchased under 2012 share repurchase — — 4 (23) — — — (29)
Other — — — — 3 — — 3
Balance at December 31, 2012 331§ 3 5§ (35 $ 149 § 43¢ (8 $ 188t

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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JETBLUE AIRWAYS CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2012

JetBlue Airways Corporation is an innovative pagserairline that provides award-winning customevise at competitive fares
primarily on point-to-point routes. We offer ourstamers a high quality product with young, fueli@ént aircraft, leather seats, free in-flight
entertainment at every seat, pre-assigned seatthgediable performance. We commenced service iom@gy 2000 and established our
primary base of operations at New YarkJohn F. Kennedy International Airport, or JFK gndhwe now have more enplanements than any
airline. As of December 31, 2012, we served 75idabns in 23 states, Puerto Rico, the U.S. Vilglands, Mexico, and 12 countries in the
Caribbean and Latin America. Our wholly owned sdiasy, LiveTV, LLC, or LiveTV, provides irflight entertainment systems for commer
aircraft, including live in-seat satellite telewasi digital satellite radio, wireless aircraft détekk service and cabin surveillance systems.
Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation: Our consolidated financial statements inclddeaccounts of JetBlue Airways Corporation, or lietBand our
subsidiaries, collectively “we” or the “Company”jttvall intercompany transactions and balancesrtipbeen eliminated. Air transportation
services accounted for substantially all the Comgjgaoperations in 2012 , 2011 and 2010 . Accordingégment information is not provided
for LiveTV. Certain prior year amounts have beeriassified to conform to the current year preséonat

Use of Estimates: We are required to make estimates and assumsptiben preparing our consolidated financial statesin
conformity with accounting principles generally eapted in the United States affecting the amoumtsrted in our consolidated financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual resulisl cliffer from those estimates.

Fair Value: TheFair Value Measurements and Disclosutepic of the Financial Accounting Standards Bosydr FASB, Accountin
Standards Codificatiofi, or Codification, establishes a framework for metwy fair value and requires enhanced disclosabesit fair value
measurements. Additionally, this topic clarifieattfair value is an exit price, representing theant that would be received to sell an asset ol
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly trandantbetween market participants. Thair Value Measurements and Disclosutepic also
requires disclosure about how fair value is deteedifor assets and liabilities and establishegi@tthy for which these assets and liabilities
must be grouped, based on significant levels aftsipfSee Note 14 for more information.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Our cash and cash equivalents include shar;thighly liquid investments which are readily centible
into cash. These investments include money madatriies, treasury bills, and commercial papehwiiaturities of three months or less wher
purchased.

Restricted Cash: Restricted cash primarily consists of seculdposits and performance bonds for aircraft aniditfaleases and funds
held in escrow for estimated workers’ compensatibligations.

Accounts and Other Receivables: Accounts and other receivables are carriedstt @hey primarily consist of amounts due fromddre
card companies associated with sales of ticketiufare travel. We estimate an allowance for daukatcounts based on known troubled
accounts, if any, and historical experience ofdgssacurred.

Investment Securities: Investment securities consist of availabledale investment securities and held-to-maturitgstment
securities. When sold, we use a specific identificamethod to determine the cost of the securities

Available-for-sale investment securities:Our available-for-sale investment securitiedude (a) highly liquid investments, such as
certificates of deposits and treasury bills, withtarities greater than three months when purchasetd at fair value and (b) commercial
paper with maturities between three and twelve hmmrdtated at fair value.

Held-to-maturity investment securities: Our held-to-maturity investments consist ofastment-grade interest bearing instruments,
primarily corporate bonds, stated at amortized,aoBich we do not intend to sell. Those with oraimaturities less than twelve months are
included in short-term investments on our constéiddalance sheets, and those with original magarih excess of twelve months but less
than two years are included in long-term investm®emt our consolidated balance sheets. We did notdeany significant gains or losses on
these securities during the twelve months endeeiber 31, 2012 , 2011 or 201The estimated fair value of these investmentsaimated
their carrying value as of December 31, 2012 arid 20

Also included in our held-to-maturity investmentgsties as of December 31, 2012 are deposits riwalever the interest rate on the
debt secured by two aircraft as discussed in Notéh&se funds on deposit are readily availablestand are invested with the bank with a
deposit maturity within the next 12 months; howeviewe were to draw upon this deposit, the interages on the debt reverts to the higher
rates in effect prior to the re-financing. As suaek, have classified these time deposits as long-teid-to-maturity investments to reflect our
intent to hold in connection with the maturity betassociated debt.
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The carrying values of investment securities cdedisf the following at December 31, 2012 and 204 illions):

2012 2011

Available-for-sale securities
Time deposits $ 65 $ 7C
Treasury Bills 68 —
Commercial paper 14z 182
27t 252

Held-to-maturity securities

Corporate bonds 313 313
Government bonds 40 25
Time deposits 57 —
41C 33¢
Total $ 68t $ 591

Derivative Instruments: Derivative instruments, including fuel hedgetracts and interest rate swap agreements, aesl sibfair
value, net of any collateral postings. Derivatinstiuments are included in other current asset®tred current liabilities on our consolidated
balance sheets. See Note 13 for more information.

Inventories: Inventories consist of expendable aircraft sgarts and supplies, which are stated at avei@geand aircraft fuel, whic
is accounted for on a first-in, first-out basise¥h items are expensed when used or consumedlofwaate for obsolescence on aircraft spare
parts is provided over the remaining useful lifehd related aircraft fleet.

Property and Equipment: We record our property and equipment at codtdmpreciate these assets on a straight-line twasieir
estimated residual values over their estimateduliieés. Additions, modifications enhancing theeogting performance of our assets, and
interest related to predelivery deposits to acquée aircraft and for the construction of facilitiare capitalized.

Estimated useful lives and residual values forpyoperty and equipment are as follows:

Estimated Useful Life Residual Value
Aircraft 25 years 20%
In-flight entertainment systems 5 years 0%
Aircraft parts Fleet life 10%
Flight equipment leasehold improvements Lowereakk term or economic life 0%
Ground property and equipment 3-10 years 0%
Leasehold improvements—other Lower of lease tareconomic life 0%
Buildings on leased land Lease term 0%

Property under capital leases is initially recordedn amount equal to the present value of funirbmum lease payments computed on
the basis of our incremental borrowing rate or, svkeown, the interest rate implicit in the leasendktization of property under capital leases
is on a straight-line basis over the expected bsi&and is included in depreciation and amottiza expense.

We record impairment losses on long-lived assetd uis operations when events and circumstancesdtedthat the assets may be
impaired and the undiscounted future cash flowisnesed to be generated by the assets are lesshihassets’ net book value. If impairment
occurs, the loss is measured by comparing thevédire of the asset to its carrying amount. Impairiesses are recorded in depreciation and
amortization expense.

Asset SalesDuring 2012, we sold two EMBRAER 190 aircraft, winiwe had been leasing to another airline, andpsxesaircraft
engines. We recorded net gains of approximatelyrfilln , which are included in other operatingperses in our consolidated statement of
operations. A portion of the proceeds receivedHerengine sales were credits to be applied todutwvoices from the maintenance provider

we sold the engines to.
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Software: We capitalize certain costs related to the sitipn and development of computer software. Weudizre these costs using
the straight-line method over the estimated uddé&bf the software, which is generally betweerefand ten years. The net book value of
computer software, which is included in other assetour consolidated balance sheets, was $53mdind $ 50 million at December 31, 2012
and 2011, respectively. Amortization expense eelab computer software was $ 13 million , $ 1diomland $ 13 million for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 , respectivehorfization expense related to computer softwapitalized as of December 31, 2012 is
expected to be approximately $13 million in 208311 million in 2014 , $ 8 million in 2015 , $ 6 lfion in 2016 , and $ 5 million in 2017 .

Intangible Assets: Intangible assets consist of acquired takeanff landing slots at certain domestic airports.rééerd these assets at
cost and amortize them on a straight-line basis theair expected useful lives, up to 15 years.0hX we acquired eight take-off and landing
slots at each of New York’s LaGuardia Airport anésihington D.C.’s Ronald Reagan National Airportdpproximately $ 72 million , of
which $32 million was paid in 2012 . As of DecemBér 2012 and 2011, the cost of intangible asseisrded was $76 million in each
respective year, and the accumulated amortizaéioorded was $6 million and $2 million , respectyyéloth of which are included in other
long term assets on our consolidated balance shetrtization expense related to these intangibfets is expected to be approximately $5
million in each of 2013 through 2017 . We periotlicavaluate these intangible assets for impairmieotvever we have not recorded any
impairment losses to date through December 31, 2012

Intangible assets also include an indefinite limedet related to an air-to-ground spectrum licengeired by LiveTV in 2006 at a public
auction from the Federal Communications Commisfompproximately $ 7 million . In September 200@ determined this spectrum license
had been impaired as further discussed in Notevhith resulted in a loss of approximately $ 5 roitlibeing recorded in other operating
expenses during 2010. There was no further impaitine2012 or 2011 , leaving approximately $ 2 millremaining in other long term assets
related to this license as of December 31, 2012 .

Passenger Revenues: Passenger revenue is recognized net of the thaéwe are required to collect from our cust@nierciuding
federal transportation taxes, security taxes arpbgifacility charges, when the transportatioprisvided or after the ticket or customer credit
(issued upon payment of a change fee) expiresef§cold but not yet recognized as revenue andpineeixcredits are included in air traffic
liability.

Loyalty Program:  We account for our customer loyalty programueBlue, by recording a liability for the estimaiadremental cost
of providing transportation for outstanding poiatgned from JetBlue purchases that we expect tede=med. We adjust this liability, whicl
included in air traffic liability, based on poirgarned and redeemed, changes in the estimatediectal costs associated with providing trave
and changes in the TrueBlue program.

Points in TrueBlue are also sold to participatiogypanies, including credit card and car rental caamgs. These sales are accounted for
as multiple-element arrangements, with one elemeggresenting the travel that will ultimately be yided when the points are redeemed and
the other consisting of marketing related actigitiieat we conduct with the participating compartye Tair value of the transportation portior
these point sales is deferred and recognized aepgesr revenue when transportation is provided.riddeting portion, which is the excess of
the total sales proceeds over the estimated faiewaf the transportation to be provided, is reéogghin other revenue when the points are ¢

TrueBlue points sold to participating companieschitare not redeemed are recognized as revenuetivgexpire. We recorded $ 5
million , $ 3 million , and $ 13 million in revenuelated to point expirations during 2012 , 201d 2010 , respectively.

Our original co-branded credit card agreement, undiéch we sell TrueBlue points as described abpweyided for a minimum cash
payment guarantee, which was paid to us througtheuife of the agreement if specified point salad other ancillary activity payments were
not achieved, and was subject to refund in the tetbat cash payments exceeded future minimums diwréyoril 2011. We recognized
approximately $ 10 million and $ 5 million of othevenue during 2011 and 2010 , respectively, edlat this guarantee.

Upon the re-launch of the TrueBlue program in Nolken2009, we extended our co-branded credit castdve@mbership rewards
participation agreements. In connection with theegensions, we received a one-time payment of ®ilion , which we deferred and are
recognizing as other revenue over the term of tfieeanent through 2015 . We recognized approxim&é&lynillion , $ 6 million , and $3
million of revenue related to this one-time paymaunting 2012 , 2011 and 2010 , respectively. Innemtion with exclusive benefits to be
introduced for our co-branded credit card, we nestia one-time payment of $6 million during 2018jak we have deferred and will
recognize as other revenue over the term of theeagent through 2015. As of December 31, 2042 have not recorded any revenue relat
this one-time payment.

LiveTV Revenues and Expenses: We account for LiveTV’s revenues and expenskgead to the sale of hardware, maintenance of
hardware, and programming services provided asgdesunit in accordance with tlevenue Recognition-Multiple-Element Arrangements
topic of the Codification because we lack objectinél reliable evidence of fair value of the undmled items. Revenues and expenses relate
to these components are recognized ratably ovesetheéce periods, which
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extend through 2021 as of December 31, 2012 . Gwstadvances to be applied in the next 12 monthéatuded in other current liabilities
on our consolidated balance sheets and those bdybnibnths are included in other liabilities on oansolidated balance sheets.

Airframe and Engine Maintenance and Repair: Regular airframe maintenance for owned ancekkéght equipment is charged to
expense as incurred unless covered by a third-parisices contract. We have separate service agréermmovering certain of our scheduled
and unscheduled repair of airframe line replaceraittcomponents and the engines on our Airbus A8gaft. These agreements, which
range from ten to 1gears, require monthly payments at rates basedraiththe number of cycles each aircraft was opdrdtiring each mon
or the number of flight hours each engine was dpdrduring each month, subject to annual escaktibimese power by the hour contracts
transfer certain risks, including cost risks, te third-party service providers and fix the amouwwgspay per flight hour or number of cycles in
exchange for maintenance and repairs under a pnedehaintenance program, which are representafitiee time and materials that would
consumed. These payments are expensed as tha féigtiehours or cycles are incurred. One of owimenance providers is a subsidiary of a
large shareholder of ours. During 2012, we recoajgatoximately $7 million in maintenance expens®jaed by this related party.

Advertising Costs: Advertising costs, which are included in salad marketing, are expensed as incurred. Advegtisipense was57
million in each of 2012 and 2011, and $55 milliar2010.

Share-Based Compensation: We record compensation expense for share-basedisivased on the grant date fair value of those
awards. Share-based compensation expense inclodssimate for pre-vesting forfeitures and is rexipgd over the requisite service periods
of the awards on a straight-line basis, which isegally commensurate with the vesting term.

Under theCompensation-Stock Compensatiopic of the Codification, the benefits associaigith tax deductions in excess of recogn
compensation cost are required to be reportediaarecing cash flow. We recorded an insignificamioant in excess tax benefits generated
from option exercises in each of 2012 , 2011 arh20

Our policy is to issue new shares for purchasesgwalti of our stock based plans, including our Gremnber Stock Purchase Plan, or
CSPP, and 2011 Crewmember Stock Purchase Plassurahces under our Amended and Restated 2002 I8tzskive Plan, or 2002 Plan,
and our 2011 Incentive Compensation Plan, or 2044. P

Income Taxes: We account for income taxes utilizing the lidpimethod. Deferred income taxes are recognipedte tax
consequences of temporary differences betweerathand financial statement reporting bases of asset liabilities. A valuation allowance
for deferred tax assets is provided unless redlizals judged by us to be more likely than nouiolicy is to recognize interest and penalties
accrued on any unrecognized tax benefits as a coemp@f income tax expense.

New Accounting Standards: Our financial statements are prepared in aesarel with the Codification which was establishe@0@9
and superseded all then existing accounting stdratasuments and has become the single sourcelairétative non-governmental U.S.
GAAP. New accounting rules and disclosure requirgsiean impact our financial results and the comipitity of our financial statements.
Authoritative literature that has recently beemégbswhich we believe will impact our consolidatethfcial statements is described below.
There are also several new proposals under develapincluding proposals related to leases, reveacegnition and financial instruments, if
and when enacted, may have a significant impaciurrinancial statements.

On January 1, 2012, Accounting Standards Updat&-R81 or ASU 2011-05, amending tBemprehensive Incomepic of the
Codification, became effective. This update chanigesequirements for the presentation of otherpretmensive income, eliminating the opt
to present components of other comprehensive inanpart of the statement of changes in stockhglléguity, among other things. ASU
2011-05 requires that all non-owner changes inkstolders’ equity be presented either in a singlatiooous statement of comprehensive
income or in two separate but consecutive statesn®¥v have included a separate statement of compsele income in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements for the yeargdmdkecember 31, 2012 , 2011 and 2010 . In Decef0ft, the FASB issued ASU 2011-12,
delaying the effective date of the portion of ASQL2-05 related to the presentation of reclassificaadjustments out of accumulated other
comprehensive income.

On January 1, 2012, ASU 2011-04, which amended#ieValue Measurements and Disclosutegic of the Codification, became
effective. The amendments in this update were @gdro result in common fair value measurementdisalosure requirements in U.S. GAAP
and International Financial Reporting Standard$FBS. ASU 2011-04 expands and enhances curresibdises about fair value
measurements and clarifies the FASB’s intent abmutipplication of existing fair value measurenrenquirements in certain circumstances.
We adopted these amendments prospectively on Jahu2012.

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-11, dingrtheBalance Shedbpic of the Codification. This update enhances the
disclosure requirements regarding offsetting assedsliabilities. ASU 2011-11 requires entitiegitsclose both gross information and net
information about both instruments and transactaliggble for offset in the statement of financial
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position and instruments and transactions subjegahtagreement similar to a master netting arrapgerfhese amendments are effective for
annual and interim reporting periods beginning pafter January 1, 2013 and should be appliedspéctively. We will evaluate any
instruments and transactions, including derivaigtruments, which are eligible for offset but wertbt expect that the adoption of this
standard will have a material impact on our oursalidated financial statements or notes thereto.

On January 1, 2011, the September 2009 EmergingdsBask Force updates to RRevenue Recognitidopic of the Codification rules

became effective, which changed the accountingddain revenue arrangements. The new requirerchatge the allocation methods used ir
determining how to account for multiple elemenaagements and may result in accounting for moreetables and potentially change the
amount of revenue deferrals. Additionally, this reweounting treatment requires enhanced disclogurf@gancial statements. This new
accounting treatment will impact any new contraettered into by LiveTV, as well as any TrueBluedlity program or commercial partnership
arrangements we may enter into or materially modipce adoption of this new accounting treatmemethave not entered into any material
new or modified contracts.

Note 2—Long-term Debt, Short-term Borrowings and Caital Lease Obligations

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations ard¢tated weighted average interest rate at Dece®ih@012 and 201donsisted of th

following (in millions):

2012 2011
Secured Debt
Floating rate equipment notes, due through 2025 (1) $ 81€ 2.71% $ 74% 2.68%
Floating rate enhanced equipment notes (2) (3)
Class G-1, due 2013, 2014 and 2016 173 3.1% 20z 3.1%
Class G-2, due 2014 and 2016 378 2.6% 372 2.5%
Class B-1, due 2014 49 6.5% 49 6.1%
Fixed rate equipment notes, due through 2026 96( 6.2% 1,192 6.2%
Fixed rate special facility bonds, due through 2086 82 6.C% 83 6.C%
Unsecured Debt
6.75% convertible debentures due in 2039 (5) 162 162
5.5% convertible debentures due in 2038 (6) 12z 12z
Capital Leases (7) 11z 3.€% 121 3.¢%
Total debt and capital lease obligations 2,851 3,04¢
Less: Current maturities (399 (19¢)
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations $ 2,45] $ 2,85(
(1) Interest rates adjust quarterly or semirually based on the London Interbank Offered RateIBOR, plus a margi
(2) In November 2006, we completed a public offgrof $124 million of pass-through certificateditmnce certain of our owned aircraft
spare parts. Separate trusts were establisheddbraass of these certificates. In November 20&lredeemed $3 million of class G-
1 certificates. The remaining principal amounthaf Class G-1 and Class B-1 certificates is schedolée paid in a lump sum on the
applicable maturity date. In April 2009, we enteneth interest rate swap agreements that haveteféy fixed the interest rate
increases for the remaining term of half of thes€I&-1 certificates and all of the Class B-1 dettes for the November 2006
offering. The swapped portion of the Class G-1 @ftabs B-1 certificates had a balance of $37 miliad $49 million respectively, ¢
December 31, 2012 , and the effective interessrate included in the above table. The interestf@tthe remaining $34 million of
the Class G-1 certificates is based on three moiB®R plus a margin . Interest is payable quarterly
(3) In November 2004 and March 2004, we compleiddlic offerings of $498 million and $431 milliomespectively, of pass-through

certificates to finance the purchase of 28 new #8r8320 aircraft delivered through 2005. Sepanatsts were established for each
class of these certificates. Quarterly principairpants are required on the Class G-1 certificathe.entire principal amount of the
Class G-2 certificates is scheduled to be paidlim® sum on the applicable maturity dates. In Batyr 2008, we entered into interest
rate swap agreements that have effectively fixedriterest rate for the remaining term of the Clask certificates for the November
2004 offering. These certificates
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(4)

(®)

(6)

had a balance of $76 million at December 31, 20fRam effective interest rate of 4.5% . In Februzi99, we entered into interest
rate swap agreements that have effectively fixedrterest rate for the remaining term of the Clas certificates for the November
2004 offering. These certificates had a balanckl86 million at December 31, 2012 and the effedtnerest rate is included in the
above table. The interest rate for all other degtés is based on three month LIBOR plus a marlyiterest is payable quarterly.

In December 2006, the New York City Industrial Dieyagnent Agency issued special facility revenue sofod JFK and, in Novemb
2005, the Greater Orlando Aviation Authority issspecial purpose airport facilities revenue bomisach case for reimbursement to
us for certain airport facility construction andhet costs. We have recorded the principal amoutitesfe bonds, net of discounts, as
long-term debt on our consolidated balance shestause we have issued a guarantee of the debt peyarethe bonds. This fixed
rate debt is secured by leasehold mortgages ddiquort facilities.

On June 9, 2009, we completed a public offeah$115 million aggregate principal amount of®84’ Series A convertible debentures
due 2039, or the Series A 6.75% Debentures, andvilién aggregate principal amount of 6.7%éries B convertible debentures
2039, or the Series B 6.75% Debentures, and cisldgtwith the Series A 6.75% Debentures, the 6. T3bentures. The 6.75%
Debentures are general obligations and rank equalt of payment with all of our existing anddu senior unsecured debt,
effectively junior in right of payment to our exisf and future secured debt, including our secesrdpment debentures, to the extent
of the value of the assets securing such debtsanidr in right of payment to any subordinated debaddition, the 6.75% Debentu
are structurally subordinated to all existing antlife liabilities of our subsidiaries. The net preds were approximately $197 million
after deducting underwriting fees and other tratisacelated expenses. Interest on the 6.75% Dabests payable semi-annually on
April 15 and October 15. The first interest paymemthe 6.75% Debentures was paid October 15, 2009.

Holders of either the Series A or Series B 6.75%édd¢ures may convert them into shares of our comstaek at any time at a
conversion rate of 204.6036 shares per $1,000ipahamount of the 6.75% Debentures. The convernsites are subject to
adjustment should we declare common stock dividen@$fect any common stock splits or similar ti@gtons. If the holders convert
the 6.75% Debentures in connection with a fundaal@ttange that occurs prior to October 15, 2014HerSeries A 6.75%
Debentures or October 15, 2016 for the Series B%.Debentures, the applicable conversion rate mapdreased depending on our
then current common stock price. The maximum nurobshares into which all of the 6.75% Debenturescanvertible, including
pursuant to this make-whole fundamental changeigicny is 235.2941 shares per $1,000 principal arthofithe 6.75% Debentures
outstanding, as adjusted, or 38.1 million sharesf &ecember 31, 2012.

We may redeem any of the 6.75% Debentures for @aaahiedemption price of 100% of their principalcamt, plus accrued and
unpaid interest at any time on or after October2084 for the Series A 6.75% Debentures and Octbbe?016 for the Series B
6.75% Debentures. Holders may require us to repseckhe 6.75% Debentures for cash at a repurchiasesgual to 100% of their
principal amount plus accrued and unpaid inteieahy, on October 15, 2014, 2019, 2024, 2029 &@g#Zor the Series A 6.75%
Debentures and October 15, 2016, 2021, 2026, 2082@36 for the Series B 6.75% Debentures; oratiare prior to their maturity
upon the occurrence of a certain designated event.

During 2011, we repurchased a total of $39 millwimcipal amount of our Series A 6.75% Debentucespproximately $45 million
We recognized a loss of approximately $6 milliontleese transactions, which is included in inteiestme and other on our
consolidated statements of operation during 2011.

We evaluated the various embedded derivatives mitté supplemental indenture for bifurcation frdra 6.75% Debentures under
applicable provisions, including the basic convardieature, the fundamental change make-whole gimviand the put and call
options. Based upon our detailed assessment, wiuded these embedded derivatives were eithek¢luded from bifurcation as a
result of being clearly and closely related to @i#&5% Debentures or are indexed to our common stodkwould be classified in
stockholders’ equity if freestanding or (ii) arenraterial embedded derivatives.

On June 4, 2008, we completed a public oftedh$100.6 million aggregate principal amount &§% Series A convertible debentul
due 2038, or the Series A 5.5% Debentures, and.6X0illion aggregate principal amount of 5.5% Sefeconvertible debentures
due 2038, or the Series B 5.5% Debentures, andotokly with the Series A 5.5% Debentures, thé&®Bebentures. The 5.5%
Debentures are general senior obligations and arggaally secured in part by an escrow accounefeh series. We deposited
approximately $32 million of the net proceeds fritva offering, representing the first six schedwdethi-annual interest payments on
the 5.5% Debentures, into escrow accounts fortbkisive benefit of the holders of each seriehef3.5% Debentures. As of
December 31,
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2011, all funds originally deposited in the escraeount had been used. Interest on the 5.5% Dalesritupayable semi-annually on
April 15 and October 15.

Holders of the Series A 5.5% Debentures may corilierh into shares of our common stock at any titreeanversion rate of
220.6288 shares per $1,000 principal amount oBS&i5.5% Debenture. Holders of the Series B 5.5%%ebtures may convert them
into shares of our common stock at any time atrevexsion rate of 225.2252 shares per $1,000 paheimount of Series B 5.5%
Debenture. The conversion rates are subject tesad@nt should we declare common stock dividenasfect any common stock
splits or similar transactions. If the holders cerivthe 5.5% Debentures in connection with any &mental corporate change that
occurs prior to October 15, 2013 for the Series3¥b Debentures or October 15, 2015 for the Serie$HB Debentures, the
applicable conversion rate may be increased depgngtion our then current common stock price. Theimnam number of shares of
common stock into which all of the remaining 5.5%b@ntures are convertible, including pursuant irttake-whole fundamental
change provision, is 33.2 million shares. Holdeh®wonverted their 5.5% Debentures prior to Apsil 2011 received, in addition to
the number of shares of our common stock calculatélde applicable conversion rate, a cash payfmemtthe escrow account for the
5.5% Debentures of the series converted equaktsum of the remaining interest payments that whaice been due on or before
April 15, 2011 in respect of the converted 5.5% &wdhres.

We may redeem any of the 5.5% Debentures for daamealemption price of 100% of their principal amp plus accrued and unpaid
interest at any time on or after October 15, 2@k3He Series A 5.5% Debentures and October 15 #i¥lthe Series B 5.5%
Debentures. Holders may require us to repurchasb.8% Debentures for cash at a repurchase pricd &1100% of their principal
amount plus accrued and unpaid interest, if anyQotober 15, 2013, 2018, 2023, 2028, and 203h®Series A 5.5% Debentures
and October 15, 2015, 2020, 2025, 2030, and 203théoSeries B 5.5% Debentures; or at any timer poitheir maturity upon the
occurrence of a specified designated event.

On June 4, 2008, in conjunction with the publiceafig of the 5.5% Debentures described above, seaitered into a share lending
agreement with Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporatedafiiliate of the underwriter of the offering, thre share borrower, pursuant to
which we loaned the share borrower approximatel® 44illion shares of our common stock. Under tharsllending agreement, the
share borrower is required to return the borrowetes when the debentures are no longer outstanffiaglid not receive any
proceeds from the sale of the borrowed sharesédoghiire borrower, but we did receive a nominalitentee of $0.01 per share from
the share borrower for the use of borrowed shares.

Our share lending agreement requires that the sthareowed be returned upon the maturity of thateel debt, October 2038, or
earlier, if the debentures are no longer outstandivie determined the fair value of the share legdimangement was approximately
$5 million at the date of the issuance based owahee of the estimated fees the shares loaneddwmye generated over the term of
the share lending arrangement. The $5 million valas recognized as a debt issuance cost and ig eiortized to interest expense
through the earliest put date of the related de@btpber 2013 and October 2015 for Series A andeS&j respectively. As of
December 31, 2012, approximately $1 million of delbt issuance costs remain outstanding relatdtetehare lending arrangement
and will continue to be amortized through the eatlput date of the related debt.

During 2008 and 2009, approximately $79 milliomgipal amount of the 5.5% Debentures were volulgtadnverted by holders. As
a result, we issued 17.5 million shares of our ceamistock. Cash payments from the escrow accoulattedeto the 2008 conversions
were $11 million and borrowed shares equivaletifiégonumber of shares of our common stock issued thpEse conversions were
returned to us pursuant to the share lending agreedescribed above. The borrower returned 10.0omishares to us in September
2009, almost all of which were voluntarily returngdthres in excess of converted shares, pursu#ing ghare lending agreement. In
October 2011, approximately 16.6 million sharesemeluntarily returned to us by the borrower, |egvl.4 million shares
outstanding under the share lending arrangemeetfdihvalue of similar common shares not subjeaur share lending arrangem:
based upon our closing stock price, was approxim&& million . At December 31, 2012, the remainprincipal balance was $123
million , which is currently convertible into 27mdillion shares of our common stock.

At December 31, 2012 and 2011 , four capéabed Airbus A320 aircraft were included in properid equipment at a cost of $152
million with accumulated amortization of $28 milli@and $23 million , respectively. The future minimlease payments under these
non-cancelable leases are $14 million in each @828rough 2017 and $82 million in the years thiteealncluded in the future
minimum lease payments is $39 million represeniitgrest, resulting in a present value of capéakks of $113 million with a
current portion of $8 million and a long-term portiof $105 million .
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During 2012, we modified the debt secured by tlufesur Airbus A320 aircraft, effectively lowerinbé borrowing rates over the
remaining term of the loans. In exchange for lob@trowing rates associated with two of these dfiréoans, we deposited funds equivalent to
the outstanding principal balance, a total of apjnately $ 57 million, as discussed in Note 1. Heposit, which is included in long-term
investment securities on our consolidated balaheetswill be reduced as quarterly principal payts@me made. If we withdraw the funds
deposited, the interest rate on the debt revedk twathe original borrowing rate.

Maturities of longterm debt and capital leases, including the assomfiat our convertible debt will be redeemed upanfirst put date
for the next five years are as follows (in milligns

Year Maturities
2013 $ 394
2014 572
2015 25¢
2016 45€
2017 182
Thereafter 98¢

We are subject to certain collateral ratio requigata in our spare parts pass-through certificatdsspare engine financing issued in
November 2006 and December 2007, respectivelyelfail to maintain these collateral ratios, we r@guired to provide additional collatera
redeem some or all of the equipment notes so lileatatios return to compliance. As a result of oedithird party valuation of these parts, we
pledged as collateral a spare engine with a caynyiarket value of approximately $7 million durifgtsecond quarter of 2011. In order to
maintain the ratios, we elected to redeem $3 milibthe equipment notes in November 2011.

Aircraft, engines, and other equipment and faesithaving a net book value of $3.61 billion at Deloer 31, 2012 were pledged as
security under various loan agreements. Cash pagnf@ninterest related to debt and capital ledsigations, net of capitalized interest,
aggregated $136 million , $136 million and $138lionl in 2012 , 2011 and 2010 , respectively.

The carrying amounts and estimated fair valuesuofang-term debt at December 31, 2012 and 201 & wasirfollows (in millions):

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Value Fair Value Value Fair Value
Public Debt
Floating rate enhanced equipment notes
Class G-1, due 2013, 2014, and 2016 $ 172 $ 164 $ 202 % 18t
Class G-2, due 2014 and 2016 373 351 373 31€
Class B-1, due 2014 49 48 49 47
Fixed rate special facility bonds, due through 2036 82 82 83 7€
6.75% convertible debentures due in 2039 162 22t 162 214
5.5% convertible debentures due in 2038 123 17z 123 162
Non-Public Debt
Floating rate equipment notes, due through 2025 81¢€ 77€ 748 712
Fixed rate equipment notes, due through 2026 96( 1,05(C 1,192 1,29:
Total $ 2,73t $ 2,86¢ $ 2927 $ 3,00¢

The estimated fair values of our publicly held leéegm debt are classified as Level 2 in the falugaierarchy. The fair values of our
enhanced equipment notes and our special faciibdb were based on quoted market prices in mankgtdow trading volumes. The fair
value of our convertible debentures was based offtar observable market inputs since they are ctotedy traded. The fair value of our non-
public debt was estimated using a discounted dashdnalysis based on our
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borrowing rates for instruments with similar teramsl therefore classified as Level 3 in the faiuedhierarchy. The fair values of our other
financial instruments approximate their carryindues. Refer to Note 14 for additional informatiamfair value.

We utilize a policy provider to provide credit sappon the Class G-1 and Class G-2 certificates. @dilicy provider has unconditionally
guaranteed the payment of interest on the certi#ficashen due and the payment of principal on thtficates no later than 18 months after the
final expected regular distribution date. The ppficovider is MBIA Insurance Corporation (a subaigliof MBIA, Inc.).

We have determined that each of the trusts retatedr aircraft EETCs meet the definition of a aaie interest entity as defined in the
Consolidationgopic of the Codification and must be consideredcfinsolidation in our financial statements. Owweasment of the EETCs
considers both quantitative and qualitative fagtordluding whether we have the power to directdbtvities and to what extent we participate
in the sharing of benefits and losses. We evaluegurpose for which these trusts were estaluisinel nature of risks in each. These trusts
were not designed to pass along variability tois.concluded that we are not the primary benefjdiathese trusts due to our involvement in
them being limited to principal and interest paytsen the related notes and the variability crebtedredit risk related to us and the
likelihood of our defaulting on the notes. Therefore have not consolidated these trusts in oanfiral statements.

Short-term Borrowings
Unsecured Revolving Credit Facility

In September 2011, we entered into a corporatehpsiag line with American Express, which allowga®orrow up to a maximum of
$125 million . Borrowings cannot exceed $30 milljper week and may only be used for the purchaget &fel. Borrowings on this corporate
purchasing line are subject to our compliance withterms and conditions of the credit agreemantuding certain financial covenants which
include a requirement to maintain certain cashshmit term investment levels and a minimum earnbejsre income taxes, interest,
depreciation and amortization, or EBITDA marginyadl as customary events of default. Borrowingbicl are to be paid monthly, are
subject to a 6.9% annual interest rate but couldidpeer if borrowing activity does not reach cartkvels. This borrowing facility will
terminate no later than January 5, 2015 . As ofebdaer 31, 2012 , we did not have a balance outistguhder this line of credit.

Morgan Stanley Line of Crec

In July 2012, we entered into a revolving line ofdit with Morgan Stanley for up to approximately0® million , and in December 2012,
the available line was increased to allow for baings up to $ 200 million. This line of credit iscured by a portion of our investment
securities held by them and the amount availablestonder this line of credit may vary accordindlijis line of credit bears interest at a
floating rate based upon LIBOR plus 100 basis poits of December 31, 2012 , we did not have arza outstanding under this line of
credit.

Note 3—Operating Leases

We lease aircraft, as well as airport terminal spather airport facilities, office space and otbguipment, under leases which expire in
various years through 2035. Total rental expensalf@perating leases in 2012 , 2011 and 2010$28&84 million , $269 million and $245
million , respectively. We have approximately $3illion in assets that serve as collateral for kstigf credit related to certain of our leases,
which are included in restricted cash.

During 2012 , we extended the leases on three AiABPO aircraft; leases which were previously sedxpire in 2013 . These extensions
resulted in an additional $24 million of lease coitnments through 2018 . During 2011 , we extendedeéhses on four Airbus A320 aircraft;
leases which we previously set to expire in 20IBese extensions resulted in an additional $19anilbf lease commitments through 2015 .

During 2010, we leased six used Airbus A320 aftdram a third party, each with a separate sixrymzerating lease term.

At December 31, 2012 , 60 of the 180 aircraft werafed were leased under operating leases, wik giration dates ranging from
2014 to 2026 . As of December 31, 2012 , two ofAidous A320 aircraft leases were scheduled torexwithin 18 months . Five of the 60
aircraft operating leases have variable rate rapiments based on LIBOR. Leases for 52 of our dircean generally be renewed at rates base
on fair market value at the end of the lease tennofie or two years . We have purchase option$ iof ur aircraft leases at the end of the
lease term at fair market value and a one-timeoopluring the term at fixed amounts that were etqubto approximate fair market value at
lease inception.

In 2010, we executed a supplement to our Termin@ase with the Port Authority of New York and Néersey, or PANYNJ. Under this
supplement, we leased the 19.35 acre portion ofkieivn as Terminal 6, which is adjacent to our entfacility at Terminal 5. We were
responsible for the demolishing, and related aetisj of the Terminal 6 passenger
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terminal buildings, the costs of which will be rdiorsed by the PANYNJ. The lease supplement alstait@nan option to extend our current
Terminal 5 structure onto this property.

In May 2012, the PANYNJ approved our expansiongoniinal 5 to accommodate a new international dgifecility. In October 2012,
we commenced construction on our new internatianatals facility, or T5i, which we expect to opgnearly 2015. T5i will include six
international arrival gates comprised of three @@ three converted from Terminal 5, as well amtarnational arrivals hall with full U.S.
Customs and Border Protection services. During 2@&2incurred approximately $17 million in capiédpenditures related to T5i.

Future minimum lease payments under noncancelgartng leases, including those described aboitk,imitial or remaining terms in
excess of one year at December 31, 2012 , ardlaw$qin millions):

Aircraft Other Total
2013 $ 13z $ 66 $ 19¢
2014 13€ 5€ 194
2015 145 48 191
2016 82 43 12¢
2017 70 41 111
Thereafter 331 34z 672
Total minimum operating lease payments $ 89 $ 50¢ $ 1,49:

We have entered into sale-leaseback arrangemethtahird party lender for 45 of our operatingcedft. The sale-leasebacks occurred
simultaneously with the delivery of the relatecteaft to us from their manufacturers. Each saledback transaction was structured with a
separate trust set up by the third party lenderaisets of which consist of the one aircraftatjtitransferred to it following the sale by us and
the subsequent lease arrangement with us. Bechtiseirdimited capitalization and the potentialedefor additional financial support, these
trusts are variable interest entities as definat@&Consolidationgopic of the Codification and must be consideradctmsolidation in our
financial statements. Our assessment of eachdonsiders both quantitative and qualitative factorsluding whether we have the power to
direct the activities and to what extent we pgptité in the sharing of benefits and losses ofrtstd. JetBlue does not retain any equity
interests in any of these trusts and our obligatiorthem are limited to the fixed rental paymewtsare required to make to them, which were
approximately $795 million as of December 31, 28h@ are reflected in the future minimum lease paymim the table above. Our only
interest in these entities are the purchase optmasquire the aircraft as specified above. Stheee are no other arrangements (either implici
or explicit) between us and the individual trustattwould result in our absorbing additional vaitigbfrom the trusts, we concluded that we
not the primary beneficiary of these trusts. Weoaat for these leases as operating leases, foltpthie appropriate lease guidance as requiret
by theLeasegopic in the Codification.

Note 4—JFK Terminal 5

In 2008, we began operating out of our new Termbnal JFK, or Terminal 5. The construction and apien of this facility is governed
by various lease agreements with the PANYNJ. Utlieeterms of the facility lease agreement, we wesponsible for the construction of a
635,000 square foot 26-gate terminal, a parkinggmrroadways and an AirTrain Connector, all ofolkdare owned by the PANYNJ and
which are collectively referred to as the Proj¥¢e are responsible for various payments underethge, including ground rents for the new
terminal site which began on lease execution irb20td are reflected in the future minimum leasanpayts table in Note 3, and facility rents
which commenced in 2008 when we took beneficialipancy of Terminal 5, and are included below. Tdwdlity rents are based on the
number of passengers enplaned out of the ternsnbject to annual minimums. The lease terms e2038 and we have a one-time early
termination option in 2033.

We were considered the owner of the Project farfaial reporting purposes only and have been redud reflect an asset and liability
for the Project on our consolidated balance shaete construction commenced in 2005. Since ceeleiments of the Project, including the
parking garage and AirTrain Connector, are notestthip the underlying ground lease, following thdelivery to and acceptance by the
PANYNJ in October 2008, we removed them from ourstdidated balance sheets. Our continuing involverrethe remainder of the Project
precludes us from sale and leaseback accountiatgftre the cost of these elements of the Projetttze related liability will remain on our
consolidated balance sheets and be accounted éofirzancing.
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Through December 31, 2012 , total costs incurredhfe elements of the Project which are subjethéounderlying ground lease were
$637 million , $561 million of which is reflected @ssets Constructed for Others and $76 milliowloith are leasehold improvements
included in ground property and equipment in oursmbidated balance sheets. These amounts reftemt-gash $133 million reduction in 2008
for costs incurred for the elements that were objext to the underlying ground lease. Assets Qoatsd for Others are being amortized over
the shorter of the 25 year non-cancelable lease d¢eitheir economic life. We recorded $23 millionamortization expense in 2012 , and $22
million in each of 2011 and 2010 .

The PANYNJ has reimbursed us for the amounts ctiyrercluded in Assets Constructed for Others, esisle of capitalized interest of
$68 million . These reimbursements and the capédlinterest are reflected as Construction Obbgaiti our consolidated balance sheets. As
facility rents are paid, they are treated as dehtise on the Construction Obligation, with thetfmr not relating to interest reducing the
principal balance. Minimum estimated facility paym® including escalations, associated with thdifiatease are estimated to be $40 million
in each of 2013 through 2017 and $656 millibareafter. The portion of these scheduled paynsamtsng to reduce the principal balance o
Construction Obligation is $13 million in 2013 ,4btillion in 2014 , $15 million in each of 2015 a@@16 and $16 million in 2017 . Payments
could exceed these amounts depending on futuremeiplent levels at JFK. Scheduled facility paymespisesentative of interest totaled $27
million , $28 million and $27 million in 2012 , 2@Jand 2010 , respectively.

We have subleased a portion of Terminal 5, primajilace for concessionaires as well as to Hawaiidimes, who beginning in 2012
began operating out of Terminal 5. Minimum leasgnpents due to us are subject to various escalatioounts through 2019 and also inclut
percentage of gross receipts, which may vary frasntinto month. Future minimum lease payments dws tduring each of the next five ye
are estimated to be $11 million per year in each0df3 through 2016 , and $8 million in 2017 .

Note 5—Stockholders’ Equity

In September 2012, our Board of Directors authdraeshare repurchase program for up to 25 millf@ress of common stock over a
five year period. The repurchases may be commencedpesded from time to time without prior notice. dgrthe fourth quarter of 2012,
repurchased approximately 4.1 million shares ofamimmon stock for approximately $23 million . Theees repurchased under our share
repurchase program were purchased in open masketactions.

Pursuant to our amended Stockholder Rights Agreemérich became effective in February 2002 , edaresof common stock has
attached to it a right and, until the rights exgireare redeemed, each new share of common swiddy the Company will include oright.
Upon the occurrence of certain events describealhedach right entitles the holder to purchaseamethousandth of a share of Series A
participating preferred stock at an exercise pofc35.55, subject to further adjustment. The rights becexercisable only after any persor
group acquires beneficial ownership of 15% or n{@8% or more in the case of certain specifiedldioltlers) of the Company’s outstanding
common stock or commences a tender or exchangetbéfewould result in such person or group acqgibieneficial ownership of 15% or
more ( 25% or more in the case of certain stockdrs)dof the Company’s common stock. If after tighis become exercisable, the Company i
involved in a merger or other business combinatiosells more than 50% of its assets or earningepogach right will entitle its holder (other
than the acquiring person or group) to receive comstock of the acquiring company having a markdies of twice the exercise price of the
rights. The rights expired on April 17, 2012 .

As of December 31, 2012 , we had a total of 187lom shares of our common stock reserved foras®e related to our 2011 Plan, our
2002 Plan, our 2011 CSPP, our original CSPP, oavextible debt, and our share lending facility. gf$ecember 31, 2012 , we had a total of
49.6 million shares of treasury stock, the majooityvhich resulted from the return of borrowed &sannder our share lending agreement and
also includes shares repurchased under our starehase program described above. Refer to Nabe f2ifther details on the share lending
agreement and Note 7 for further details on oureshbased compensation.

Note 6—Earnings Per Share

The following table shows how we computed basic dihded earnings per common share for the yeals@&®ecember 31 (dollars in
millions; share data in thousands):
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2012 2011 2010

Numerator:
Net income $ 126 % 86 $ 97
Effect of dilutive securities:

Interest on convertible debt, net of income taxes discretionary profit

sharing 9 12 11
Net income applicable to common stockholders @&$sumed conversio
for diluted earnings per share $ 137 % 98 ¢ 10¢
Denominator:
Weighted-average shares outstanding for basicreggmer share 282,31 278,68¢ 275,36
Effect of dilutive securities:
Employee stock options 1,23i 1,66( 2,611
Convertible debt 60,57t 66,11¢ 68,60:
Adjusted weighted-average shares outstanding asudheed conversions
for diluted earnings per share 344,12¢ 346,46 346,58(

Shares excluded from EPS calculation (in millions):

Shares issuable upon conversion of our convertible since assumed
conversion would be antidilutive — — —

Shares issuable upon exercise of outstanding sioidns since assumed
exercise would be antidilutive 19.5 22.2 24.C

As of December 31, 2012 , a total of approximatetiymillion shares of our common stock, which wlerg to our share borrower
pursuant to the terms of our share lending agretasedescribed in Note 2, were issued and outstgrfdr corporate law purposes. Holders of
the borrowed shares have all the rights of a hadleur common stock. However, because the sharewer must return all borrowed shares
to us (or identical shares or, in certain circumsés of default by the counterparty, the cash vélareof), the borrowed shares are not
considered outstanding for the purpose of compwtmdyreporting basic or diluted earnings per share.

Note 7—Share-Based Compensation

Fair Value AssumptionsWe used a Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing nhédestimate the fair value of share-based awirds
accordance with thEompensation-Stock Compensatiopic of the Codification, for stock options unaer 2002 Plan. The Black-Scholes-
Merton option pricing model incorporates variousl &ighly subjective assumptions, including expederth and expected volatility. We
reviewed our historical pattern of option exercigader our 2002 Plan, and determined that meanidgffarences in option exercise activity
existed among employee job categories. Thereforalf stock options granted after January 1, 20@6categorized these awards into three
groups of employees for valuation purposes.

We estimated the expected term of options grams@wyuan implied life derived from the results datice model, which incorporates ¢
historical exercise and post-vesting employmemhitgstion patterns, which we believe are represietalf future behavior. The expected term
for our restricted stock units is based on the @ased service period.

We estimated the expected volatility of our comrstotk at the grant date using a blend of 75% hestbyolatility of our common stock
and 25% implied volatility of two-year publicly tlad options on our common stock as of the optiamtgate. Our decision to use a blend of
historical and implied volatility was based upoe tlolume of actively traded options on our commmelsand our belief that historical
volatility alone may not be completely representabtf future stock price trends.

Our risk-free interest rate assumption was detezthimsing the Federal Reserve nominal rates for Tre&asury zero-coupon bonds with
maturities similar to those of the expected terrthefaward being valued. We have never paid any dagdends on our common stock and we
do not anticipate paying any cash dividends inftheseeable future. Therefore, we assumed an eegbdotidend yield of zero .

Additionally, theCompensation-Stock Compensatiopic of the Codification requires us to estimate-pesting forfeitures at the time of
grant and periodically revise those estimates bssquent periods if actual forfeitures differ frtise estimates. We record stock-based
compensation expense only for those awards expéztesst using an estimated forfeiture rate basedus historical pre-vesting forfeiture
data.
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We have not granted any stock options since 2088tase previously granted became fully expens@dir?. Unrecognized stodiasec
compensation expense was approximately $15 miloof December 31, 2012 , relating to a total 6fdillion unvested restricted stock units
under our 2002 Plan and 2011 Plan. We expect tmréze this stock-based compensation expense oveighted average period of
approximately two years. The total fair value afcét options vested was approximately $2 millio® ndillion and $9 million during 2012 ,
2011 and 2010, respectively.

2011 Incentive Compensation Plan:At our Annual Shareholders Meeting held on N&y 2011, our shareholders approved the new
2011 Incentive Compensation Plan, which replaced802 Plan, which was set to expire at the er#Ddi. Upon inception, the 2011 Plan
15.0 million shares of our common stock reservedsisuance. The 2011 Plan, by its terms, will teate no later than May 2021.

The following is a summary of restricted stock wattivity under the 2011 Plan for the year endedebsber 31, 2012. Activity in 2011
for the 2011 Plan was insignificant.

2012

Weighted

Average

Grant Date

Shares Fair Value
Nonvested at beginning of year 65,91 $ 5.0¢€
Granted 2,570,89. 5.7¢
Vested (20,249 5.0¢
Forfeited (132,89) 5.82
Nonvested at end of year 2,483,66. $ S5.71

Amended and Restated 2002 Stock Incentive Plahhe 2002 Plan, which included stock optionaéssduring 1999 through 2001 under
a previous plan as well as all options issued f2@®2 through adoption of the 2011 Plan providedrfoentive and non-qualified stock options
and restricted stock units to be granted to cedaiployees and members of our Board of Direct@syell as deferred stock units to be grai
to members of our Board of Directors. The 2002 Placame effective following our initial public offeg in April 2002.

Beginning in 2007, we began issuing restrictedkstotts under the 2002 Plan. These awards vestrina installments over three years
or could be accelerated upon the occurrence ohagghin control as defined in the 2002 Plan. Olicypds to grant restricted stock units based
on the market price of the underlying common stockhe date of grant.

The following is a summary of restricted stock wattivity under the 2002 Plan for the year endedebwber 31:

2012 2011 2010

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average

Grant Date Grant Date Grant Date

Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value Shares Fair Value
Nonvested at beginning of year 4,093,48 % 5.64 3,681,01. $ 5.1¢ 3,310,37. % 5.1LE
Granted — — 2,677,80! 6.01 2,086,97. 5.3¢€
Vested (1,921,941 5.41 (1,731,14) 5.2€ (1,262,45) 5.32
Forfeited (142,46)) 5.7¢€ (534,19)) 5.57 (453,87Y) 5.21
Nonvested at end of year 2,029,08 % 5.8t 4,093,48 $ 5.64 3,681,01: $ 5.1¢

The total intrinsic value, determined as of theedzftvesting, of all restricted stock units undettbPlans vested and converted to shares
of common stock during the year ended Decembe2@®112 , 2011 and 2010 was $11 million , $10 milleord $7 million respectively.

We began issuing deferred stock units in 2008 uttteR002 Plan to members of our Board of DirectBrior to 2011, these awards
vested immediately upon being granted. Beginning0hl, the vesting period was changed to eitheioorieree years of service. Once vested,
shares are issued six months and one day follothimdpirector’'s departure from the Board. During yiears ended December 31, 2012 and
2011, we granted an insignificant amount of def@stock units, almost all of which remain outstagdt December 31, 2012 .
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Prior to January 1, 2006, stock options under 8@22Plan became exercisable when vested, whichrrectin annual installments of
three to seven years. For issuances under theR@8beginning in 2006, we revised the vesting sesmthat all options granted vest in equal
installments over a period of three or five yeargjpon the occurrence of a change in controloptions issued under the 2002 Plan expire te

years from the date of grant. Our policy is to g@ptions with an exercise price equal to the miapkiee of the underlying common stock

the date of grant.

The following is a summary of stock option activity the years ended December 31, :

2012 2011 2010
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Exercise Exercise
Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning of year 21,807,17 $ 13.9] 23,600,49 $ 13.42 25,592,88 $ 12.8¢
Granted — — — — — —
Exercised (493,73) 4.0C (934,99) 2.0¢ (1,158,18) 1.61
Forfeited — — (23,700 8.9 (27,605 11.32
Expired (5,468,31) 12.0¢ (834,63) 13.3¢ (806,59 13.4(
Outstanding at end of year 15,845,12. 14.87 21,807,17 $ 13.91 23,600,49 ¢ 13.42
Vested at end of year 15,845,12. $ 14.87 21,550,52 $ 13.9¢ 22,504,45 $ 13.47
Available for future grants 56,105,16 50,494,38 39,997,98
The following is a summary of outstanding stockiaps at December 31, 2012 :
Options Outstanding, Vested and Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Remaining Weighted Aggregate
Contractual Average Intrinsic Value
Range of exercise prices Shares Life (years) Exercise Price (millions)
$7.79 to $29.71 15,845,12 22 % 14.87 $ =
15,845,12 $ —

The total intrinsic value, determined as of theedzftexercise, of options exercised during theweehonths ended December 31, 2012 ,
2011 and 2010 was $1 million , $3 million and $3liom , respectively. Amounts received in cashdptions exercised were $2 million in each
of the years ended December 31, 2012 , 2011 an@ 201

Under the 2002 Plan, the number of shares reséovéssuance automatically increased each Janueantamount equal to 4% of the
total number of shares of our common stock outstanon the last trading day in December of thepeadendar year. This automatic reload
feature was eliminated with the adoption of the 120&1 Plan.

Crewmember Stock Purchase Planin May 2011, our shareholders also approved the2@4 Crewmember Stock Purchase Plan, or
the 2011 CSPP, to replace the original Crewmemtmak3urchase Plan, which was set to expire inl&®12. Upon inception, the 2011
CSPP had 8.0 million shares of our common stocérvesl for issuance. The 2011 CSPP, by its ternistesininate no later than the last
business day of April 2021. The other terms ofa2B&1 CSPP are substantially similar to those obtiginal CSPP.

The following is a summary of CSPP share resertigigcunder the 2011 Crewmember Stock Purchase félathe year ended
December 31.:

2012
Weighted
Shares Average Price
Available for future purchases, beginning of year 8,000,001
Shares reserved for issuance —
Common stock purchased (1,563,77) $ 4.7t
6,436,22.

Available for future purchases, end of year
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Our original CSPP, which was available to all ergples, had 5.1 million shares of our common stoitkaily reserved for issuance at its
inception in April 2002. Through 2008, the reseautomatically increased each January by an amauat ¢o 3% of the total number of sha
of our common stock outstanding on the last tradiag in December of the prior calendar year. Th@E®as amended in 2008 to eliminate
this automatic reload.

The 2011 CSPP, as did the original CSPP, has @ssgfrsuccessive overlapping six months offeringogs, with a new offering period
beginning on the first business day of May and Naver each year. Employees can only join an offepeigod on the start date. Employees
may contribute up to 10% of their pay, through p#ydeductions, toward the purchase of common stBakchase dates occur on the last
business day of April and October each year.

CSPP participation is considered non-compensa®thie@purchase price discount is only 5% based thgostock price on the date of
purchase.

Should we be acquired by merger or sale of subiathnall of our assets or sale of more than 50%wf outstanding voting securities,
then all outstanding purchase rights will autonadlyche exercised immediately prior to the effeetdate of the acquisition at a price equal to
95% of the fair market value per share immediapelgr to the acquisition.

The following is a summary of CSPP share resertigigcunder the original CSPP for the years enBedember 31, 2011 and 2010.
There was no activity in 2012 under the originaP®Sand the shares remain reserved at Decembed B4, 2

2011 2010
Weighted Weighted
Shares Average Price Shares Average Price
Available for future purchases, beginning of year 20,923,95 22,169,55
Shares reserved for issuance — —
Common stock purchased (1,617,60) $ 4.7€ (1,245,59) $ 5.9¢
Available for future purchases, end of year 19,306,35 20,923,95

TheCompensation-Stock Compensatiopic of the Codification requires that deferrexiembe recognized on temporary differences tha
arise with respect to stock-based compensatioib@tible to nonqualified stock options and awakttswvever, no tax benefit is recognized for
stock-based compensation attributable to incerstiwek options (ISO) or CSPP shares until theredisgualifying disposition, if any, for
income tax purposes. A portion of our stock-bassdpensation is attributable to ISO and CSPP sh#resfore, our effective tax rate is
subject to fluctuation.

LiveTV Equity Incentive Plan. In April 2009, our Board of Directors approved ttieeTV Equity Incentive Plan, or EIP, an equity
based incentive plan for certain members of leduieia our wholly-owned subsidiary, LiveTV. Notidregjuity units were available under the
EIP, representing up to 12% of the notional equitgrest of LiveTV. Compensation cost was recondgdbly over the service period. In May
2011, we terminated the EIP. In exchange for thease of their rights under the EIP, participantsergranted restricted stock units under the
2002 Plan in May 2011.

Note 8—LiveTV

Through December 31, 2012, LiveTV had installedlight entertainment systems for other airlines4@9 aircraft and had firm
commitments for installations of in-flight enterteient and Ka broadband connectivity on 219 additiaircraft scheduled to be installed
through 2015 , with options for 52 additional irgfit entertainment installations through 2014 . &wmes in 2012 , 2011 and 2010 were $81
million , $82 million and $72 million , respectiyelDeferred profit on hardware sales and advanpedits for future hardware sales are
included in other accrued liabilities and othergdarm liabilities on our consolidated balance shéepending on whether we expect to
recognize it in the next 12 months or beyond ans avtotal of $34 million and $54 million at DecemBé, 2012 and 2011 , respectively.
Deferred profit to be recognized on installationmpleted through December 31, 2012 will be appretaty $4 million in 2013, $3 million
per year from 2014 through 2017 and $7 million ¢fadter. The net book value of equipment instaltedbther airlines was approximately $109
million and $111 million as of December 31, 2012 2011 , respectively, and is included in otheetssn our consolidated balance sheets.

In December 2011, LiveTV terminated its contradiwane of its other airline customers, which hadlight entertainment systems
installed on 140 aircraft at the time of terminatiavhich are excluded from the totals above. Innemtion with the termination, the customer
paid approximately $16 million , which was includadther accrued liabilities on the consolidatathbhce sheet as of December 31, 2011 .
Upon fulfilling our obligation to deactivate sereion the installed aircraft, we recorded a gaifi®million in other operating expenses during
the first quarter of 2012 related to the terminaitdd this contract.
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Note 9—Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes consisted of théofeing for the years ended December 31 (in milljons

2012 2011 2010
Deferred:
Federal $ 68 $ 51 % 55
State 8 7 7
Deferred income tax expense 76 58 62
Current income tax expense 5 1 2
Total income tax expense $ 81 § 58 % 64

The effective tax rate on income before incomegadiefered from the federal income tax statuton far the years ended December 31
for the following reasons (in millions):

2012 2011 2010
Income tax expense at statutory rate $ 73 % 51 % 57
Increase (decrease) resulting from:
State income tax, net of federal benefit 6 5 6
Valuation allowance — — 2
Other, net 2 3 3
Total income tax expense $ 81 $ 52 % 64

Cash payments for income taxes were $4 million0h22, zero in 2011 and $1 million in 2010 .

The net deferred taxes below include a currentleftrred tax asset of $107 million and a long-tegndeferred tax liability of $481
million at December 31, 2012 , and a current nérded tax asset of $99 million and a long-termdederred tax liability of $392 million at
December 31, 2011 .

The components of our deferred tax assets anditi@bias of December 31 are as follows (in mil§@in

2012 2011
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforwards $ 127 % 17¢
Employee benefits 36 37
Deferred revenue/gains 82 7€
Rent expense 22 2C
Terminal 5 lease 26 22
Capital loss carryforwards 20 2C
Other 37 38
Valuation allowance (20 (22)
Deferred tax assets 33C 367
Deferred tax liabilities:
Accelerated depreciation (704 (660
Deferred tax liabilities (704 (660)
Net deferred tax liability $ (3749 $ (293)

Rent expense had previously been included in defeevenue/gains. Terminal 5 lease was previouasluded with accelerated
depreciation and deferred revenue/gains.

At December 31, 2012 , we had U.S. Federal reguidralternative minimum tax net operating loss (tN)rarryforwards of $371
million and $343 million , respectively, which badgb expire in 2025 . In addition, at December 31,
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2012 , we had deferred tax assets associated tattSOLs of $9 million , which begin to expire2014 . Our NOL carryforwards at
December 31, 2012 include an unrecorded beneéippfoximately $9 million related to stock-based pemsation that will be recorded in
equity when, and to the extent, realized. SectBh & the Internal Revenue Code imposes limitatmma corporation’s ability to use its NOL
carryforwards if it experiences an “ownership chahés of December 31, 2012 , our valuation alloeeadid not include any amounts
attributable to this limitation; however, if an “oership change” were to occur in the future, thiétplbo use our NOLs could be limited.

In evaluating the realizability of the deferred &ssets, we assess whether it is more likely tibathat some portion, or all, of the
deferred tax assets, will be realized. We consai®gng other things, the generation of future texaitome (including reversals of deferred
tax liabilities) during the periods in which thdaied temporary differences will become deductiBieDecember 31, 2012 , we provided a $20
million valuation allowance to reduce the deferr@dassets to an amount that we consider is miaely lthan not to be realized. Our valuation
allowance at December 31, 2012 is related to ddp#a carryforwards which expire in 2015 and 2016.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoeaininrecognized tax benefits is as follow (in iifis):

Unrecognized tax benefits December 31, 2009 $ 9
Increases for tax positions taken during the period 2
Unrecognized tax benefits December 31, 2010 11
Increases for tax positions taken during the period 1
Unrecognized tax benefits December 31, 2011 12
Increases for tax positions taken during the period 1
Unrecognized tax benefits December 31, 2012 $ 13

Interest and penalties accrued on unrecognizebengfits were not significant. If recognized, $1@lion of the unrecognized tax
benefits at December 31, 2012 would impact ourcéffe tax rate. We do not expect any significararaye in the amount of the unrecognized
tax benefits within the next twelve months. As suteof NOLs and statute of limitations in our nrajax jurisdictions, years 2001 through 2!
remain subject to examination by the relevant tatherities.

Note 10—Employee Retirement Plan

We sponsor a retirement savings 401(k) definedribnriton plan, or the Plan, covering all of our dayges. In 2012, we matched 100%
of our employee contributions up to 5% of their @msation in cash, which vests over five yearspfise measured from an employee’s hire
date. Participants are immediately vested in thauntary contributions.

Another component of the Plan is a Company dismmatiy contribution of 5% of eligible non-managememployee compensation,
which we refer to aRetirement PlusRetirement Plusontributions vest 100% after three years of sermieasured from an employee’s hire
date. Our non-management employees are also eligibeceive profit sharing, calculated as 15%djfisted pre-tax income reduced by the
guaranteedRetirement Plusontributions discussed above. Additionally cer@fiour FAA-licensed employees receive an additiona
contribution of 3% of eligible compensation, whigk refer to aRketirement Advantag&otal Retirement Plus, Retirement Advantagf@l (k)
company match and profit sharing expensed in 2@.1 and 2010 were $73 million , $61 million arkb $nillion , respectively.

Note 11—Commitments
Flight Equipment Commitments

In December 2012, we prepaid $200 million for dar013 aircraft deliveries and deposits on futaireraft deliveries in exchange for
favorable pricing terms.

In July 2012, we amended our EMBRAER purchase ageeé accelerating the delivery of one aircraft@d2, which was previously
scheduled for delivery in 2014. Additionally, wetexded the date for which we may elect not to frimend our purchase agreement to ¢
a new EMBRAER 190 variant, if developed, to July 3Q13. If the new variant is not elected, severBRMER 190 aircraft we previously
deferred may either be returned to their previogsiymitted to delivery dates in

69




2013 and 2014 or canceled and subject to canagllétes. In December 2012, we further amended MBREAER purchase agreement
effectively accelerating the delivery of four aaftrfrom 2018 to 2013.

During 2011, we cancelled the orders for a total BEMBRAER 190 aircraft previously scheduled fetigery in 2013, 2014, 2017 and
2018. We also deferred seven EMBRAER 190 aircnagtipusly scheduled for delivery in 2013 and 2042@18.

In October 2011, we executed a new purchase agreemith Airbus S.A.S., which superseded our origmarchase agreement and
related amendments. In this new agreement, weitiibst30 of our then remaining A320 aircraft delies with A321 aircraft and placed a
new order for 40 A320 new engine option, or A32Qreeraft with delivery scheduled in 2018 thro2fiP1.

As of December 31, 2012 , our firm aircraft ordemssisted of 14 Airbus A320 aircraft, 30 Airbus A3&ircraft, 40 Airbus A320neo, 31
EMBRAER 190 aircraft and 10 spare engines schedoledelivery through 2021 . Committed expenditui@sthese aircraft and related flight
equipment, including estimated amounts for contralgbrice escalations and predelivery depositd,beilapproximately $360 million in 2013,
$525 million in 2014 , $745 million in 2015 , $76%llion in 2016 , $575 million in 2017 and $2.04libin thereafter.

We are scheduled to receive three new Airbus ABR,new Airbus A321 and seven new EMBRAER 190raitdn 2013. As described
above, we pre-paid some of our 2013 aircraft dékse We have committed financing for tE6MBRAER 190 aircraft scheduled for delivery
2013. We will only opportunistically finance thewaining 2013 scheduled deliveries at favorabledwimg terms relative to our weighted
average cost of debt.

Other Commitments

We utilize several credit card processors to prooes ticket sales. Our agreements with these psoce do not contain covenants, bu
generally allow the processor to withhold cashmessto protect the processor for potential lisypilor tickets purchased, but not yet used for
travel. While we currently do not have any collateequirements related to our credit card proasssee may be required to issue collateral tc
our credit card processors, or other key vendorthe future. As of December 31, 2012 , we had@pprately $16 million pledged related to
our workers compensation insurance policies andrdibsiness partner agreements, which will exgioeling to the terms of the related
policies or agreements.

Our commitments also include those of LiveTV, whitas several noncancelable long-term purchaseragrée with its suppliers to
provide equipment to be installed on its customairgraft, including JetBlue’s aircraft. At Decennt®4, 2012 , committed expenditures to
these suppliers were approximately $21 million®1.2, $16 million in 2014 , $7 million in 2015 a#@ million in each of 2016 and 2017 .

In March 2011, we executed a seven year agreesignject to an optional thrgear extension, with ViaSat Inc. to develop andoiatice
in-flight broadband connectivity technology on aincraft. Committed expenditures under this agregnmelude a minimum of $9 million
through 2018 and an additional $23 million for minim hardware and software purchases. Through Live#®/plan to partner with ViaSat to
make this technology available to other airlinetoosers in the future as well.

We enter into individual employment agreements wibh of our FAAicensed employees, which include pilots, dispatshtechnician
and inspectors as well as air traffic controll&ach employment agreement is for a term of fiveyaad automatically renews for an
additional five-year term unless either the empéogewe elect not to renew it by giving at leasd@@s notice before the end of the relevant
term. Pursuant to these agreements, these emplogeemly be terminated for cause. In the eveatadwnturn in our business that would
require a reduction in work hours, we are obligateday these employees a guaranteed level of ia@md to continue their benefits if they do
not obtain other aviation employment. None of auplyees are covered by collective bargaining agesgs.

Note 12—Contingencies

We self-insure a portion of our losses from clamlated to workers’ compensation, environmentalass property damage, medical
insurance for employees and general liability. legsare accrued based on an estimate of the ulteggtegate liability for claims incurred,
using standard industry practices and our actyadiéence.

We are a party to many routine contracts under kvivie indemnify third parties for various risks. $eendemnities consist of the
following:

All of our bank loans, including our aircraft angigine mortgages, contain standard provisions ptésdoans of this type which obligate
us to reimburse the bank for any increased costscated with continuing to hold the loan on ouok®which arise as a result of broadly
defined regulatory changes, including changessaeme requirements and bank capital requiremehiss&indemnities would have the
practical effect of increasing the interest rateoandebt if they were to be
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triggered. In all cases, we have the right to repayloan and avoid the increased costs. The téthese indemnities matches the length of the
related loan up to 12 years .

Under both aircraft leases with foreign lessors aincraft and engine mortgages with foreign lendershave agreed to customary
indemnities concerning withholding tax law changader which we are responsible, should withhold&gs be imposed, for paying such
amount of additional rent or interest as is neagssaensure that the lessor or lender still reegj\after taxes, the rent stipulated in the lease ¢
the interest stipulated under the loan. The terthede indemnities matches the length of the latese up to 18 years .

We have various leases with respect to real prppand various agreements among airlines relatirfgel consortia or fuel farms at
airports, under which we have agreed to standagliage indemnifying the lessor against environnidiatailities associated with the real
property or operations described under the agregraeen if we are not the party responsible forittitgal event that caused the environmental
damage. In the case of fuel consortia at airptrese indemnities are generally joint and severaray the participating airlines. We have
purchased a stand alone environmental liabilityiiasce policy to help mitigate this exposure. Qusteng aviation hull and liability policy
includes some limited environmental coverage whelean up is part of an associated single idebt#i@overed loss.

Under certain contracts, we indemnify specifiediparagainst legal liability arising out of actidog other parties. The terms of these
contracts range up to 30 years . Generally, we hab#ity insurance protecting ourselves for thaigations we have undertaken relative to
these indemnities.

LiveTV provides product warranties to third partglines to which it sells its products and servicé& do not accrue a liability for
product warranties upon sale of the hardware gieeenue is recognized over the term of the relagedice agreements of up to 12 years .
Expenses for warranty repairs are recognized gsabeur. In addition, LiveTV has provided indemegiagainst any claims which may be
brought against its customers related to allegatadrpatent, trademark, copyright or license irfément as a result of the use of the LiveTV
system. LiveTV customers include other airlinesicimay be susceptible to the inherent risks ofaiey in the airline industry and/or
economic downturns, which may in turn have a nggadthpact on our business.

Under certain of our LiveTV third party agreemeriswell as certain of our operating lease agretssnese are required to restore cer!
property or equipment to its original form upon eapon of the related agreement. We have recotdecestimated fair value of these
retirement obligations of approximately $9 millias of December 31, 2012 . This liability may inceaver time.

We are unable to estimate the potential amounttofé payments under the foregoing indemnitiessgrdements.
Environmental Liability

Many aspects of airlines’ operations are subjeadoeasingly stringent federal, state, local, ordign laws protecting the environment.
There is growing consensus that some form of reéigulavill be forthcoming at the federal level withspect to greenhouse gas emissions
(including carbon dioxide (COZ2)) and such regulatiould result in the creation of substantial addal costs in the form of taxes or emission
allowances. Since the domestic airline industipdseasingly price sensitive, we may not be ableetmver the cost of compliance with new or
more stringent environmental laws and regulatioomfour passengers, which could adversely affecbasiness. Although it is not expected
that the costs of complying with current environta¢negulations will have a material adverse effecour financial position, results of
operations or cash flows, no assurance can be thatlthe costs of complying with environmental dagons in the future will not have such
an effect. The impact to us and our industry frarchsactions is likely to be adverse and could geificant, particularly if regulators were to
conclude that emissions from commercial aircraftseasignificant harm to the upper atmosphere oe laagreater impact on climate change
than other industries.

In 2012, during performance of environmental testiequired in connection with the demolition of fiessenger terminal buildings and
closure of the defunct hydrant fuel systems orilémgninal 6 site at New York's John F. Kennedy Im&tional Airport, or JFK, the presence of
light non-aqueous phase petroleum liquid was dismxVin certain subsurface monitoring wells ongtaperty. Our lease with the Port
Authority of New York and New Jersey, or PANYNJopides that, under certain circumstances, we maggmonsible for investigating,
delineating, and remediating such subsurface cantion, even if we are not necessarily the pdrat taused its release. We have engaged
environmental consultants and legal counsel tosasbe extent of the contamination and assist determining whether we are responsible
taking steps to remediate it. A preliminary estimiaticates costs of remediation could range fress than $1 million up to approximately $3
million . As of December 31, 2012, we have accrd2dnillion for current estimates of remediation costs, whicim¢luded in current liabilitie
on our consolidated balance sheets. However, &samif environmental contamination, there is thesiidty this contamination could be mc
extensive than estimated at this early stage.

Based upon information currently known to us, wendbexpect these environmental proceedings to hawaterial adverse effect on our
consolidated financial position, results of opemasi, or cash flows. However, it is not possibleradict
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with certainty the impact on us of future enviromtad compliance requirements or the costs of résglthe matter, in part because the scoj
the remediation that may be required is not cedarh environmental laws and regulations are subjettodification and changes in
interpretation.

Legal Matters

Occasionally, we are involved in various claimsydaits, regulatory examinations, investigations atiebr legal matters arising, for the
most part, in the ordinary course of business. diiteome of litigation and other legal matters isals uncertain. The Company believes th
has valid defenses to the legal matters curremthdimg against it, is defending itself vigoroushdéhas recorded accruals determined in
accordance with GAAP, where appropriate. In maldrdgtermination regarding accruals, using availatiG@mation, we evaluate the
likelihood of an unfavorable outcome in legal ogukatory proceedings to which we are a party tor@edrd a loss contingency when it is
probable that a liability has been incurred andam@unt of the loss can be reasonably estimatezseljudgments are subjective, based on the
status of such legal or regulatory proceedingsntbats of our defenses and consultation with legainsel. Actual outcomes of these legal an
regulatory proceedings may materially differ froor aurrent estimates. It is possible that resofutibone or more of the legal matters
currently pending or threatened could result irséssmaterial to our consolidated results of opamafiliquidity or financial condition.

To date, none of these types of litigation mattersst of which are typically covered by insurarttas had a material impact on our
operations or financial condition. We have insused continue to insure against most of these tgpelmims. A judgment on any claim not
covered by, or in excess of, our insurance covecagll materially adversely affect our financiahddion or results of operations.

DOT tarmac delayin December 2009, the Department of TransportatomOT, issued a series of passenger protecties mhich,
among other things, impose tarmac delay limitdf@. airline domestic flights. The rules becamedff’e in April 2010, and require U.S.
airlines to allow passengers to deplane withinghreurs on the tarmac, with certain safety andrigakceptions. Violators can face fines up
to a maximum of $27,500 per passenger. The new al#® introduce requirements to disclose on-tieréopmance and delay statistics for
certain flights. These new rules may have adverssaqguences on our business and our results cdtapes.

In October 2011, a severe winter storm and mulfigleres of critical navigational equipment in tNew York City area severely impacted
air travel in the northeast. As a result, we arfieptlomestic and international carriers diverteghts to Hartford, CT’s Bradley International
Airport, or Bradley. We diverted a total of sixgtits to Bradley, five of which were held on therac in excess of three hours . The DOT is
investigating these incidents and we may be sulbjegtmonetary penalty under the DOT’s tarmac dedgylations. Based on the allowable
maximum DOT fine proscribed by the regulation, weld be assessed a fine of up to approximatelyrillon . Since the tarmac delay rule
went into effect in April 2010, there have been tiple instances where carriers have experiencezhded tarmac delays in excess of three
hours ; however, the DOT has only assessed ondtpagainst another carrier, for an amount welblethe maximum allowable fine of
$27,500 per passenger. As a result of the circurnstasurrounding the airport, weather and airicrafinditions on that day, as well as the
discretion granted to the DOT by the regulation,ame unable to determine whether a fine will bessad, and if so, the amount of such fine.
We have issued compensation to the impacted custdmaccordance with our Customer Bill of Riglasd are fully complying with all
requests made by the DOT in the course of the figag®n. We do not know when a final determinatiiynthe DOT will be made.

Employment Agreement Disputén or around March 2010, attorneys representiggoap of current and former pilots, or the Clairtsgn
filed a Request for Mediation with the American Arétion Association concerning a dispute overithierpretation of a provision of their
individual JetBlue Airways Corporation Employmengr&ements for Pilots, or Employment Agreementsthéir Fourth Amended Arbitration
Demand, dated June 8, 2012, Claimants (approxisn@te current pilots and 26 former pilots) allegledt JetBlue breached the Base Salary
provision of the Employment Agreements and sougbkipay and related damages, for each of 2002, 2602009. In July 2012, in respol
to JetBlue's partial Motion to Dismiss, the Clainsawithdrew the 2002 claims. The Claimants havespetified an exact amount of damages
sought. As such, we are unable to determine a rafhgetential loss at this time. However, pilotsséds currently represent approximately 40%
of our total consolidated salaries; therefore, jaagment in the Claimants' favor for any or altloé years in question could have a material
adverse impact on our results of operations, ligghd/or financial condition.

Discovery was completed and expert reports weed filuring the fourth quarter of 2012. An arbitratfeearing is scheduled in March 2013.
In this arbitration, the Company intends to congina vigorously defend its interpretation of theffoyment Agreements at issue. While the
outcome of any arbitration is uncertain, the Conydaglieves the claims are without merit.

Note 13—Financial Derivative Instruments and Risk Mainagement
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As part of our risk management techniques, we paradly purchase crude or heating oil option cottsdo manage our exposure to the
effect of changes in the price and availabilityatraft fuel. Prices for these commodities aremally highly correlated to aircraft fuel, maki
derivatives of them effective at providing shomrteprotection against sharp increases in averagjepfices. We also periodically enter into jet
fuel swaps, as well as basis swaps for the diftezkipetween heating oil and jet fuel, to furthiemit the variability in fuel prices at various
locations.

To manage the variability of the cash flows asdediavith our variable rate debt, we have also edténto interest rate swaps.
We do not hold or issue any derivative financiatinoments for trading purposes.

Aircraft fuel derivatives: We attempt to obtain cash flow hedge accountirgtiinent for each aircraft fuel derivative we entéoi This
treatment is provided for under tBerivatives and Hedgingppic of the Codification, which allows for gainsdalosses on the effective portion
of qualifying hedges to be deferred until the uhdeg planned jet fuel consumption occurs, ratirantrecognizing the gains and losses on
these instruments into earnings during each péhiegl are outstanding. The effective portion of imeal aircraft fuel hedging derivative gains
and losses is recognized in fuel expense in thiegéne underlying fuel is consumed.

Ineffectiveness results, in certain circumstaned®n the change in the total fair value of thedgive instrument differs from the
change in the value of our expected future caslaysifor the purchase of aircraft fuel and is retpgd immediately in interest income and
other. Likewise, if a hedge does not qualify fodge accounting, the periodic changes in its fdnerare recognized in the period of the ch
in interest income and other. When aircraft fueldasumed and the related derivative contractesettiny gain or loss previously recorded in
other comprehensive income is recognized in airéual expense. All cash flows related to our flaetlging derivatives are classified as
operating cash flows.

Our current approach to fuel hedging is to enter iredges on a discretionary basis without a sipdeifget of hedge percentage needs.
We view our hedge portfolio as a form of insurateclelp mitigate the impact of price volatility aptbtect us against severe spikes in oil
prices, when possible.

The following table illustrates the approximate @ped percentages of our projected fuel usage byteuas of December 31, 2012 ,
related to our outstanding fuel hedging contrduds Were designated as cash flow hedges for adogymirposes.

Brent crude oil

collars
First Quarter 2013 8%
Second Quarter 2013 8%
Third Quarter 2013 4%

In January 2013, we entered into jet fuel swapstations representing an additional 4% of our fasted consumption in each of the
third and fourth quarter of 2013. In February 20&8,entered into jet fuel cap agreements reprasgati additional 8% of our forecasted
consumption in each of the third and fourth quante2013.

During 2012, we also entered into basis swaps, which we didlesignate as cash flow hedges for accountinggsepand as a result
marked to market in earnings each period outstgrd#ased on their current fair value.

As of December 31, 2011 , we determined that tmeekadion between WTI crude oil and jet fuel haghdficantly deteriorated and the
requirements for continuing hedge accounting treatrwere no longer satisfied. As such, we prospelgtidiscontinued hedge accounting
treatment on all of our WTI crude oil cap agreermeartd WTI crude oil collars outstanding as of Delsen81, 2011 , which then represented
approximately 6% of our total 2012 forecasted fi@isumption. The forecasted fuel consumption, fleictvthese transactions were designate
as cash flow hedges, occurred as originally expetherefore, amounts deferred in other comprekeriacome related to these contracts
remained deferred until the forecasted fuel consiommccurred. At December 31, 2011 , we had dete$3 million , or $2 million net of
taxes, of these losses in other comprehensive ia@svociated with these contracts. We recognized tiese losses into fuel expense in 2!

Interest rate swaps: The interest rate swap agreements we had outstpadiof December 31, 2012 effectively swap floatate debt
for fixed rate debt, taking advantage of lower baing rates in existence at the time of the hedaygstiction as compared to the date our
original debt instruments were executed. As of Dewmer 31, 2012 , we had $348 million in notional tdeltstanding related to these swaps,
which cover certain interest payments through Atug046. The notional amount decreases over tinmeatich scheduled repayments of the
related debt. Refer to Note 2 for information oe tiebt outstanding related to these swap agreements
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All of our outstanding interest rate swap contragtalify as cash flow hedges in accordance witiDtbevatives and Hedgintppic of the
Cadification. Since all of the critical terms ofraawap agreements match the debt to which thewipethere was no ineffectiveness relating tc
these interest rate swaps in 2012 , 2011 or 2@hd all related unrealized losses were deferred@dumulated other comprehensive income.
We recognized approximately $11 million , $10 roitliand $8 million in additional interest expensé¢hasrelated interest payments were madi
during 2012 , 2011 and 2010 , respectively.

Any outstanding derivative instruments expose uzédit loss in the event of nonperformance bycihenterparties to the agreements,
but we do not expect that any of our three coumiigs will fail to meet their obligations. The anmb of such credit exposure is generally the
positive fair value of our outstanding contracts.rifanage credit risks, we select counterpartiescas credit assessments, limit our overall
exposure to any single counterparty and monitontaeket position of each counterparty. Some ofagreements require cash deposits if
market risk exposure exceeds a specified thresiralulint.

The financial derivative instrument agreements aechwith our counterparties may require us to fathcor a portion of, outstanding Ic
positions related to these contracts prior to thefireduled maturities. The amount of collateratguhsf any, is periodically adjusted based on
the fair value of the hedge contracts. Our pol&cioi offset the liabilities represented by thesatiaxts with any cash collateral paid to the
counterparties. We did not have any collateralgmbstlated to our outstanding fuel hedge contrcBecember 31, 2012 or December 31,
2011 . We had $12 million and $20 million postedallateral related to our interest rate derivatiwhich offset the hedge liability in other
current liabilities at December 31, 2012 and 20fekspectively.

The table below reflects quantitative informatiefated to our derivative instruments and whereelasounts are recorded in our
financial statements (dollar amounts in millions).

As of December 31,
2012 2011

Fuel derivatives
Asset fair value recorded in prepaid expenses #mef ¢1)

Liability fair value recorded in other accrued ligkes (1) 1C

Longest remaining term (months) 12

Hedged volume (barrels, in thousands) 67= 3,54(

Estimated amount of existing losses expected tetlassified into earnings in the next

12 months (6)
Interest rate derivatives

Liability fair value recorded in other long ternalilities (2) 2C

Estimated amount of existing losses expected tetlassified into earnings in the next

12 months (10)

2012 2011 2010

Fuel derivatives

Hedge effectiveness gains (losses) recognizeddradii fuel expense 1C 3 3 3)

Hedge ineffectiveness losses recognized in otloemie (expense) — 2 2

Losses on derivatives not qualifying for hedge aotimg recognized in other income (expense) ©)] — —

Hedge gains (losses) on derivatives recognizednmpcehensive income 14 (11) (11)

Percentage of actual consumption economically hetdge 3% 40% 51%
Interest rate derivatives

Hedge losses on derivatives recognized in compedeincome ©)] @) (21)

Hedge losses on derivatives recognized in intergstnse (12) (20 (8)

(1) Gross asset or liability of each contract priocemsideration of offsetting positions with each miupart:

(2) Gross liability, prior to impact of collateral pes
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Note 14—Fair Value

Under theFair Value Measurements and Disclosutepic of the Codification, disclosures are requiaddut how fair value is determin
for assets and liabilities and a hierarchy for wattitese assets and liabilities must be groupestéblished, based on significant levels of input
as follows:

Level 1quoted prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities;
Level 2quoted prices in active markets for similar asaets liabilities and inputs that are observabléelierasset or liability; or

Level 3unobservable inputs for the asset or liability,rsas discounted cash flow models or valuations.

The determination of where assets and liabilitédlsviithin this hierarchy is based upon the lowlesel of input that is significant to the
fair value measurement. The following is a listafgour assets and liabilities required to be mesat fair value on a recurring basis and
where they are classified within the fair valueriehy (as described in Note 1) (in millions). Tdarying values of all other financial
instruments approximated their fair values at Dduem31, 2012 and 2011 . Refer to Note 2 for fainganformation related to our outstanding
debt obligations as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 .

As of December 31, 2012

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 84 $ — — 3 84
Restricted cash 4 — — 4
Available-for-sale investment securities 68 207 — 27¢
$ 15¢ $ 207 $ — 3 363
Liabilities
Aircraft fuel derivatives $ — % 1 3 — % 1
Interest rate swap — 12 — 12
$ — ¢ 13 $ — 3 13
As of December 31, 2011
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 55E § — — 3 55E
Restricted cash 4 — — 4
Available-for-sale investment securities — 253 — 253
Aircraft fuel derivatives — 5 — 5
$ 55¢ § 25¢ % — % 817
Liabilities
Aircraft fuel derivatives $ — % 9 % — % 9
Interest rate swap — 2C — 2C
$ —  $ 2¢ 3 — % 29

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Our cash and cash equivalents include monekeahaecurities, treasury bills, and commercial pape
which are readily convertible into cash with maies of three months or less when purchased, allhi¢h are considered to be highly liquid
and easily tradable. These securities are valuied irgputs observable in active markets for ideadtgecurities and are therefore classified as
Level 1 within our fair value hierarchy.

Available-for-sale investment securities: Included in our available-for-sale investment séms are certificates of deposits and
commercial paper with original maturities greateart 90 days but less than one year. The fair valligsese instruments are based on
observable inputs in non-active markets, whichtlaeeefore classified as Level 2 in the hierarchty. A
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December 31, 2012, we also held treasury bills wittturities greater than three months when purchdsee fair value of the treasury bills are
based on actively traded quoted market prices emtharefore classified as Level 1 in the hieraréhi did not record any significant gains or
losses on these securities during the twelve mamided December 31, 2012 or 2011 .

Auction rate securities: We had historically held auction rate securitigsABRS, long-term debt securities for which inteneges reset
regularly at pre-determined intervals, typically@d/s , through an auction process. During 20105 UBbroker-dealer, nrgdrchased ARS fro
us at their par value of $85 million satisfaction of a previously executed settlenagmeement. Prior to entering into the settlenagnéemen
we had estimated the value of these ARS using diged cash flows, a level 3 input, as a resulheirtpar values not approximating their fair
values. The re-purchase of ARS by UBS did notltésa net gain or loss in the year of settlement.

Interest rate swaps: The fair values of our interest rate swaps aredasanputs received from the related counterpavhich are
based on observable inputs for active swap indinatin quoted markets for similar terms. We hadipresly classified our interest rate swaps
as Level 3 inputs in the hierarchy with the beiefe of these inputs were not observable. Howsiree these inputs are all observable, we
believe the appropriate classification is as L&viglputs in the hierarchy. We have reflected thlisistment for all periods presented in the
tables above.

Aircraft fuel derivatives: Our jet fuel swaps, jet fuel, heating oil and cradecollars, and crude oil caps are not tradeghollic
exchanges. Their fair values are determined usim@grket approach based on inputs that are readiljadle from public markets for
commodities and energy trading activities; thereftihey are classified as Level 2 inputs. The oiggats are combined into quantitative model:
and processes to generate forward curves andlit@atielated to the specific terms of the undedyhedge contracts.

Spectrum license: In 2006, LiveTV acquired an air-to-ground spectdizanse in a public auction from the Federal Comitations
Commission for approximately $7 million . Sinceadijuisition, the license has been treated asddiiite lived intangible asset, reflected in
other long term assets in our consolidated balaheets. In late 2007, we unveiled BetaBlue, anusi320 aircraft, which utilized the
acquired spectrum in delivering email and inteagabilities to our customers. Since 2007, LiveDyitwued to develop this technology, with
the intent of making it available on all of ourcaaft. However, with the introduction of similamrgee by competitors, we re-evaluated the long
term viability of our planned offering and durin@1®, ceased further development of the air-to-gidquiatform. In September 2010, we
announced plans to develop broadband capabilitfheang with ViaSat and utilizing their advancexdddlite technologies. As a result of the
change in plans, we evaluated the spectrum licemsmpairment, which resulted in a loss of approately $5 million being recorded in other
operating expenses during 2010. We determined2hmiffion fair value of the spectrum license at Bexber 31, 2010 using a probability
weighted cash flow model, which included an incapproach for the cash flows associated with theeatigeneral aviation business as well
as a market approach based on an independentigaluaince these inputs are not observable, theglassified as Level 3 inputs in the
hierarchy. As of December 31, 2012 , we determthece was no further impairment.

Note 15—Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Ls$

Comprehensive income includes changes in fair vafuweir aircraft fuel derivatives and interest raweap agreements, which qualify for
hedge accounting. A rollforward of the amountsudeld in accumulated other comprehensive incoms)(lost of taxes for the years ended
December 31, 2010, 2011 and 2012 is as followm({ilions):

Aircraft Fuel Interest
Derivatives Rate Swaps Total
Beginning accumulated gains (losses), at Decembel, 2009 $ 7 % 6 $ 1
Reclassifications into earnings 3 5 8
Change in fair value (6) (13 (19
Balance of accumulated gains (losses), at Decemigdr, 2010 4 (14) (10
Reclassifications into earnings @ 6 5
Change in fair value (6) 4) (20
Balance of accumulated gains (losses), at Decemigdr, 2011 3) (22) (15)
Reclassifications into earnings (6) 7 1
Change in fair value 8 2 6
Ending accumulated gains (losses), at December 2012 $ 1) $ 7 9 8
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Note 16—Geographic Information

Under theSegment Reportingpic of the Codification, disclosures are requifedoperating segments, which are regularly reegwy
the chief operating decision makers. Air transgateservices accounted for substantially all tlenPany’s operations in 2012 , 2011 and
2010.

Operating revenues are allocated to geographiomsegas defined by the DOT, based upon the origimaind destination of each flight
segment. We currently serve 21 locations in theébBean and Latin American region, or Latin Amergsadefined by the DOT. However, our
management also includes Puerto Rico when reviethie@aribbean region, and as such we have inclodethreedestinations in Puerto Ri
and two destinations in the U.S. Virgin Islandsur Caribbean and Latin America allocation of ray&n Operating revenues by geographic
regions for the years ended December 31 are sumedanelow (in millions):

2012 2011 2010
Domestic $ 3,666 $ 3,351 $ 2,90(
Caribbean & Latin America 1,31¢ 1,15: 87¢
Total $ 498: $ 450¢ $ 3,77¢

Our tangible assets primarily consist of our fleeaircraft, which is deployed system wide, withindividual aircraft dedicated to any
specific route or region; therefore our assetsaaequire any allocation to a geographic area.

Note 17—Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
Quarterly results of operations for the years eridledember 31 are summarized below (in millionseex@er share amounts):

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2012 (1)
Operating revenues $ 1,20¢ % 1277 $ 1,30¢ $ 1,19¢
Operating income 89 13C 113 44
Net income 30 52 45 1
Basic earnings per share $ 011 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1¢ $ =
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.0¢ % 0.1€ $ 014 % —
2011 (2)
Operating revenues $ 1,01z % 1,151 % 1,19t $ 1,14¢
Operating income 45 86 10¢ 83
Net income 3 25 35 23
Basic earnings per share $ 0.01 $ 0.0¢ $ 0.1z $ 0.0¢
Diluted earnings per share $ 0.01 % 0.0¢ $ 0.11 $ 0.0¢

(1) During the first quarter of 2012, LiveTV temaited a customer contract resulting in a gain pf@pmately $8 millionin other operatin
expenses. During the second quarter of 2012, warded net gains of approximately $10 million on slaée of two EMBRAER 190
aircraft and six spare aircraft engines in othesraping expenses, as well as net gains of appragiyn®2 million in interest income and
other on the early extinguishment of debt secusesidaircraft. During the fourth quarter of 201 recognized losses of
approximately $3 million in interest income andestbn the early extinguishment of debt secureduaydircraft.

(2) During the first quarter of 2011, we record&dmillion of revenue related to our boanded credit card agreement guarantee. Durir
third and fourth quarters of 2011, we recorded andibon loss and $1 milliooss, respectively, on the early extinguishmersd pbrtior
of our 6.75% Series A convertible debentures.
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The sum of the quarterly earnings per share amalogs not equal the annual amount reported sincghaee amounts are computed
independently for each quarter and for the fullnkesed on respective weighted-average commonsshatstanding and other dilutive
potential common shares.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
JetBlue Airways Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of JetBlue Airways Corporation as of Bdw 31, 2012 and 2011, and
the related consolidated statements of operatamprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, ant dasvs for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2012. These financidetnts are the responsibility of the Company’sagament. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statemerstschan our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &andbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on Blasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digds in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenenelaas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredlbove present fairly, in all material respedts,¢onsolidated financial position of
JetBlue Airways Corporation at December 31, 20122011, and the consolidated results of its opamatand its cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 20T@nformity with U.S. generally accepted accoogtprinciples.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), JetBlue
Airways Corporation’s internal control over finaatreporting as of December 31, 2012, based oer@iestablished in Internal Control-
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpiing Organizations of the Treadway Commissiahaur report dated February 20,
2013 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

New York, New York
February 20, 2013
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
JetBlue Airways Corporation

We have audited JetBlue Airways Corporation’s im&icontrol over financial reporting as of DecemB&y 2012, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Framwissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgaitinatof the Treadway Commission
(the COSO criteria). JetBlue Airways Corporatiomanagement is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control over financial
reporting, and for its assessment of the effecagsrof internal control over financial reportinglirded in the accompanying Management’s
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporti@grr responsibility is to express an opinion am ¢bmpanys internal control over financi
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@d&/nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet dndbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®is:. audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etasting and evaluating the design and operatifegéfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre® considered necessary in the circumstancefeliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting princip

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiincludes those policies and procedures thai€ftpin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseocfompany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureh®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witibaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabsurance regarding prevention or timely detecfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeénaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, JetBlue Airways Corporation maintd, in all material respects, effective interraiteol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2012, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of JetBlue Airways @atn as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 and thtedeconsolidated statements of
operations, comprehensive income, stockholderstgcnd cash flows for each of the three yeathéperiod ended December 31, 2012 of
JetBlue Airways Corporation and our report dateldré&ary 20, 2013 expressed an unqualified opinienetbn.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

New York, New York
February 20, 2013
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ITEM 9. CHANGES AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresléfised in Rule 13a-15(e) or Rule 15d-15(e) unHerExchange Act) that are
designed to ensure that information required tdibelosed by us in reports that we file under tikelange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periodsi§pe in the SECS rules and forms and that such information regluioebe disclosed by 1
in reports that we file under the Exchange Actdsuanulated and communicated to our managementdimg our Chief Executive Officer, or
CEO, and our Chief Financial Officer, or CFO, ttmal timely decisions regarding required disclosiManagement, with the participation of
our CEO and CFO, performed an evaluation of thectiffeness of our disclosure controls and procedaseof December 31, 2012. Based on
that evaluation, our CEO and CFO concluded thati@alosure controls and procedures were effeetdvef December 31, 2012.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finahaaorting (as defined in Rule 13a-
15(f) or Rule 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act)denthe supervision and with the participation @f management, including our CEO and
CFO, we conducted an evaluation of the effectivermé®ur internal control over financial reportinbgsed on the framework in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework issued by the CommitteSponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Cassion. Based on that evaluation,
our management concluded that our internal cootret financial reporting was effective as of Decem®l, 2012 to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliabilityof financialoeimg and the preparation of consolidated finangtiatements for external reporting purposes
in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Ernst & Young LLP, the independent registered puaticounting firm that audited our ConsolidatedaRrial Statements included in t
Annual Report on Form 10-K, audited the effectiwanef our internal control over financial reportig of December 31, 2012. Ernst & Young
LLP has issued their report which is included elsesg herein.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

During the quarter ended December 31, 2012, there wo changes in our internal control over finahaporting (as defined in Rule
13a-15(f) or Rule 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Adghtified in connection with the evaluation ofr@ontrols performed during that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely tatenally affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE
Code of Ethics

We adopted a Code of Ethics within the meanindgeshl406(b) of SEC Regulation S-K. This Code of &tapplies to our principal
executive officer, principal financial officer apdincipal accounting officer. This Code of Ethisspublicly available on our website at
http://investor.jetblue.comlf we make substantive amendments to this Codgtldts or grant any waiver, including any impligidiver, we
will disclose the nature of such amendment or wadveour website or in a report on Form 8-K witkanr days of such amendment or waiver.

Information relating to executive officers is setth in Part | of this report following Item 4 und&xecutive Officers of the Registrant”.
The other information required by this Item will ineluded in and is incorporated herein by refeesinom our definitive proxy statement for
our 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be leidMay 9, 2013 to be filed with the SEC pursuariRégulation 14A within 120 days after
the end of our 2012 fiscal year, or our Proxy Steget.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item will be indled in and is incorporated herein by reference foomProxy Statement.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The table below provides information relating ta equity compensation plans (including individuahgensation arrangements) under
which our common stock is authorized for issuarscefdDecember 31, 2012 , as adjusted for stocksspli

Number of securities
remaining available
for future issuance

Weighted-average under equity

Number of securities to exercise price of compensation plans

be issued upon exercise outstanding (excluding securities

of outstanding options, options, warrants reflected in first
Plan Category warrants and rights and rights column)
Equity compensation plans approved by security drsld 20,619,80 $ 12.7: 94,216,87
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechotglers — — —
Total 20,619,80 $ 12.5: 94,216,87

See Note 7 to our consolidated financial statemfantiurther information regarding the materialti@®s of the above plans.

The other information required by this Item will ineluded in and is incorporated herein by refeesinom our Proxy Statement.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item will be indled in and is incorporated herein by reference foomProxy Statement.
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ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item will be indled in and is incorporated herein by reference fooimProxy statement.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

1. Financial statements:
Consolidated Balance Sheets — December 31, 201PDacember 31, 2011
Consolidated Statements of Operations — For thesyeraded December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Inconoe the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows — For thesyeraded December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity e+the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfing

2. Financial Statement Schedule:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfiingn on Financial Statement Schedule S-1
Schedule Il — Valuation of Qualifying Accounts aRdserves S22

All other schedules have been omitted becauseateinapplicable, not required, or the informaiti®n
included elsewhere in the consolidated financiteshents or notes thereto.

3. Exhibits: See accompanying Exhibit Index includédrahe signature page of this report for a listhe
exhibits filed or furnished with or incorporated teference in this report.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduaty authorized.

JETBLUE AIRWAYS CORPORATION
(Registrant)

Date: February 20, 2013 By: /s/  DONALD DANIELS

Vice President, Controller, and Chief
Accounting Officer (Principal Accounting
Officer)

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each persbose signature appears below constitutes anuirgp@ames G. Hr
his or her attorney-in-fact with power of subsiitatfor him or her in any and all capacities, tgnsany amendments, supplements or other
documents relating to this Annual Report on ForrKl®@hich he or she deems necessary or appropsgatkto file the same, with exhibits
thereto, and other documents in connection thehewiith the Securities and Exchange Commissioretheratifying and confirming all that
such attorney-in-fact or their substitute may deawise to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ies indicated (and, as indicated with an astergiesenting at least a majority of the
members of the Board of Directors).
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Signature

[s/ DAVID BARGER
David Barger

/s/ _MARK D. POWERS
Mark D. Powers

[/ s/ DONALD DANIELS
Donald Daniels

[ s/ JENS BISCHOF
Jens Bischof *

/s/ PETER BONEPARTH
Peter Boneparth *

/ s/ __DAVID CHECKETTS
David Checketts *

/s/ VIRGINIA GAMBALE
Virginia Gambale *

[s/ STEPHAN GEMKOW
Stephan Gemkow *

/s/ ELLENJEWETT
Ellen Jewett *

/sl STANLEY MCCHRYSTAL

Stanley McChrystal *

/ s/ _JOEL PETERSON
Joel Peterson *

s/ __ANN RHOADES
Ann Rhoades *

Capacity

President, Chief Executive Officer and

Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial

Officer)

Vice President, Controller, and Chief
Accounting Officer (Principal Accounting

Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Exhibit Index

2.1

3.2(a)

3.2(b)

3.3(e)

3.3(f)

3.3(9)

3.3(h)

3.4

4.1

4.2

4.2(a)

4.2(b)

4.2(c)

Membership Interest Purchase Agreement among Haarigoration and Thales Avionics In-Flight SysteirdsC and In-
Flight Liquidating, LLC and Glenn S. Latta and Jejf A. Frisco and Andreas de Greef and JetBlue &ysvCorporation,
dated as of September 9, 2002 relating to thedstsiin LiveTV, LLC—incorporated by reference tohibit 2.1 to our
Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 27, 2002

Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatiodetBlue Airways Corporation—incorporated by refere to Exhibit 3.5
to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quaeteded June 30, 2008.

Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorption, dated May 20, 2010—incorporated by referaadexhibit 3.2(b) to
our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quartetesl June 30, 2010.

Fifth Amended and Restated Bylaws of JetBlue Airsv@prporation—incorporated by reference to ExI8t6tof our
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter entlate 30, 2008.

Fifth Amended and Restated Bylaws of JetBlue Airsv@prporation (consolidated amendments as of Noeertd, 2009)—
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3(f) to @umual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddmem31, 2009.

Amended Consolidated Fifth Amended and Restatedvigybf JetBlue Airways Corporation—incorporatedréference to
Exhibit 3.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dageafil 11, 2011.

Amended Consolidated Fifth Amended and Restatedvidybf JetBlue Airways Corporation—incorporatedéference to
Exhibit 3.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K daB=ptember 18, 2012.

Certificate of Designation of Series A Participgtidreferred Stock dated April 1, 2002—incorpordigdeference to
Exhibit 3.2 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dafedly 10, 2003.

Specimen Stock Certificate—incorporated by refeegiocExhibit 4.1 to the Registration Statement om#S-1, as amended
(File No. 333-82576).

Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreerdated as of August 10, 2000, by and among JeBilweays
Corporation and the Stockholders named therein—parated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Regi8in Statement on
Form S-1, as amended (File No. 333-82576).

Amendment No. 1, dated as of June 30, 2003, to Aleeand Restated Registration Rights Agreemerdgddz of

August 10, 2000, by and among JetBlue Airways Cafian and the Stockholders named therein—incotpdrhay reference
to Exhibit 4.2 to the Registration Statement omr&-3, filed on July 3, 2003, as amended on Ju/y{2003 (File No. 333-
106781).

Amendment No. 2, dated as of October 6, 2003, terddad and Restated Registration Rights Agreematedas of
August 10, 2000, by and among JetBlue Airways Catfpan and the Stockholders named therein—incotpdrhay reference
to Exhibit 4.9 to the Registration Statement omir&-3, filed on October 7, 2003 (File No. 333-108H64

Amendment No. 3, dated as of October 4, 2004, terdad and Restated Registration Rights Agreematedds of
August 10, 2000, by and among JetBlue Airways Cafian and the Stockholders named therein—incotpdrhay reference
to Exhibit 4.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-Kdated October 4, 2004.
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4.5
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4.7

4.7(a)

4.7(b)

4.7(c)

4.7(d)

4.7(e)

4.7(f)

4.7(9)

4.7(h)

Amendment No. 4, dated as of June 22, 2006, to Aleeand Restated Registration Rights Agreemergddz of
August 10, 2000, by and among JetBlue Airways Catfpan and the Stockholders named therein—incotpdrhay reference
to Exhibit 4.19 to our Registration Statement omk&-3 ARS, filed on June 30, 2006 (File No. 33534b).

Summary of Rights to Purchase Series A Participd®referred Stock—incorporated by reference to likHi4 to the
Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amendeel &l 333-82576).

Stockholder Rights Agreement—incorporated by refeeeto Exhibit 4.3 to our Annual Report on FormKL@r the year
ended December 31, 2002.

Amendment to the Stockholder Rights Agreement,dlateof January 17, 2008, by and between JetBlweags Corporatiol
and Computershare Trust Company, N.A.—incorporbtereference to Exhibit 4.5(a) to our Current Reépor Form 8-K
dated January 23, 2008.

Form of Three-Month LIBOR plus 0.375% JetBlue Aigga@Pass Through Certificate Series 2004-1G-1-O—paated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our Current Report onnfr 8-K dated March 24, 2004.

Form of Three-Month LIBOR plus 0.420% JetBlue AiggaPass Through Certificate Series 2004-1G-2-O—paated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to our Current Report onnf 8-K dated March 24, 2004.

Form of Three-Month LIBOR plus 4.250% JetBlue Aigga&Pass Through Certificate Series 2004-1C-O—irarated by
reference to Exhibit 4.3 to our Current Report onnfr 8-K dated March 24, 2004.

Pass Through Trust Agreement, dated as of MarcB@¥, between JetBlue Airways Corporation and \Wi@iton Trust
Company, as Pass Through Trustee, made with retptat formation of JetBlue Airways Pass ThroughsT, Series 2004-
1G-1-0O and the issuance of Three-Month LIBOR pli35¥8% JetBlue Airways Pass Through Trust, Seri€gl205-1-0,
Pass Through Certificates—incorporated by referéa&exhibit 4.4 to our Current Report on Form 8-&tel March 24, 2004

).

Revolving Credit Agreement (2004-1G-1), dated aBlafch 24, 2004, between Wilmington Trust Compaasy,
Subordination Agent, as agent and trustee foretlue Airways 2004-1G-1 Pass Through Trust, ag@®eer, and
Landesbank Hessen-Thiringen Girozentrale, as Pyitriquidity Provider—incorporated by reference tehiibit 4.5 to our
Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 24, 2004.

Revolving Credit Agreement (2004-1G-2), dated aBlafch 24, 2004, between Wilmington Trust Compaasy,
Subordination Agent, as agent and trustee foretlue Airways 2004-1G-2 Pass Through Trust, ag@eer, and
Landesbank Hessen-Thiringen Girozentrale, as Pyitriquidity Provider—incorporated by reference tehiibit 4.6 to our
Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 24, 2004.

Revolving Credit Agreement (2004-1C), dated as afd 24, 2004, between Wilmington Trust Companys@sordination
Agent, as agent and trustee for the JetBlue Airviz@El-1C Pass Through Trust, as Borrower, and Lsratek Hessen-
Thiringen Girozentrale, as Primary Liquidity Proatid-incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to Gurrent Report on
Form 8-K dated March 24, 2004.

Deposit Agreement (Class G-1), dated as of Margt2@@4, between Wilmington Trust Company, as Eschgent, and
HSH Nordbank AG, New York Branch, as Depositary—eiporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to our CurfReport on
Form 8-K dated March 24, 2004.

Deposit Agreement (Class G-2), dated as of Margt2@@4, between Wilmington Trust Company, as Eschgent, and
HSH Nordbank AG, New York Branch, as Depositary—eiporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to our CurfReport on
Form 8-K dated March 24, 2004.

Deposit Agreement (Class C), dated as of MarchZQ@,Af, between Wilmington Trust Company, as Escr@am& and HSH
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4.7()

4.7(K)

4.7(l)

4.7(m)

4.7(n)

4.7(0)

4.7(p)

4.7(q)

4.7(r)

4.7(s)

4.7(t)

Escrow and Paying Agent Agreement (Clas$)Gdated as of March 24, 2004, among WilmingtomsTCompany, as Escrc
Agent, Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated, Merrilrich, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, Citigr@lobal Markets
Inc. and Credit Lyonnais Securities (USA) Inc.aslerwriters, Wilmington Trust Company, as Pasouigh Trustee for
and on behalf of JetBlue Airways Corporation Pasligh Trust 2004-1G-1-O, as Pass Through TruateeWilmington
Trust Company, as Paying Agent—incorporated byresfee to Exhibit 4.11 to our Current Report on F8#K dated

March 24, 2004.

Escrow and Paying Agent Agreement (Clas®)Gdated as of March 24, 2004, among WilmingtomsTCompany, as Escrc
Agent, Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated, Merrilirich, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, Citigr@lobal Markets
Inc. and Credit Lyonnais Securities (USA) Inc.Uaslerwriters, Wilmington Trust Company, as Passouigh Trustee for
and on behalf of JetBlue Airways Corporation Pdsoiigh Trust 2004-1G-2-0, as Pass Through Truatek\Wilmington
Trust Company, as Paying Agent—incorporated byreefee to Exhibit 4.12 to our Current Report on F8AR dated

March 24, 2004.

Escrow and Paying Agent Agreement (Class C), daseaf March 24, 2004, among Wilmington Trust Conypas Escrow
Agent, Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated, Merriirich, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, Citigr@zlobal Markets
Inc. and Credit Lyonnais Securities (USA) Inc.Uaslerwriters, Wilmington Trust Company, as Passouigh Trustee for
and on behalf of JetBlue Airways Corporation Pasoligh Trust 2004-1C-0O, as Pass Through TrusteeWaimington
Trust Company, as Paying Agent—incorporated byreefee to Exhibit 4.13 to our Current Report on F8#R dated
March 24, 2004.

ISDA Master Agreement, dated as of March 24, 2@@4ween Morgan Stanley Capital Services Inc., asvAlCap Liquidity
Facility Provider, and Wilmington Trust Company,Sgbordination Agent for the JetBlue Airways Cogi@m Pass Throuc
Trust 2004-1G-1-O—incorporated by reference to Bitli.14 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dateddha24, 2004 (2).

Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement, dated &daoth 24, 2004, between Morgan Stanley Capital iBesvnc., as
Above Cap Liquidity Facility Provider, and Wilmirat Trust Company, as Subordination Agent for thBlae Airways
Corporation Pass Through Trust 2004-1G-1-O—incateat by reference to Exhibit 4.15 to our Currenpéteon Form 8-K
dated March 24, 2004.

Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement, dated &daoth 24, 2004, between Morgan Stanley Capital iSesy Inc., as
Above Cap Liquidity Facility Provider, and Wilmiragt Trust Company, as Subordination Agent for thBlae Airways
Corporation Pass Through Trust 2004-1G-2-O—incateat by reference to Exhibit 4.16 to our Currenpéteon Form 8-K
dated March 24, 2004.

Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement, dated &daoth 24, 2004, between Morgan Stanley Capital iBesy Inc., as
Above Cap Liquidity Facility Provider, and Wilmirat Trust Company, as Subordination Agent for thBlde Airways
Corporation Pass Through Trust 2004-1C-O—incorgatéty reference to Exhibit 4.17 to our Current Repn Form 8-K
dated March 24, 2004.

Class G-1 Above Cap Liquidity Facility Confirmaticthated March 24, 2004, between Morgan Stanleyt@lapervices Inc.,
as Above Cap Liquidity Facility Provider, and Wilmgiton Trust Company, as Subordination Agent—incrafea by
reference to Exhibit 4.18 to our Current ReporfFonm 8-K dated March 24, 2004.

Class G-2 Above Cap Liquidity Facility Confirmaticthated March 24, 2004, between Morgan Stanleyt@lapervices Inc.,
as Above Cap Liquidity Facility Provider, and Wilmgiton Trust Company, as Subordination Agent—incrafea by
reference to Exhibit 4.19 to our Current ReporfFonm 8-K dated March 24, 2004.

Class C Above Cap Liquidity Facility Confirmaticthated March 24, 2004, between Morgan Stanley dapétevices Inc., as
Above Cap Liquidity Facility Provider, and Wilmiragit Trust Company, as Subordination Agent—incorgatdity reference
to Exhibit 4.20 to our Current Report on Form 8-#tetl March 24, 2004.

Guarantee, dated March 24, 2004, of Morgan Stabégjital Services Inc. with respect to the Class Abtve Cap Liquidity
Facility—incorporated by reference to Exhibit 41®lour Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 942
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4.7(u)

4.7(v)

4.7(w)

4.7(x)

4.7(y)

4.7(2)

4.7(aa)

4.7(ab)

4.7(ac)

4.8

4.8(a)

4.8(b)

4.8(c)

Guarantee, dated March 24, 2004, of Morgan Stabagjtal Services Inc. with respect to the Class &8ve Cap Liquidity
Facility—incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4182our Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 942

Guarantee, dated March 24, 2004, of Morgan StaBapjital Services Inc. with respect to the Classiove Cap Liquidity
Facility—incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4183our Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 942

Insurance and Indemnity Agreement, dated as of M24c 2004, among MBIA Insurance Corporation, agP®rovider,
JetBlue Airways Corporation and Wilmington Trustr@many, as Subordination Agent—incorporated by esfee to Exhibit
4.24 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated M&4h2004.

MBIA Insurance Corporation Financial Guaranty lreswe Policy, dated March 24, 2004, bearing PoliaynNer 43567(1)
issued to Wilmington Trust Company, as Subordimafigent for the Class G-1 Certificates—incorpordtgdeference to
Exhibit 4.25 to our Current Report on Form 8-K daléarch 24, 2004.

MBIA Insurance Corporation Financial Guaranty lreswe Policy, dated March 24, 2004, bearing PoliaynBNer 43567(2)
issued to Wilmington Trust Company, as Subordimafigent for the Class G-2 Certificates—incorpordtgdeference to
Exhibit 4.26 to our Current Report on Form 8-K daléarch 24, 2004.

Intercreditor Agreement, dated as of March 24, 2@ddong Wilmington Trust Company, as Pass Throuuistée,
Landesbank Hessen- Thiringen Girozentrale, as Brimquidity Provider, Morgan Stanley Capital Sexes, Inc., as Above-
Cap Liquidity Provider, MBIA Insurance Corporaticas Policy Provider, and Wilmington Trust Compaay Subordination
Agent—incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.20tw Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 24, 2004

Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of March 24,,200dng JetBlue Airways Corporation, Wilmington 3r€Company, in
its separate capacities as Pass Through Trust&abasdination Agent, as Escrow Agent and as Paf@ent—incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.28 to our Current Reporf~orm 8-K dated March 24, 2004.

Form of Trust Indenture and Mortgage between JetBluways Corporation, as Owner, and WilmingtonstrGompany, as
Mortgagee—incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4&@26ur Current Report on Form 8-K dated MarchZ4.

Form of Participation Agreement among JetBlue Aysv€orporation, as Owner, and Wilmington Trust Camp in its
separate capacities as Mortgagee, as Pass Througted and as Subordination Agent—incorporatecefarence to Exhibit
4.30 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated M&4h2004.

Form of Three-Month LIBOR plus 0.375% JetBlue Aigga@Pass Through Certificate Series 2004-2G;1vith attached forr
of Escrow Receipt—incorporated by reference to BixHi.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated dimber 9, 2004.

Form of Three-Month LIBOR plus 0.450% JetBlue AiggadPass Through Certificate Series 2004-2G;2vith attached forr
of Escrow Receipt—incorporated by reference to BixHi.2 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated &imber 9, 2004.

Form of Three-Month LIBOR plus 3.100% JetBlue Aigga@Pass Through Certificate Series 2004-2C-0, atidiched form
of Escrow Receipt—incorporated by reference to BixHi.3 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated &lmber 9, 2004.

Pass Through Trust Agreement, dated as of Novefthe2004, between JetBlue Airways Corporation anldniigton Trust
Company, as Pass Through Trustee, made with reptw formation of JetBlue Airways Pass ThroughsT, Series 2004-
2G-1-0 and the issuance of Three-Month LIBOR pl&¥8% JetBlue Airways Pass Through Trust, Seri€ 2Zi5-1-0,
Pass Through Certificates—incorporated by referém&exhibit 4.4 to our Current Report on Form 8-&eH November 9,
2004 (3).
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4.8(d)

4.8(e)

4.8(f)

4.8(9)

4.8(h)

4.8(i)

4.8(j)

4.8(K)

4.8(l)

4.8(m)

4.8(n)

Revolving Credit Agreement (2004-2G-1), dated aSl@fember 15, 2004, between Wilmington Trust Conypas
Subordination Agent, as agent and trustee foretilue Airways 2004-2G-1 Pass Through Trust, ag@eer, and
Landesbank Baden-Wirttemberg, as Primary Liquigityvider—incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 %utr Current
Report on Form 8-K dated November 9, 2004.

Revolving Credit Agreement (2004-2G-2), dated aSl@fember 15, 2004, between Wilmington Trust Conypas
Subordination Agent, as agent and trustee foretilue Airways 2004-2G-2 Pass Through Trust, ag@eer, and
Landesbank Baden-Wirttemberg, as Primary Liquiglityvider—incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4 ®utr Current
Report on Form 8-K dated November 9, 2004.

Revolving Credit Agreement (2004-2C), dated as ef@inber 15, 2004, between Wilmington Trust Compasy,
Subordination Agent, as agent and trustee foretiglue Airways 2004-2C Pass Through Trust, as Beerpand Landesbank
Baden-Wirttemberg, as Primary Liquidity Provider-eérporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to our CotriReport on Form
8-K dated November 9, 2004.

Deposit Agreement (Class G-1), dated as of NoverhbeP004, between Wilmington Trust Company, ag@gadgent, and
HSH Nordbank AG, New York Branch, as Depositary—eiporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to our CurfReport on
Form 8-K dated November 9, 2004.

Deposit Agreement (Class G-2), dated as of Noverhbe004, between Wilmington Trust Company, ag@gdgent, and
HSH Nordbank AG, New York Branch, as Depositary—eiporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to our CurfReport on
Form 8-K dated November 9, 2004.

Deposit Agreement (Class C), dated as of Novembge2@04, between Wilmington Trust Company, as Bgdkgent, and
HSH Nordbank AG, New York Branch, as Depositary—eiporated by reference to Exhibit 4.10 to our CutriReport on
Form 8-K dated November 9, 2004.

Escrow and Paying Agent Agreement (Class G-1) ddaseof November 15, 2004, among Wilmington Trusih@any, as
Escrow Agent, Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporatedigtoup Global Markets Inc., HSBC Securities (USAg. and

J.P. Morgan Securities, Inc., as Underwriters, Wilfton Trust Company, as Pass Through Trusteenfhioa behalf of
JetBlue Airways Corporation Pass Through Trust 2BG42-0, as Pass Through Trustee, and WilmingtarsfflCompany, as
Paying Agent—incorporated by reference to Exhititl4o our Current Report on Form 8-K dated Novem$8h@004.

Escrow and Paying Agent Agreement (Class G-2) ddaseof November 15, 2004, among Wilmington Trusih@any, as
Escrow Agent, Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporatedigtoup Global Markets Inc., HSBC Securities (USAg. and

J.P. Morgan Securities, Inc., as Underwriters, Wilfton Trust Company, as Pass Through Trusteenfhioa behalf of
JetBlue Airways Corporation Pass Through Trust 2BG42-O, as Pass Through Trustee, and Wilmingtarsffl€ompany, as
Paying Agent—incorporated by reference to ExhitiP4o our Current Report on Form 8-K dated Novem8h004.

Escrow and Paying Agent Agreement (Class C), daseaf November 15, 2004, among Wilmington Trust @any, as
Escrow Agent, Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporatedigtoup Global Markets Inc., HSBC Securities (USAg. and J.P.
Morgan Securities, Inc., as Underwriters, Wilmingitrust Company, as Pass Through Trustee for admbalf of JetBlue
Airways Corporation Pass Through Trust 2004-2C<RPass Through Trustee, and Wilmington Trust Compas Paying
Agent—incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1®tw Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 8420

ISDA Master Agreement, dated as of November 1542B86tween Citibank, N.A., as Above Cap LiquiditycHity Provider,
and Wilmington Trust Company, as Subordination Adenthe JetBlue Airways Corporation Pass Throtigist 2004-2G-1-
O—incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.14 to Gurrent Report on Form 8-K dated November 9, 2@04 (

Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement, dated &oeEmber 15, 2004, between Citibank, N.A., as AbGep Liquidity
Facility Provider, and Wilmington Trust Company,Sasbordination Agent for the JetBlue Airways Cogimm Pass Throug
Trust 2004-2G-1-O—incorporated by reference to Bitlli.15 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated/é&laber 9, 2004.
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Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement, dated &oekmber 15, 2004, between Citibank, N.A., as AbGee Liquidity
Facility Provider, and Wilmington Trust Company,&sbordination Agent for the JetBlue Airways Cogimm Pass Throug
Trust 2004-2G-2-O—incorporated by reference to Bitli.16 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated/&aber 9, 2004.

Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement, dated &oekmber 15, 2004, between Citibank, N.A., as AbGee Liquidity
Facility Provider, and Wilmington Trust Company,&sbordination Agent for the JetBlue Airways Cogimm Pass Throug
Trust 2004-2C-O—incorporated by reference to Extti7 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated Nwolver 9, 2004.

Class G-1 Above Cap Liquidity Facility Confirmatiashated November 15, 2004, between Citibank, Na8 Above Cap
Liquidity Facility Provider, and Wilmington Trustd@hpany, as Subordination Agent—incorporated byresfee to Exhibit
4.18 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated Noventh 2004.

Class G-2 Above Cap Liquidity Facility Confirmatiashated November 15, 2004, between Citibank, Na8 Above Cap
Liquidity Facility Provider, and Wilmington Trustd@hpany, as Subordination Agent—incorporated byresiee to Exhibit
4.19 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated Noventh 2004.

Class C Above Cap Liquidity Facility Confirmatiasigated November 15, 2004, between Citibank, N.AAlasve Cap
Liquidity Facility Provider, and Wilmington Trustdnpany, as Subordination Agent—incorporated byresfee to Exhibit
4.20 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated Noventh 2004.

Insurance and Indemnity Agreement, dated as of Mdee 15, 2004, among MBIA Insurance CorporatiorRalécy
Provider, JetBlue Airways Corporation and Wilmingfbrust Company, as Subordination Agent and Trusteeorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.21 to our Current Reporf-orm 8-K dated November 9, 2004.

MBIA Insurance Corporation Financial Guaranty Ir@wre Policy, dated November 15, 2004, bearing Pdliomber 45243
issued to Wilmington Trust Company, as Subordimafigent for the Class G-1 Certificates—incorpordtgdeference to
Exhibit 4.22 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dbovember 9, 2004.

MBIA Insurance Corporation Financial Guaranty Ir@we Policy, dated November 15, 2004, bearing Pdliomber 45256
issued to Wilmington Trust Company, as Subordimafigent for the Class G-2 Certificates—incorpordtgdeference to
Exhibit 4.23 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dbovember 9, 2004.

Intercreditor Agreement, dated as of November 0842 among Wilmington Trust Company, as Pass Thrdugstee,
Landesbank Baden-Wirttemberg, as Primary Liquigityvider, Citibank, N.A., as Above-Cap Liquiditydvider, MBIA
Insurance Corporation, as Policy Provider, and Wifiton Trust Company, as Subordination Agent—inooaped by
reference to Exhibit 4.24 to our Current ReporfFonm 8-K dated November 9, 2004.

Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of November0D8, 2mong JetBlue Airways Corporation, Wilmingionst Company
in its separate capacities as Pass Through Truse®bordination Agent, as Escrow Agent and amga#gent—
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.25 to ourr€at Report on Form 8-K dated November 9, 2004.

Form of Trust Indenture and Mortgage between JetBluways Corporation, as Owner, and WilmingtonstrGompany, as
Mortgagee—incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4@26ur Current Report on Form 8-K dated Novemha&(®4.

Form of Participation Agreement among JetBlue Aysv&€orporation, as Owner, and Wilmington Trust Camp in its
separate capacities as Mortgagee, as Pass Througted and as Subordination Agent—incorporatecefgrence to Exhibit
4.27 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated Noventh 2004.

Indenture, dated as of March 16, 2005, betweenuetBirways Corporation and Wilmington Trust Compaas Trustee,
relating to the Company’s debt securities—incorpedy reference to Exhibit 4.1 to our Current Répa Form 8-K dated
March 10, 2005.
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4.9(b)
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4.10(a)

4.10(b)

4.10(c)

4.10(d)

4.10(e)

4.10(f)

4.10(g)

4.10(h)

Second Supplemental Indenture to the Indenture &k Exhibit 4.9 to this report, dated as of Jur2008, between JetBlue
Airways Corporation and Wilmington Trust Compang,Taustee, relating to the Company’s 5.5% Convierfilebentures
due 2038—incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.&ur Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 5, 2008

Third Supplemental Indenture to the Indenture fasdExhibit 4.9 to this report, dated as of Jur20@8, between JetBlue
Airways Corporation and Wilmington Trust Compang,Taustee, relating to the Company’s 5.5% Convierfilebentures
due 2038—incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8ur Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 5, 2008

Pass Through Trust Agreement, dated as of Noverhet006, between JetBlue Airways Corporation anldniigton Trust
Company, as Pass Through Trustee, made with rept#w formation of JetBlue Airways (Spare Pa@s) Pass Through
Trust, and the issuance of Three-Month LIBOR pliz80% JetBlue Airways (Spare Parts) G-1 Pass Tlr@egtificate—
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to ourr@ot Report on Form 8-K dated November 14, 2006.

Pass Through Trust Agreement, dated as of Noverhet006, between JetBlue Airways Corporation anldnigton Trust
Company, as Pass Through Trustee, made with rept#w formation of JetBlue Airways (Spare PaRsl) Pass Through
Trust, and the issuance of Three-Month LIBOR pli#¥3% JetBlue Airways (Spare Parts) B-1 Pass Thrdleytificate—
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to ourr@at Report on Form 8-K dated November 14, 2006.

Revolving Credit Agreement, dated as of NovemberD@6, between Wilmington Trust Company, as Subatibn Agent,
as agent and trustee for the JetBlue Airways (Sparts) G-1 Pass Through Trust, as Borrower, amdiésbank Hessen-
Thuringen Girozentrale, as Primary Liquidity Praaie-incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Gurrent Report on
Form 8-K dated November 14, 2006.

ISDA Master Agreement, dated as of November 1462B6tween Morgan Stanley Capital Services IncAtas/e Cap
Liquidity Provider, and Wilmington Trust Company Subordination Agent for the JetBlue Airways (®pRarts) G-1 Pass
Through Trust—incorporated by reference to Exhibdtto our Current Report on Form 8-K dated Novenilde 2006.

Schedule to the ISDA Master Agreement, dated &oeEmber 14, 2006, between Morgan Stanley Capéali€es Inc., as
Above Cap Liquidity Provider, and Wilmington TruSbmpany, as Subordination Agent for the JetBluevAys (Spare part:
G-1 Pass Through Trust—incorporated by referendextobit 4.5 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dhate

November 14, 2006.

Class G-1 Above Cap Liquidity Facility Confirmaticsiated November 14, 2006, between Morgan Standgjt&l Services
Inc., as Above Cap Liquidity Provider, and WilmingtTrust Company, as Subordination Agent—incorpatdty reference
to Exhibit 4.6 to our Current Report on Form 8-KethNovember 14, 2006.

Insurance and Indemnity Agreement, dated as of Mdwee 14, 2006, among MBIA Insurance CorporatiorRalécy
Provider, JetBlue Airways Corporation and Wilmingfbrust Company, as Subordination Agent and Trusteeorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to our Current Reparfrorm 8-K dated November 14, 2006.

Guarantee, dated as of November 14, 2006, by Mdsgamley, relating to the Above-Cap Liquidity Fégi—incorporated b
reference to Exhibit 4.8 to our Current Report onnfr 8-K dated November 14, 2006.

MBIA Insurance Corporation Financial Guaranty Ir@ae Policy, dated November 14, 2006, bearing Y dliomber 487110
issued to Wilmington Trust Company, as Subordimafigent for the Class G-1 Certificates—incorpordtgdeference to
Exhibit 4.9 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dakalvember 14, 2006.
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411

4.11(a)

412

4.13

4.14

Intercreditor Agreement, dated as of November 8862 among Wilmington Trust Company, as Pass Thrdugstee,
Landesbank Hessen-Thiringen Girozentrale, as Pyitriquidity Provider, Morgan Stanley Capital Semsc Inc., as Above-
Cap Liquidity Provider, MBIA Insurance Corporatias Policy Provider, and Wilmington Trust Compaay Subordination
Agent—incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1@tw Current Report on Form 8-K dated November D062

Note Purchase Agreement, dated as of NovemberOD§, 2mong JetBlue Airways Corporation, Wilmingliomst Company
in its separate capacities as Pass Through Trusge®bordination Agent and as Mortgagee—incorpdray reference to
Exhibit 4.11 to our Current Report on Form 8-K diadovember 14, 2006.

Trust Indenture and Mortgage, dated November 146 2Between JetBlue Airways Corporation, as Owaed, Wilmington
Trust Company, as Mortgagee—incorporated by referén Exhibit 4.12 to our Current Report on Forid 8ated
November 14, 2006.

Collateral Maintenance Agreement, dated as of Nd»eari4, 2006, among, JetBlue Airways CorporatioB|MInsurance
Corporation, as Initial Policy Provider, Wilmingtdmust Company, as Mortgagee, and Additional Pdiogvider(s), if any,
which may from time to time hereafter become partiencorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.13 to Gurrent Report on
Form 8-K dated November 14, 2006.

Reference Agency Agreement, dated November 14,,2086ng JetBlue Airways Corporation, Wilmington SrCompany
as Subordination Agent and Mortgagee and ReferAgeat—incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.14tw Current Report
on Form 8-K dated November 14, 2006.

Form of JetBlue Airways (Spare Parts) G-1 Pass dditicCertificate (included in Exhibit 4.10)—incorpbed by reference to
Exhibit 4.15 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dalovember 14, 2006.

Form of JetBlue Airways (Spare Parts) B-1 Pass UdindCertificate (included in Exhibit 4.10(a))—inpaorated by reference
to Exhibit 4.16 to our Current Report on Form 8-dtetl November 14, 2006.

Form of JetBlue Airways (Spare Parts) G-1 Equipnmdote—incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.16to Current Report
on Form 8-K dated November 14, 2006.

Form of JetBlue Airways (Spare Parts) B-1 Equipni¢oite—incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.18to Current Report
on Form 8-K dated November 14, 2006.

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of Decemb@003, between JetBlue Airways Corporation and Degtd ufthansa
AG—incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.11 to Gurrent Report on Form 8-K dated December 13, 2007

Amendment No. 1, dated as of January 22, 2008et&tock Purchase Agreement, dated as of DecerBb20Q7, between
JetBlue Airways Corporation and Deutsche LufthaiGa—incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.11(a) to Gurrent Repor
on Form 8-K dated January 23, 2008.

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Jan22yp008, by and between JetBlue Airways Corpaonadiod Deutsche
Lufthansa AG—incorporated by reference to Exhiklt24to our Current Report on Form 8-K dated Jan@&r\2008.

Supplement Agreement, dated as of May 27, 2008dmat JetBlue Airways Corporation and Deutsche lanfa AG —
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.12 to ourr€nt Report on Form 8-K dated May 28, 2008.

Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of Jur@08, lZetween JetBlue Airways Corporation and WilntongT rust
Company, as Trustee—incorporated by reference hibix4.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed oméub, 2008.
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4.15

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

4.20

4.21

4.22

10.3**

10.3(a)**

10.3(b)**

10.3(c)*

10.3(d)**

10.3(e)**

10.3(f)*

Third Supplemental Indenture dated as of June @8 ®@tween JetBlue Airways Corporation and WilmamgT rust
Company, as Trustee—incorporated by reference hibix.2 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed oméwb, 2008.

Form of Global Debenture—5.50% Convertible Debentire 2038 (Series A) (included as part of Exildi)—
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to CuriRaport on Form 8-K filed on June 5, 2008.

Form of Global Debenture—5.50% Convertible Debentlre 2038 (Series B) (included as part of ExHita}—
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Curi@aport on Form 8-K filed on June 5, 2008.

Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated as of Jun8@®) Between JetBlue Airways Corporation and WilrtomgT rust
Company, as Trustee—incorporated by reference hibix4.1 to Current Report on Form 8-K filed oméwd, 2009.

Fifth Supplemental Indenture dated as of June Q9 2@tween JetBlue Airways Corporation and WilmimgTrust Company,
as Trustee—incorporated by reference to Exhibitd Qurrent Report on Form 8-K filed on June 9,200

Form of Global Debenture—6.75% Convertible Debentlre 2039 (Series A)—incorporated by referendextubit 4.3 to
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 9, 2009.

Form of Global Debenture—6.75% Convertible Debentiire 2039 (Series B)—incorporated by referendextobit 4.3 to
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 9, 2009.

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of AprR@&l.2, among JetBlue Airways Corporation, Deutdalfthansa AG and
Lufthansa Malta Blues LP - incorporated by refeeetecExhibit 4.22 to our Current Report on Form &&d on April 5,
2012.

V2500 General Terms of Sale between IAE Internatiérero Engines AG and NewAir Corporation, inclugliide Letters
No. 1 through No. 3 and No. 5 through No. 9—incogted by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Regigirabtatement on
Form S-1, as amended (File No. 333-82576).

Side Letter No. 10 to V2500 General Terms of Selsvben IAE International Aero Engines AG and New@arporation,
dated April 25, 2002—incorporated by referencexbikit 10.2 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-@ thee quarter ended
June 30, 2002.

Side Letter No. 11 to V2500 General Terms of Selsvben IAE International Aero Engines AG and New@arporation,
dated February 10, 2003—incorporated by referem&echibit 10.8 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K floe year ended
December 31, 2002.

Side Letter No. 12 to V2500 General Terms of Selsvben IAE International Aero Engines AG and New@arporation,
dated March 24, 2003—incorporated by referencextuti 10.1 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q thee quarter ended
March 31, 2003.

Side Letter No. 13 to V2500 General Terms of Salevben IAE International Aero Engines AG and New®@arporation,
dated April 23, 2003—incorporated by referencexbiBit 10.3 to our Current Report on Form 8-K dajeee 30, 2003.

Side Letter No. 14 to V2500 General Terms of Salevben IAE International Aero Engines AG and New®@arporation,
dated October 3, 2003—incorporated by referen¢extobit 10.15 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K foe year ended
December 31, 2003.

Side Letter No. 15 to V2500 General Terms of Selsvben IAE International Aero Engines AG and New@arporation,
dated November 10, 2003—incorporated by referem&xhibit 10.16 to our Annual Report on Form 10 the year ended
December 31, 2003.
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10.3(g)**

10.3(h)**

10.3(i)**

10.3()*

10.3(k)*

10.3(1)*

10.3(m)**

10.3(n)**

10.3(0)**

10.3(p)**

10.3(q)**

10.3(r)**

10.3(s)*

Side Letter No. 16 to V2500 General Terms of Salevben IAE International Aero Engines AG and New®@arporation,
dated February 20, 2004—incorporated by referemé&echibit 10.1 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10e@the quarter
ended March 31, 2004.

Side Letter No. 17 to V2500 General Terms of Salevben IAE International Aero Engines AG and New®@arporation,
dated June 11, 2004—incorporated by reference hibiEx 0.3 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q thoe quarter ended
June 30, 2004.

Side Letter No. 18 to V2500 General Terms of Salsvben IAE International Aero Engines AG and New@arporation,
dated November 19, 2004—incorporated by referem&exhibit 10.2 to our Current Report on Form 8-KedeNovember 19,
2004.

Side Letter No. 19 to V2500 General Terms of Salevben IAE International Aero Engines AG and New @orporation,
dated July 21, 2005—incorporated by reference tultfix10.2 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q thee quarter ended
September 30, 2005.

Side Letter No. 20 to V2500 General Terms of Salevben IAE International Aero Engines AG and New @orporation,
dated July 6, 2006—incorporated by reference talkitxh0.3 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q tlee quarter ended
June 30, 2006.

Side Letter No. 21 to V2500 General Terms of Salsvben IAE International Aero Engines AG and New @orporation,
dated January 30, 2007—incorporated by referengslibit 10.2 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10e@the quarter
ended March 31, 2007.

Side Letter No. 22 to V2500 General Terms of Salsvben IAE International Aero Engines AG and New @orporation,
dated March 27, 2007—incorporated by referencextulit 10.3 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-@ thee quarter ended
March 31, 2007.

Side Letter No. 23 to V2500 General Terms of Salsvben IAE International Aero Engines AG and New @orporation,
dated December 18, 2007—incorporated by referem&hibit 10.3(n) to our Annual Report on Form 10ds amended, for
the year ended December 31, 2007.

Side Letter No. 24 to V2500 General Terms of Salevben IAE International Aero Engines and New Adar@bration, dated
April 2, 2008—incorporated by reference to Exhilit2 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for thanter ended June 30,
2008.

Side Letter No. 25 to V2500 General Terms of Salevben IAE International Aero Engines and New Adarg@bration, dated
May 27, 2008—incorporated by reference to Exhibi8lto our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for tharger ended June
30, 2008.

Side Letter No. 26 to V2500 General Terms of Salevben IAE International Aero Engines and New Adarg@bration, dated
January 27, 2009—incorporated by reference to Exhibh3(q) to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qtloe quarter ended
March 31, 2009.

Side Letter No. 27 to V2500 General Terms of Salevben IAE International Aero Engines and New Aar@bration, dated
June 5, 2009-incorporated by reference to Exhihid(t) to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for therter ended June
30, 2009.

Side letter No. 28 to V2500 General Terms of Sakben IAE International Aero Engines and New Adrration, dated
August 31, 2010—incorporated by reference to ExHiBi3(s) to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qtfer quarter ended
September 30, 2010.

Side letter No. 29 to V2500 General Terms of Salgvben IAE International Aero Engines and New Adarg@ration, dated
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March 31, 2011.
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10.3(u)**

10.3(v)**

10.3(w)**

10.3(x)*

10.3(y)*

10.3(2)*

10.3(aa)**

10.3(ab)***

10.4**

10.5**

10.14*

10.15

10.17**

10.17(a)*

Side letter No. 30 to V2500 General Terms of Sakben IAE International Aero Engines and New Adrration, dated
August 17, 2011—incorporated by reference to ExHiBi3(u) to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qtfee quarter ended
September 30, 2011.

Side letter No. 31 to V2500 General Terms of Sakben IAE International Aero Engines and New Adrgration, dated
September 27, 2011—incorporated by reference tdbiExt0.3(v) to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-@) the quarter
ended September 30, 2011.

Side letter No. 32 to V2500 General Terms of Salgvben IAE International Aero Engines and New Adarg@ration, dated
November 8, 2011 - incorporated by reference taitkitxh0.3(w) to our Annual Report on Form 10-K the year ended
December 31, 2011.

Side letter No. 33 to V2500 General Terms of Salgvben IAE International Aero Engines and New Adarg@ration, dated
December 1, 2011 - incorporated by reference takiixh0.3(x) to our Annual Report on Form 10-K tbe year ended
December 31, 2011.

Side letter No. 34 to V2500 General Terms of Salgvben IAE International Aero Engines and New Adarg@ration, dated
February 21, 2012 - incorporated by reference tailiix10.3(y) to our Quarterly Report on Form 10a the quarter ended
March 31, 2012.

Side letter No. 35 to V2500 General Terms of Sakben IAE International Aero Engines and New Adrgration, dated
March 15, 2012 - incorporated by reference to ExHiB.3(z) to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qtloe quarter ended
March 31, 2012.

Side letter No. 36 to V2500 General Terms of Sakben IAE International Aero Engines and New Adrgration, dated
May 1, 2012 - incorporated by reference to ExHibit3(aa) to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q lier quarter ended June
30, 2012.

Side letter No. 37 to V2500 General Terms of Sakben IAE International Aero Engines and New Adrgration, dated
November 9, 2012.

Amendment and Restated Agreement between JetBhwes Corporation and LiveTV, LLC, dated as of
December 17, 2001, including Amendments No. 1,Nand 3—incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.the Registration
Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File No. 333625

GDL Patent License Agreement between Harris Cotfmorand LiveTV, LLC, dated as of September 2, 20@2corporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Quarterly Reéor Form 10-Q for quarter ended September 30,.2002

JetBlue Airways Corporation 401(k) Retirement PlEamended and restated as of January 1, 2009—inetegoby reference
to Exhibit 10.14 to our Quarterly Report on FormQGaor the quarter ended March 31, 2010.

Form of Director/Officer Indemnification Agreementreorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to thegiRtration
Statement on Form S-1, as amended (File No. 333@2ind referenced as Exhibit 10.19 in our CurReqtort on Form 8-K
dated February 12, 2008.

EMBRAER-190 Purchase Agreement DCT-025/2003, datee 9, 2003, between Embraer-Empresa Brasileira de
Aeronautica S.A. and JetBlue Airways Corporatiomeoirporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to ourr€urReport on
Form 8-K dated June 30, 2003.

Amendment No. 1 to Purchase Agreement DCT-025/288&d as of July 8, 2005, between Embraer-EmBessileria de
Aeronautica S.A. and JetBlue Airways Corporationeeimporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to our @rér Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2005.
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10.17(c)**

10.17(d)*

10.17(e)**

10.17(f)*

10.17(g)**

10.17(h)*

10.17(i)*

10.17(j)*

10.17(K)**

10.17(I)*

10.17(m)**

10.17(n)**
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Amendment No. 2 to Purchase Agreement DCT-025/2@&&d as of January 5, 2006, between Embraer-Eaesileria
de Aeronautica S.A. and JetBlue Airways Corporatiémcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22(b) tm Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Amendment No. 3 to Purchase Agreement DCT-025/288&d as of December 4, 2006, between Embraerdsapr
Brasileria de Aeronautica S.A. and JetBlue Airw@ysporation—incorporated by reference to Exhibi21 c) to our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Dduam31, 2006.

Amendment No. 4 to Purchase Agreement DCT-025/288&d as of October 17, 2007, between Embraer-&sapr
Brasileria de Aeronautica S.A. and JetBlue Airw@ysporation—incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17(d) to Aonual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeRGQy.

Amendment No. 5 to Purchase Agreement DCT-025/268&d as of July 18, 2008, between Embraer-EmBessileira de
Aeronautica S.A. and JetBlue Airways Corporationeeimporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our @rér Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2008.

Amendment No. 6 to Purchase Agreement DCT-025/288&d as of February 17, 2009, between Embraer&sap
Brasileira de Aeronautica S.A. and JetBlue Airw@ysporation—incorporated by reference to ExhibitLTgf) to our
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter endadch 31, 2009.

Amendment No. 7 to Purchase Agreement DCT-025/2@8&d as of December 14, 2009, between EmbraerdsSap
Brasileira de Aeronautica S.A. and JetBlue Airw@ysporation—incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17(g) to Aonual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeRGQ9.

Amendment No. 8 to Purchase Agreement DCT-025/288@d as of March 11, 2010, between Embraer-EmBessileira
de Aeronautica S.A. and JetBlue Airways Corporatiémcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17(h) tm Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2010.

Amendment No. 9 to Purchase Agreement DCT-025/288&d as of May 24, 2010, between Embraer-EmBessileira de
Aeronautica S.A. and JetBlue Airways Corporationesiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17(i) to Qurarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2010.

Amendment No. 10 to Purchase Agreement DCT-025/288®&d as of September 10, 2010, between Embraprdsa
Brasileira de Aeronautica S.A. and JetBlue Airw@ysporation—incorporated by reference to Exhibitl¥gj) to our
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter enSeptember 30, 2010.

Amendment No. 11 to Purchase Agreement DCT-025/28&@&d as of October 20, 2011, between Embraeré&sap
Brasileira de Aeronautica S.A. and JetBlue Airw@ysporation - incorporated by reference to Exhlloitl 7(k) to our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeRG11].

Amendment No. 12 to Purchase Agreement DCT-025/288&d as of October 25, 2011, between Embraemé&sap
Brasileira de Aeronautica S.A. and JetBlue Airw@ysporation - incorporated by reference to Exhiloitl7(l) to our Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeRG11].

Amendment No. 13 to Purchase Agreement DCT-025/288&d as of July 20, 2012, between Embraer-EraBegsileira
de Aeronautica S.A. and JetBlue Airways Corporatiorcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17(mtw Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 3AR.20

Amendment No. 14 to Purchase Agreement DCT-025/288®&d as of December 3, 2012, between Embraerdsap
Brasileira de Aeronautica S.A. and JetBlue Airw&@ysporation.

Amendment No. 15 to Purchase Agreement DCT-025/28&&d as of December 19, 2012, between Embrardsa
Brasileira de Aeronautica S.A. and JetBlue Airw&@ysporation.
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10.18**

10.18(a)**

10.18(b)**

10.18(c)**

10.18(d)**

10.18(e)**

10.18(f)**

10.18(g)**

10.18(h)**

10.18(i)**

10.20

10.21*

10.22*

10.23*

Letter Agreement DCT-026/2003, dated June 9, 2088yeen Embraer-Empresa Brasileira de Aeronautitag®d JetBlue
Airways Corporation—incorporated by reference tdilbit 10.5 to our Current Report on Form 8-K daiede 30, 2003.

Amendment No. 1, dated as of July 8, 2005, to kettreement DCT-026/2003, between Embraer-EmpreasilBira de
Aeronautica S.A. and JetBlue Airways Corporationeseiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to our @aréyr Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2005.

Amendment No. 2, dated as of January 5, 2006, tiei.Agreement DCT-026/2003, between Embraer-EnapBeasileira de
Aeronautica S.A. and JetBlue Airways Corporationeeiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22(b) to Aonual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Amendment No. 3, dated as of December 4, 2006ettet. Agreement DCT-026/2003, between Embraer-EsapBeasileira
de Aeronautica S.A. and JetBlue Airways Corporatiémcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22( cptw Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Amendment No. 4, dated as of October 17, 2007 eteek Agreement DCT-026/2003, between Embraer-EsapBeasileria
de Aeronautica S.A. and JetBlue Airways Corporatiémcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18(d) tw Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Amendment No. 5 to Letter Agreement DCT-026/20GRed as of March 6, 2008, between Embraer-Empressil&ra de
Aeronautica S.A. and JetBlue Airways Corporationesiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to our @aréy Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2008.

Amendment No. 6 to Letter Agreement DCT-026/20@8ed as of July 18, 2008, between Embraer-Empressil&@ra de
Aeronautica S.A. and JetBlue Airways Corporationesiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to our @aréy Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2008.

Amendment No. 7 to Letter Agreement DCT-026/20@8ed as of February 17, 2009, between Embraer-EBaBeasileira
de Aeronautica S.A. and JetBlue Airways Corporatiémcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18(g)he Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2009.

Amendment No. 8 to Letter Agreement DCT-026/20@8ed as of December 14, 2009, between Embraer-Emp@sileira
de Aeronautica S.A. and JetBlue Airways Corporatiomcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18(h) t® Annual Report o
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Amendment No. 9 to Letter Agreement DCT-026/20@8ed as of March 11, 2010, between Embraer-EmBessileira de
Aeronautica S.A. and JetBlue Airways Corporationeeiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18(i) to @uarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2010.

Agreement of Lease (Port Authority Lease No. AYD3BSlated November 22, 2005, between The Port Aifyhaf New
York and New Jersey and JetBlue Airways Corporatiorcorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Amended and Restated 2002 Stock Incentive Plaaddébvember 7, 2007, and form of award agreemertesorated by
reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the Annual ReportForm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.

JetBlue Airways Corporation Executive Change in @arSeverance Plan, dated as of June 28, 2007—+gocated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Current ReporfFonm 8-K, dated June 28, 2007.

Employment Agreement, dated February 11, 2008, detwietBlue Airways Corporation and David Bargereeiporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Quarterly Repartrmrm 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2008.
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Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated July 892between JetBlue Airways Corporation and Daadger—
10.23(a)*  incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23(a) to Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year endedddeiser 31, 2009.

Amendment no. 2 to Employment Agreement, dated Dbee 21, 2010, between JetBlue Airways Corporadioth David
10.23(b)*  Barger—incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.23¢bour Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Decemb2, 2010.

Share Lending Agreement, dated as of May 29, 2@d8den JetBlue Airways Corporation and Morgan &tadlapital
10.25 Services, Inc.—incorporated by reference to ExHibitl to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed onyM&®, 2008.

Pledge and Escrow Agreement (Series A Debentusgsiighs of June 4, 2008 among JetBlue Airways Catipo,
Wilmington Trust Company, as Trustee, and Wilmimgloust Company, as Escrow Agent—incorporated fsreace to
10.26 Exhibit 10.1 to our Current Report on Form 8-Kdilen June 5, 2008.

Pledge and Escrow Agreement (Series B Debentuatsil s of June 4, 2008 among JetBlue Airways Catip,
Wilmington Trust Company, as Trustee, and Wilmimgloust Company, as Escrow Agent—incorporated fsreace to
10.27 Exhibit 10.2 to our Current Report on Form 8-Kdilen June 5, 2008.

Option Letter Agreement, dated as of June 3, 2B88yeen JetBlue Airways Corporation and DeutscHéheusa AG—
10.29 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to ourr€at Report on Form 8-K filed on June 4, 2009.

Sublease by and between JetBlue Airways CorporatiohMetropolitan Life Insurance Company—incorpedalby reference
10.30** to Exhibit 10.30 to our Quarterly Report on FormQaor the quarter ended September 30, 2010.

JetBlue Airways Corporation 2011 Incentive CompénsaPlan—incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1¢a3 to our
10.31(a) Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter entlate 30, 2011.

JetBlue Airways Corporation 2011 Incentive CompénsaPlan forms of award agreement—incorporatedegrence to
10.31(b) Exhibit 10.31(b) to our Quarterly Report on FormQ@or the quarter ended June 30, 2011.

Airbus A320 Family Purchase Agreement, dated Oc¢t@Be2011, between Airbus S.A.S. and JetBlue Aysv@orporation,
including letter agreements 1-8, each dated aarmgdate - incorporated by reference to Exhibi83@ our Annual Report
10.33** on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2011.

Letter Agreement 9 to Airbus A320 Family Purchagge®ment, dated December 19, 2012, between AirlAu$ Sand
10.33(a)***  JetBlue Airways Corporation.

JetBlue Airways Corporation 2011 Crewmember StasicRase Plan - incorporated by reference to Extii85 to our
10.35* Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddmem31, 2011.

12.1 Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges.
21.1 List of Subsidiaries.
23 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP.
31.1 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of the Chiafecutive Officer.

31.2 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of the Chitafancial Officer.
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32 Section 1350 Certifications.

Letter of Approval from the City of Long Beach Degaent of Public Works, dated May 22, 2001, appigwCity Council
Resolution C-27843 regarding Flight Slot Allocat@anlLong Beach Municipal Airport—incorporated byerence to

99.2 Exhibit 99.2 to the Registration Statement on F&xh, as amended (File No. 333-82576).

101 INS***=* XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH***  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL*+*  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutne

101.LAB***  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Document

101.PRE****  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenim

K%k
*kk

*kkk

(1)

(2)

(3)

Compensatory plans in which the directors anecexive officers of JetBlue participate.

Pursuant to a Confidential Treatment RequestarrRule 24b-2 filed with and approved by the Sg@tions of this exhibit have been
omitted.

Pursuant to 17 CFR 240.24b-2, confidentialdrmhation has been omitted and has been filed sigharith the Securities and
Exchange Commission pursuant to a Confidentialtimeat Request filed with the Commission.

XBRL (eXtensible Business Reporting Languagajormation is furnished and not filed or a paraaegistration statement or
prospectus for purposes of sections 11 or 12 oStwurities Act of 1933, is deemed not filed forgmses of section 18 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, dratwise is not subject to liability under thesetisers.

Documents substantially identical in all matkrespects to the document filed as Exhibit 4.4ur Current Report on Form 8-K dated
March 24, 2004 (which exhibit relates to formatafnetBlue Airways Pass Through Trust, Series 2D84%-O and the issuance of
Three-Month LIBOR plus 0.375% JetBlue Airways PaBsough Trust, Series 2004-1G-1-0O, Pass Throughificates) have been
entered into with respect to formation of eachaiBlue Airways Pass Through Trusts, Series 200£24@Gand Series 2004-1C-O and
the issuance of each of Three-Month LIBOR plus 0%42etBlue Airways Pass Through Trust, Series 20842-O and Three-Month
LIBOR plus 4.250% JetBlue Airways Pass Through Tr8eries 2004-1C-O. Pursuant to Instruction 2erhl601 of Regulation S-K,
Exhibit 99.1, incorporated by reference to our €atrReport on Form 8-K dated March 24, 2004, seth the terms by which such
substantially identical documents differ from Exhih7(c).

Documents substantially identical in all matkrespects to the document filed as Exhibit 04 Current Report on Form 8-K dated
March 24, 2004 (which exhibit relates to an aboap-liquidity facility provided on behalf of the Bdtie Airways Corporation Pass
Through Trust 2004-1G-1-O) have been entered iitio rgspect to the above-cap liquidity facilitie®ypided on behalf of the JetBlue
Airways Corporation Pass Through Trust 2004-1G-2nd the JetBlue Airways Corporation Pass Througtstl2004-1C-O. Pursuant
to Instruction 2 of Item 601 of Regulation S-K, Eh99.2, incorporated by reference to our Curieaport on Form 8-K dated
March 24, 2004, sets forth the terms by which sudtstantially identical documents differ from Exhib7(m).

Documents substantially identical in all matkrespects to the document filed as Exhibit 4.4ur Current Report on Form 8-K dated
November 9, 2004 (which exhibit relates to formatid JetBlue Airways Pass Through Trust, Seriest-2G-1-O and the issuance of
Three-Month LIBOR plus 0.375% JetBlue Airways PaBsough Trust, Series 2004-2G-1-0O, Pass Throughificates) have been
entered into with respect to formation of eachhef detBlue Airways Pass Through Trusts, Series-2@2-0 and Series 2004-2C-0O
and the issuance of each of Three-Month LIBOR pld§0% JetBlue Airways Pass Through Trust, Seld@l2G-2-O and Three-
Month LIBOR plus 3.100% JetBlue Airways Pass Thiodigust, Series 2004-2C-0. Pursuant to Instruciar Item 601 of Regulation

S-K,
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(4)

Exhibit 99.1, incorporated by reference to our €ntReport on Form 8-K dated November 9, 2004, feetis the terms by which such
substantially identical documents differ from Exhih8(c).

Documents substantially identical in all matkrespects to the document filed as Exhibit 4d.dur Current Report on Form 8-K dated
November 9, 2004 (which exhibit relates to an a-cap liquidity facility provided on behalf of thetBlue Airways Corporation Pass
Through Trust 2004-2G-1-O) have been entered iitio rgspect to the above-cap liquidity facilitie®ypided on behalf of the JetBlue
Airways Corporation Pass Through Trust 2004-2G-2n0 the JetBlue Airways Corporation Pass Througtstl2004-2C-O. Pursuant
to Instruction 2 of Item 601 of Regulation S-K, Eh99.2, incorporated by reference to our Curieaport on Form 8-K dated
November 9, 2004, sets forth the terms by whicth substantially identical documents differ from ibih4.8(m).
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
JetBlue Airways Corporation

We have audited the consolidated financial statésn@nJetBlue Airways Corporation as of December2Bil2 and 2011, and for each of
the three years in the period ended December 30, 2hd have issued our report thereon dated Fgh?0a2013 (included elsewhere in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K). Our audits also inelddhe financial statement schedule listed in 1i&¢2) of this Annual Report on Form 10-
K. This schedule is the responsibility of the Comyga management. Our responsibility is to expressginion on this schedule based on our
audits.

In our opinion, the financial statement scheduferred to above, when considered in relation tdotsc financial statements taken as a
whole, presents fairly in all material respectsitifermation set forth therein.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

New York, New York
February 20, 2013
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JetBlue Airways Corporation

Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
(in thousands)

Additions
Balance at Charged to Balance at
beginning of Costs and end of
Description period Expenses Deductions period
Year Ended December 31, 2012
Allowances deducted from asset accounts:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 7,586 $ 5,472 $ 6,46t (1) $ 6,59:
Allowance for obsolete inventory parts 3,88¢ 1,25( 9C (3 5,04¢
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets 20,87: — 604 (2) 20,26¢
Year Ended December 31, 2011
Allowances deducted from asset accounts:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 6,17 $ 7,013 $ 560: (1) $ 7,58¢
Allowance for obsolete inventory parts 3,63¢ 1,02¢ 77¢  (3) 3,88¢
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets 20,67: 254 54 (2) 20,87:
Year Ended December 31, 2010
Allowances deducted from asset accounts:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 566( $ 7,471 $ 6,95¢ (1) $ 6,172
Allowance for obsolete inventory parts 3,37: 1,01¢ 758 (3) 3,63¢
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets 24,63: — 3,95¢ (2) 20,67

(1) Uncollectible accounts written off, net of recoes
(2) Attributable to recognition and writef of deferred tax asse
(3) Inventory scrappe

S-2
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Exhibit 10.3(ab)
IAE PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

(G| International
s | Aero Engines.

628 Hebron Avenue, Suite 400
Glastonbury, CT 06033 USA

November 9, 2012

Mr. Mark Powers

Chief Financial Officer
JetBlue Airways Corporation
27-01 Queens Plaza North
Long Island City, NY 11101

Subject: Side Letter No. 37 to the V2500 General Terms of Sa le Agreement between JetBlue Airways Corporation
and IAE International Aero Engines AG dated May 4,  1999.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We refer to the General Terms of Sale Agreement dated May 4, 1999 between IAE International Aero Engines AG (“ IAE ") and
JetBlue Airways Corporation (* JetBlue "), as amended from time to time, such contract being hereinafter referred to as the "

Agreement ".

Unless expressly stated to the contrary, and to the extent possible, capitalized terms used in this Side Letter Agreement No. 37 (
Side Letter No. 37 ") shall have the same meaning given to them in the Agreement. In the event of a conflict between the terms and
provisions of this Side Letter No. 37 and those of the Agreement, this Side Letter No. 37 shall govern.

WHEREAS:
A. The Parties wish to [***];

B. JetBlue has agreed with the Aircraft Manufacturer to convert the aircraft model of thirty (30) Firm Aircraft from A320 to A321
and now wishes to reflect such changes in the Agreement;

C. JetBlue has agreed with the Aircraft Manufacturer to certain Firm Aircraft scheduling changes and now wishes to reflect such
changes in the Agreement;

D. JetBlue has agreed with the Aircraft Manufacturer to cancel certain Option Aircraft and now wishes to reflect such changes in
the Agreement;

E. The Parties wish to amend certain terms and conditions with respect to the calculations of [***] for future Firm Aircraft deliveries
under the Agreement;

F. The Parties wish to amend the terms and conditions under which JetBlue procures the SelectOne ™ Production Standard from
IAE under the Agreement; and

G. The Parties wish to [***] contained in the Agreement.

[ ***] Represents material which has been redacted and filed separately with the Commission pursuant to a request for confidential
treatment pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.




IAE PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hereby agree as follows:

1. Reuvision to Exhibit B -1 to the Agreement

2.

11

1.2

The Parties hereby agree that Exhibit B-1 to the Agreement, Aircraft Delivery Schedule , is hereby deleted in its entirety
and replaced by the revised delivery schedule attached as Appendix 1 hereto which captures the amendments as set
forth in Sections 2, 3, 4 and 5 below.

The Parties hereby agree that Exhibit B-2 to the Agreement, Purchased Items, Price, Escalation Formula and Delivery , is
hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced by Appendix 2 attached hereto.

Aircraft [***

2.1

2.2.

2.3.

The Parties agree that of the forty-eight (48) Firm Aircraft still left to be delivered as of the date of this Side Letter No. 37
(the “ Firm Backlog Aircraft "), the twenty-one (21) Incremental Firm Aircraft still left to be delivered shall hereafter [ **].
This Side Letter No. 37 along with Side Letter No. 32, Side Letter No. 34 and Side Letter No. 36 together: (i) increase the
total quantity of [***] from thirty (30) to fifty-five (55) and (ii) decrease the total quantity of [***] from sixty-five (65) to forty
(40).

[***] i

The Parties agree to [***] for Firm Aircraft No. 126, Firm Aircraft No. 127 and Firm Aircraft No. 128 which were delivered
as [***] subject to Sections 6 and 7 below. The Parties agree to [***].

Aircraft Conversion

3.1.

The Parties agree that Thirty (30) Firm Backlog Aircraft, Firm Aircraft No. 133 through Firm Aircraft No. 162 inclusive as
set forth in Exhibit B-1 to the Agreement attached as Appendix 1 hereto, shall be converted from A320 Firm Aircraft
powered by V2527-A5 Engines to A321 Firm Aircraft powered by V2533-A5 Engines.

Aircraft Rescheduling

4.1.

4.2.

The delivery schedule for Firm Backlog Aircraft shall be deferred as set forth in Exhibit B-1 to the Agreement attached as
Appendix 1 hereto.

The Parties agree that [***].

Option Aircraft Cancellation

5.1.

The twenty-two (22) remaining 2004 Option Aircraft are hereby cancelled and deleted from the Agreement.

Escalation for Firm Backlog Aircraft Deliveries

6.1.

The [***] for Firm Backlog Aircraft shall be calculated from a base month of [***] in accordance with the applicable formula
in Exhibit B-2 as follows:

[ ***] Represents material which has been redacted and filed separately with the Commission pursuant to a request for confidential
treatment pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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6.1.1.

6.1.2.

6.1.3.

6.1.4.

IAE PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

escalation shall be calculated to [ "**] of the Firm Backlog Aircraft, except to the extent that [***], in which case
escalation shall be calculated to [***] as set forth in Appendix 1 hereto; or

in the event that JetBlue is the sole cause of a delay in delivery of any Firm Backlog Aircraft beyond its scheduled
delivery date, escalation shall be calculated to [***]; or

in the event that IAE is the sole cause of a delay in delivery of any Firm Backlog Aircraft beyond its scheduled
delivery date, escalation shall be calculated to [***]; or

in the event that the Aircraft Manufacturer is the cause of a delay in the delivery of any Firm Backlog Aircraft
beyond its scheduled delivery date (and such delay is not due to the acts, omissions or request of JetBlue,
escalation shall be calculated to [***].

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no event shall [***] of all pricing and credits for any Firm Backlog Aircraft [***] as set
forth in Appendix1 hereto.

6.2. Notwithstanding Clause 6.1 above, for the period beginning January 1, 2003 and ending December 31, 20[***], escalation
for all pricing and credits for Firm Backlog Aircraft as calculated by the applicable escalation formula in Exhibit B-2 shall
be [***], provided that for any year in which escalation calculated by the formula in Exhibit B [***].

6.3. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Agreement, upon delivery of each Firm Backlog Aircraft, IAE will, as of the
respective dates of delivery of each of the Firm Backlog Aircraft delivered to and accepted by JetBlue, calculate [***]:

6.4.1. The Deemed Shipset Price (as defined below) escalated in accordance with Clause 6.1 above; [***]

6.4.2. The Deemed Shipset Price escalated in accordance with Clause 6.1 above [***].

IAE will [***]. For the purposes of administering this provision, the “ Deemed Shipset Price ” is as follows:

Aircraft (Engine) Type Deemed Shipset Price ([***])
A319-100 (V2524-A5) US$[***]
A320-200 (V2527-A5) US$[***]
A321-100 (V2533-A5) USS$[***]

6.4. Clause d of Side Letter No. 25, Credits and Late Delivery Period , is hereby deleted in its entirety from Side Letter No. 25.

6.5. Clause e of Side Letter No. 25, Limitation to Late Delivery Period , is hereby deleted in its entirety from Side Letter No.

25.

7. Amendments to SelectOne  ™Terms and Conditions

7.1. Clause 1.2 of Section 1 of Side Letter No. 21, Definitions, is hereby deleted in its entirety from Side Letter No. 21 and
replaced with the following:
[ ***] Represents material which has been redacted and filed separately with the Commission pursuant to a request for confidential
treatment pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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“1.2 *“ SelectOne™ Engines " shall mean each V2500-A5 Engines in which the SelectOne™ Production Standard has
been incorporated at production.”

7.2. Section 2 of Side Letter No. 21, Purchase of SelectOne ™Engines , is hereby deleted in its entirety from Side Letter No.
21 and replaced with the following:

“2.  Purchase of SelectOne™ Engines

2.1 JetBlue shall pay IAE for each SelectOne ™ Engine as follows:

2.1.1 For each SelectOne™ Engine originally installed from new on SelectOne™ Eligible Aircraft delivered
to JetBlue on or after the SelectOne™ Production Date (* SelectOne™ Installed Engine "), [***]
(US$[***]) [***] USS per SelectOne™ Installed Engine (the “ SelectOne™ Purchase Price ");

2.1.2 For each SelectOne™ Production Standard Spare Engine (“ SelectOne™ Spare Engine "), the
SelectOne™ Purchase Price.

2.2 In addition to the SelectOne™ Purchase Price, JetBlue will also pay for each SelectOne ™ Eligible Aircraft the
following amounts, as applicable (the “[***]"):

2.2.1  [**¥] (US$[***]) in [**] US$ per SelectOne ™ Eligible Aircraft delivered with V2527-A5 rated
SelectOne ™; or

2.2.2 [ (US$[***]) in [***] US$ per SelectOne ™ Eligible Aircraft delivered with V2533-A5 rated
SelectOne ™ Engines.

2.3 The Parties agree that for each SelectOne ™ Eligible Aircraft delivered to JetBlue, the [***] provided to
JetBlue for such aircraft shall be [***], escalated in accordance in Section 2.4 below.

2.4 The escalation of each SelectOne™ Purchase Price and [***] shall be calculated in accordance with Section
6 of Side Letter No. 37.”

7.3. Section 3 of Side Letter No. 21, [***], is hereby deleted in its entirety from Side Letter No. 21 and replaced with the
following:

“3. [Reserved]”

7.4. Section 4 of Side Letter No. 21, [***], is hereby deleted in its entirety from Side Letter No. 21 and replaced with the
following:

“4. [Reserved]”
7.5. Section 3 of Exhibit A to Side Letter No.21, [***], is hereby deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:

“ 3. SelectOne ™Purchase Price

3.1 JetBlue shall pay IAE for each SelectOne ™ Engine as follows:
[ ***] Represents material which has been redacted and filed separately with the Commission pursuant to a request for confidential
treatment pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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3.1.1 For each SelectOne™ Engine originally installed from new on SelectOne™ Eligible Aircraft delivered
to JetBlue on or after the SelectOne™ Production Date (* SelectOne™ Installed Engine ), [***]
Dollars (US$[***]) in [***]US$ per SelectOne™ Installed Engine (the “ SelectOne™ Purchase Price ");

3.1.2 For each SelectOne™ Production Standard Spare Engine (* SelectOne™ Spare Engine "), the
SelectOne™ Purchase Price.

3.2 The SelectOne™ Purchase Price shall be escalated from a base month of [***] in accordance with the
formula in Exhibit A-1 hereto to [***]. To the extent that JetBlue [***].

3.3 Notwithstanding Clause 3.2 above, for the period beginning January 1, 2005 and ending December 31, 20
[***], escalation for the SelectOne™ Purchase Price as calculated in accordance with the formula in Exhibit
A-1 hereto shall be [***], provided that for any year in which escalation calculated by the formula in Exhibit A-
1 [***]'

3.4 For the avoidance of doubt, the pricing information provided in this Section 3 has been reproduced in its
entirety from the pricing information contained in Section 2.1 to Side Letter No. 21, as amended from time to
time.”

7.6. The Parties agree that as of the date of this Side Letter No. 37, [***] as set forth in Sections 3 and 4 of Side Letter No. 21
is null and void and JetBlue hereby [***].

8. Removal of [***]

8.1. [***] ,is hereby deleted in its entirety from [***]

8.2. The Parties agree that as of the date of this Side Letter No. 37, [***] as set forth in [***] is [***] for Engines delivered to
JetBlue at any time under the Agreement.

9. Miscellaneous
9.1. This Side Letter No. 37 is not, and shall not be construed as, a waiver of either Party’s rights or remedies.

9.2. This Side Letter No. 37 contains matters of a confidential and proprietary nature and is delivered on the express condition
that its terms shall not be disclosed to any third party or reproduced in whole or in part for anyone other than the parties
hereto without the other party's prior written consent, unless otherwise stated herein.

9.3. This Side Letter No. 37 constitutes a valid, legal, binding obligation. This Side Letter No. 37 shall be construed and
interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Connecticut, United States of America with the exception of its
conflict of law provisions.

9.4. This Side Letter No. 37 may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered
shall be an original but shall constitute one and the same instrument.
[ ***] Represents material which has been redacted and filed separately with the Commission pursuant to a request for confidential
treatment pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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Except as expressly amended by this Side Letter No. 37, all provisions of the Agreement (as amended from time to time by various
side letters and amendments) remain in full force and effect.

Very truly yours, Agreed to and accepted on behalf of
IAE International Aero Engines AG JetBlue Airways Corporation

/s/ Debarshi Mandal /sl Mark D. Powers

By By

Debarshi Mandal Mark D. Powers

Name Name

Commercial Manager Chief Financial Officer

Title Title
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APPENDIX 1
Exhibit B -1

Aircraft Delivery Schedule

As of November 2012

Glossary Notes:

Rdenotes the Incremental Firm Aircraft that will be treated as [***] in accordance with Section 2 of Side Letter No. 37.

* denotes Firm Aircraft that have received or will receive the $[***] ([***])$) spare parts credit as set forth in Section 7 of Side
Letter No. 13 or Section 7 of Side Letter No. 17, as applicable, and as amended by Side Letter No. 25.

** denotes Firm Aircraft that have received or will receive the $[***] ([***]$) spare parts credit as set forth in Section 7 of Side
Letter No. 13 or Section 7 of Side Letter No. 17, as applicable, and as amended by Side Letter No. 25.

"denotes Firm Aircraft that have received or will receive the both the $[***] ([***]$) and $[***] ([***]$) the spare parts credits and
as set forth in Section 7 of Side Letter No. 13 or Section 7 of Side Letter No. 17, as applicable, and as amended by Side Letter
No. 25.

Delivered Aircraft are indicated by italics typeface.

Applicable escalation formulae, indicated for the calculation of Fleet Introductory Assistance credits, are in accordance with
Side Letter No. 13 and Side Letter No. 17 to the Agreement, as amended by Side Letter No. 25 to the Agreement.

Rank No. Firm Aircraft Category A.'It%aeﬁ Col\r}ltcr)fr;l](t::]ed Con\';r:t;:rted égggf;%ﬁ
No. 1 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2,000 Formula |
No. 2 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2,000 Formula |
No. 3 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2,000 Formula |
No. 4 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2,000 Formula |
No. 5 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2,000 Formula |
No. 6 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2,000 Formula |
No. 7 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2,001 Formula |
No. 8 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2,001 Formula |
No. 9 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2,001 Formula |
No. 10 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2,001 Formula |
No. 11 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2,001 Formula |
No. 12 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2,001 Formula |
No. 13 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2,001 Formula |
No. 14 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2,002 Formula |
No. 15 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2,002 Formula |
No. 16 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2,002 Formula |
No. 17 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2,002 Formula |
No. 18 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2,002 Formula |
No. 19 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2,002 Formula |

[ ***] Represents material which has been redacted and filed separately with the Commission pursuant to a request for confidential
treatment pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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Rank No. Firm Aircraft Category Afl.r;;zﬁ Col\r}lt(;?](t::]ed Corl};zcr:ted éspgglg?gﬁ
No. 20 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2002 Formula |
No. 21 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2002 Formula |
No. 22 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2002 Formula |
No. 23 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2002 Formula |
No. 24 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2002 Formula |
No. 25 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2002 Formula |
No. 26 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2002 Formula |
No. 27 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2002 Formula |
No. 28 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2002 Formula |
No. 29 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2002 Formula |
No. 30 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2003 Formula |
No. 31 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2003 Formula |
No. 32 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2003 Formula |
No. 33 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2003 Formula |
No. 34 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2003 Formula |
No. 35 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2003 Formula |
No. 36 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2003 Formula |
No. 37 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2003 Formula |
No. 38 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2003 Formula | *
No. 39 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2003 Formula |
No. 40 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2003 Formula |
No. 41 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2003 Formula |
No. 42 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2003 Formula |
No. 43 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2003 Formula | *
No. 44 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2003 Formula |
No. 45 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2004 Formula |
No. 46 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2004 Formula |
No. 47 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2004 Formula |
No. 48 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2004 Formula | *
No. 49 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2004 Formula |
No. 50 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2004 Formula |
No. 51 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2004 Formula |
No. 52 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2004 Formula |
No. 53 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2004 Formula | *
No. 54 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2004 Formula |
No. 55 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2004 Formula |
No. 56 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2004 Formula |
No. 57 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2004 Formula |
No. 58 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2004 Formula | *
No. 59 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2004 Formula |

[ ***] Represents material which has been redacted and filed separately with the Commission pursuant to a request for confidential
treatment pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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Rank No. Firm Aircraft Category A.'I.r;ngt Col\r}lt(;?](t::]ed Corl};zcr:ted éspgglg?gﬁ
No. 60 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2005 Formula |
No. 61 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2005 Formula |
No. 62 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2005 Formula |
No. 63 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2005 Formula | *
No. 64 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2005 Formula |
No. 65 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2005 Formula |
No. 66 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2005 Formula |
No. 67 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2005 Formula |
No. 68 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2005 Formula | *
No. 69 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2005 Formula |
No. 70 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2005 Formula |
No. 71 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2005 Formula | **
No. 72 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2005 Formula |
No. 73 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2005 Formula | *
No. 74 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2005 Formula |
No. 75 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2005 Formula |
No. 76 2004 Incremental Aircraft A320 [***] 2006 Formula Il
No. 77 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2006 Formula |
No. 78 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2006 Formula | *
No. 79 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2006 Formula |
No. 80 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2006 Formula |
No. 81 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2006 Formula | **
No. 82 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2006 Formula |
No. 83 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2006 Formula | *
No. 84 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2006 Formula |
No. 85 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2006 Formula |
No. 86 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2006 Formula |
No. 87 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2006 Formula |
No. 88 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2006 Formula | *
No. 89 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2006 Formula | **
No. 90 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2006 Formula |
No. 91 2004 Incremental Aircraft A320 [***] 2006 Formula Il
No. 92 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2007 Formula |
No. 93 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2007 Formula | *
No. 94 2004 Incremental Aircraft A320 [***] 2007 Formula Il
No. 95 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2007 Formula |
No. 96 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2007 Formula |
No. 97 Existing Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2007 Formula |
No. 98 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2007 Formula | *
No. 99 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2007 Formula |

[ ***] Represents material which has been redacted and filed separately with the Commission pursuant to a request for confidential
treatment pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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Rank No. Firm Aircraft Category Afl.r;;zﬁ Col\r}lt(;?](t::]ed Corl};zcr:ted éspgglg?gﬁ

No. 100 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2007 Formula |

No. 101 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2007 Formula | **
No. 102 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2007 Formula |

No. 103 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2007 Formula | *
No. 104 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2008 Formula |

No. 105 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2008 Formula |

No. 106 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2008 Formula | **
No. 107 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2008 Formula |

No. 108 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2008 Formula | *
No. 109 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2008 Formula |

No. 110 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2008 Formula |

No. 111 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2008 Formula | **
No. 112 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2008 Formula |

No. 113 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2008 Formula | *
No. 114 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2008 Formula |

No. 115 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2008 Formula |

No. 116 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2009 Formula | **
No. 117 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2009 Formula |

No. 118 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2009 Formula | *
No. 119 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2010 Formula |

No. 120 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2010 Formula |

No. 121 Incremental Firm Aircraft A320 [***] 2010 Formula | **
No. 122 2004 Incremental Aircraft A320 [***] 2011 Formula Il

No. 123 2004 Incremental Aircraft A320 [***] 2011 Formula Il T
No. 124 2004 Incremental Aircraft A320 [***] 2011 Formula Il

No. 125 2004 Incremental Aircraft A320 [***] 2011 Formula Il

No. 126 2004 Incremental Aircraft A320 [***] 2012 Formula Il R
No. 127 2004 Incremental Aircraft A320 [***] 2012 Formula Il R
No. 128 2004 Incremental Aircraft A320 [***] 2012 Formula Il Rt
No. 129 2004 Incremental Aircraft A320 [***] 2012 Formula Il R
No. 130 2004 Incremental Aircraft A320 [***] 2013 Formula Il R
No. 131 2004 Incremental Aircraft A320 [***] 2013 Formula Il R
No. 132 2004 Incremental Aircraft A320 [***] 2013 Formula Il R
No. 133 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 [***] 2013 Formula Il T
No. 134 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 [***] 2013 Formula Il

No. 135 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 [***] 2013 Formula Il

No. 136 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 [***] 2013 Formula Il

No. 137 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 Year 2014 Formula Il R
No. 138 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 Year 2014 Formula Il RY

[ ***] Represents material which has been redacted and filed separately with the Commission pursuant to a request for confidential
treatment pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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Rank No. Firm Aircraft Category A.'I.r;ngt Col\r}lt(;?](t::]ed Corl};zcr:ted éspgglg?gﬁ
No. 139 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 Year 2014 Formula Il R
No. 140 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 Year 2014 Formula Il R
No. 141 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 Year 2014 Formula Il R
No. 142 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 Year 2014 Formula Il R
No. 143 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 Year 2014 Formula Il T
No. 144 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 Year 2014 Formula Il
No. 145 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 Year 2014 Formula Il R
No. 146 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 Year 2015 Formula Il
No. 147 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 Year 2015 Formula Il
No. 148 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 Year 2015 Formula Il )
No. 149 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 Year 2015 Formula Il
No. 150 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 Year 2015 Formula Il
No. 151 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 Year 2015 Formula Il
No. 152 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 Year 2015 Formula Il
No. 153 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 Year 2015 Formula Il RT
No. 154 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 Year 2015 Formula Il
No. 155 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 Year 2015 Formula Il
No. 156 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 Year 2016 Formula Il
No. 157 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 Year 2016 Formula Il
No. 158 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 Year 2016 Formula Il
No. 159 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 Year 2016 Formula Il
No. 160 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 Year 2016 Formula Il
No. 161 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 Year 2016 Formula Il
No. 162 2004 Incremental Aircraft A321 Year 2016 Formula Il R
No. 163 2004 Incremental Aircraft A320 Year 2016 Formula Il
No. 164 2004 Incremental Aircraft A320 Year 2016 Formula Il
No. 165 2004 Incremental Aircraft A320 Year 2016 Formula Il
No. 166 2004 Incremental Aircraft A320 Year 2017 Formula Il
No. 167 2004 Incremental Aircraft A320 Year 2017 Formula Il
No. 168 2004 Incremental Aircraft A320 Year 2017 Formula Il
No. 169 2004 Incremental Aircraft A320 Year 2017 Formula Il R
No. 170 2004 Incremental Aircraft A320 Year 2017 Formula Il R
No. 171 2004 Incremental Aircraft A320 Year 2017 Formula Il R
No. 172 2004 Incremental Aircraft A320 Year 2017 Formula Il R
No. 173 2004 Incremental Aircraft A320 Year 2017 Formula Il R

[ ***] Represents material which has been redacted and filed separately with the Commission pursuant to a request for confidential
treatment pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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IAE PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

APPENDIX 2
Exhibit B -2

Purchased Items, Price, Escalation Formula and Deli __ very

As of November 2012

Glossary Notes:

* Delivered Firm Spare Engines are indicated by italics typeface

e Applicable escalation formulae, indicated for the calculation of Spare Engine pricing and credits, are in accordance with Side
Letter No. 13 and Side Letter No. 17 to the Agreement, as amended by Side Letter No. 25 to the Agreement.

Basic Contract Price Applicable Contracted
Rank No. Engine Model (US$) Base Month Qty Escalation Delivery Date
No. 1 V2527-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula | [***] -99
No. 2 V2527-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula | [***] -00
No. 3 V2527-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula | [***] -01
No. 4 V2527-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula | [***] -02
No. 5 V2527-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula | [***] -02
No. 6 V2527-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula | [***] -03
No. 7 V2527-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula | [***] -04
No. 8 V2527-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula | [***] -05
No. 9 V2527-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula | [***] -05
No. 10 V2527-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula Il [***] -06
No. 11 V2527-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula | [***] -06
No. 12 V2527-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula Il [***] -07
No. 13 V2527-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula | [***] -07
No. 14 V2527-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula | [***] -07
No. 15 V2527-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula Il [***] -07
No. 16 V2527-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula | [***] -07
No. 17 V2527-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula | [***] -08
No. 18 V2527-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula | [***] -08
No. 19 V2527-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula | [***] -09
No. 20 V2527-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula | [***] -10
No. 21 V2527-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula Il [***] -10
No. 22 V2527-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula | [***] -10
No. 23 V2527-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula | [***] -11
No. 24 V2533-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula Il [***] -11
No. 25 V2533-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula Il [***] -11
No. 26 V2533-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula Il [***] -11
No. 27 V2533-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula Il [***] -12
No. 28 V2533-A5 [***] [***] 1 Formula Il [***] -12

[ ***] Represents material which has been redacted and filed separately with the Commission pursuant to a request for confidential
treatment pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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IAE PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

ESCALATION FORMULA |

1. Any unit base price or other sum expressed to be subject to escalation from a base month to a month of delivery or other date
of determination in accordance with the IAE Escalation Formula will be subject to escalation in accordance with the following
formula:

P =Pb ([*]L+[*]M+[*]E)
Lo Mo Eo

Where:

P = the invoiced purchase price or escalated sum rounded to the nearest U.S. Dollar

Pb = unit base price or other sum.

Lo = the “North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) Wages and Salaries for Aircraft Manufacturing (NAICS Code
336411), ClU2023211000000I" as published quarterly by the Bureau of Labor Statistics, U.S. Department of Labor for the
Labor for the month preceding the base month by four months.

L = the “North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) Wages and Salaries for Aircraft Manufacturing (NAICS Code
336411), ClU2023211000000I" as published quarterly by the Bureau of Labor Statistics, U.S. Department of Labor for the

month preceding the month of delivery or other date of determination by four months.

Mo = the “Producer Price Index, Code 10, for Metals and Metal Products” published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics in the
U.S. Department of Labor for the month preceding the base month by four months.

M = the “Producer Price Index, Code 10, for Metals and Metal Products” for the month preceding the base month by four
months.

Eo = the “Producer Price Index, Code 5, for Fuel and Related Products and Power” published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics
in the U.S. Department of Labor for the month preceding the base month by four months.

E = the “Producer Price Index, Code 5, for Fuel and Related Products and Power” for the month preceding the base month by
four months.

The values of the factors [***] L + [***] M_+ [***] E
Lo Mo Eo

Respectively, shall be determined to the nearest fourth decimal place. If the fifth decimal is five or more, the fourth decimal
place shall be raised to the next higher number.

If the U.S. Department of Labor ceases to publish the above statistics or modifies the basis of their calculation, then IAE may
substitute any officially recognized and substantially equivalent statistics.

The Basic Contract Prices contained in this Exhibit B are subject to escalation from a Base Month of [***] to the month of
delivery using using Lo, Mo and Eo values for September 2002.

[ ***] Represents material which has been redacted and filed separately with the Commission pursuant to a request for confidential
treatment pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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IAE PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

If the application of the formula contained in this Exhibit B results in a Purchase Price which is lower than the Basic Contract
Price, the Basic Contract Price will be deemed to be the Purchase Price for such Supplies.

ESCALATION FORMULA I

1. Any unit base price or other sum expressed to be subject to escalation from a base month to a month of delivery or other date
of determination in accordance with the IAE Escalation Formula will be subject to escalation in accordance with the following

formula:
Pi = (Pb+F) x CPI where:
Pi = the invoiced purchase price or escalated sum rounded to the nearest U.S. Dollar.
Pb = unit base price or other sum.

F o= I(N)PD)

N = the calendar year of scheduled delivery or other date of determination minus 2003
CPI = [ (L) +[*] (M)

L = Labor Ratio defined below

M = Material Ratio defined below

IAE’s Composite Price Index (“CPI") is the sum of [***] percent of the Labor ratio and [***] percent of the Material Ratio, with the
sum rounded to the nearest ten thousandth.

The quarterly value published for the Employment Cost Index will be deemed to apply to each month of the quarter.

The Labor Ratio is the “North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) Wages and Salaries for Aircraft Manufacturing
(NAICS Code 336411), ClU2023211000000I" as published quarterly by the Bureau of Labor Statistics, U.S. Department of
Labor for the arithmetic average of the fifth, sixth and seventh months (rounded to the nearest tenth) preceding the month of
scheduled delivery for each engine/equipment; divided by the value of “North American Industry Classification System (NAICS)
Wages and Salaries for Aircraft Manufacturing (NAICS Code 336411), CIU20232110000001” for the arithmetic average of the
fifth, sixth and seventh months (rounded to the nearest tenth) preceding the Base Month. To be clear the quarterly value of
ClU2023211000000I will apply to each month of a given quarter.

The Material Ratio is the “Producer Price Index, Industrial Commodities, WPUO03thrul5”, as published monthly by the Bureau of
Labor Statistics, U.S. Department of Labor, for the arithmetic average of the fifth, sixth and seventh months (rounded to the
nearest tenth) preceding the month of scheduled delivery for each engine/equipment; divided by the value for Industrial
Commodities for the arithmetic average of the fifth, sixth and seventh months (rounded to the nearest tenth) preceding the
Base Month.

For a given month, the escalation shall be computed by using the applicable Index value, which the Bureau has published as
the time of delivery or other date of determination.

[ ***] Represents material which has been redacted and filed separately with the Commission pursuant to a request for confidential
treatment pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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IAE PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

If the U.S. Department of Labor changes the base year for determination of the Index values as defined above, such re-based
values will be incorporated in the escalation calculation.

If the U.S. Department of Labor revises the methodology used for the determination of the values to be used to determine the
CPI or, for any reason, has not released values needed to determine the CPI, IAE, in its sole discretion, shall select a substitute
for such values from data published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics or otherwise make revisions to the escalation formula
such that the escalation will as closely as possible approximate the result that would have been attained by continuing the use
of the original escalation formula and values as they may have fluctuated during the applicable time period.

The invoiced purchase price, which in no event shall be less than the unit base price, shall be the final price. If the calculated
sum of L + M is less than 1.0000, then the value of the sum is adjusted to 1.0000.
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Exhibit 10.17(n)
AMENDMENT No. 14 TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT DCT-025/2003

This Amendment No. 14 to Purchase Agreement DCT-025/2003, dated as of December 03, 2012
(“Amendment 14”) relates to the Purchase Agreement DCT-025/2003 between Embraer S.A. (formerly known
as Embraer - Empresa Brasileira de Aeronautica S.A.) (“Embraer”) and JetBlue Airways Corporation
(“Buyer”) dated June 9, 2003 as amended from time to time (collectively referred to herein as “Purchase
Agreement”). This Amendment 14 is executed between Embraer and Buyer, collectively referred to herein as
the “Parties”.

All terms defined in the Purchase Agreement shall have the same meaning when used herein and in case of
any conflict between this Amendment 14 and the Purchase Agreement, this Amendment 14 shall control.

WHEREAS, Buyer and Embraer have agreed to accelerate the delivery schedule of certain Aircratft.

Now, therefore, for good and valuable consideration, which is hereby acknowledged, Embraer and Buyer
hereby agree as follows:

1. DELIVERY

1.1 The Aircraft schedule delivery table in Article 5.1 of the Purchase Agreement shall be deleted and
replaced as follows:

Aircraft | Delivery Aircraft Delivery Aircraft Delivery Aircraft Delivery
# Month** # Month** # Month** # Month**
1 [***]/05 23 [***]/06 45 [***]/10 67 [***]/15
2 [***]/05 24 [***]/07 46 [***]/10 68 [***]/15
3 [***]/05 25 [***]/07 47 [***]/10 69 [***]/15
4 [***]/05 26 [***]/07 48 [***]/10 70 [***]/15
5 [***]/05 27 [***]/07 49 [***]/11 71 [***]/15
6 [***]/05 28 [***]/07 50 [***]/11 72 [***]/15
7 [***]/05 29 [***]/07 51 [***]/11 73 [***]/16
8 [***]/05 30 [***]/07 52 [***]/11 74 [***]/16
9 [***]/06 31 [***]/08 53 [***]/11 75 [***]/16

10 [***]/06 32 [***]/08 54 [***]/12 76 [***]/16
11 [***]/06 33 [***]/08 55 [***]/12 77 [***]/16
12 [***]/06 34 [***]/08 56 [***]/12 78 [***]/16
13 [***]/06 35 [***]/08 57 [***]/12 79 [***]/16
14 [***]/06 36 [***]/08 58 [***]/13 80 [***]/16
15 [***]/06 37 [***]/09 59 [***]/13 81 [***]/17

[***] Represents material which has been redacted and filed separately with the Commission pursuant to a request for confidential
treatment pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.






AMENDMENT No. 14 TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT DCT-025/2003

16 [*+]/06 38 [**+)/09 60 [**+)/13 82 () | ™17
17 [*++]/06 39 [**+]/09 61 [*+]/13 83 (** | [*17
18 [**4)/06 | 40[**] [**+)/09 62 [**+)/13 84 () | ™17
19 [*4/06 | 41[*] [**4]/09 63 [*+]/13 85 (** | [*17
20 [*+]/06 42 [**+)/09 64 [**+)/13 86 (***) [*++]/18
21 [*¥]/06 43 [**4]/09 65 [**+]/14 87 (***) [*+]/18
22 [*4)/06 | 44[*] [**+)/09 66 [**+)/15 88 (***) [*++]/18

[***]

(**) Scheduled Delivery Months shall be deemed to be the Contractual Delivery Dates as defined in
Article 1.10 of this Agreement.

(***) Postponed Aircraft ”
All other terms and conditions of the Purchase Agreement (including Amendment No. 13 of the Purchase
Agreement), which are not specifically amended by this Amendment 14, shall remain in full force and effect

without any change.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]

[***] Represents material which has been redacted and filed separately with the Commission pursuant to a request for confidential
treatment pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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AMENDMENT No. 14 TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT DCT-025/2003

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Embraer and Buyer, by their duly authorized officers, have entered into and
executed this Amendment 14 to the Purchase Agreement to be effective as of the date first written above.

Embraer S.A. JetBlue Airways Corporation

By :/s/ Flavio Rimoli By :/s/Mark D. Powers

Name : Flavio Rimoli Name : Mark D. Powers

Title : Executive Vice President, Title : Chief Financial Officer

Corporate Services

By :/s/José Luis D'Avila Molina

Name :José Luis D’Avila Molina

Title : Vice President, Contracts
Commercial Aviation

Date: December 20, 2012 Date: December 3, 2012

Place: Sao José dos Campos, SP, Brazil Place: Long Island City, NY

Witness: /s/ Fabiola Neri Tocci Moreira Witness: /s/ Ursula Hurley

Name: Fabiola Neri Tocci Moreira Name : Ursula Hurley

Amendment No. 14 to Purchase Agreement DCT-025/2003 Page 3 of 3
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Exhibit 10.17(0)

AMENDMENT No. 15 TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT DCT-025/2003

This Amendment No. 15 to Purchase Agreement DCT-025/2003, dated as of December 19, 2012
(“Amendment 15”) relates to the Purchase Agreement DCT-025/2003 between Embraer S.A. (formerly known
as Embraer - Empresa Brasileira de Aeronautica S.A.) (“Embraer”) and JetBlue Airways Corporation
(“Buyer”) dated June 9, 2003 as amended from time to time (collectively referred to herein as “Purchase
Agreement”). This Amendment 15 is executed between Embraer and Buyer, collectively referred to herein as
the “Parties”.

All terms defined in the Purchase Agreement shall have the same meaning when used herein and in case of
any conflict between this Amendment 15 and the Purchase Agreement, this Amendment 15 shall control.

WHEREAS, The Parties have agreed to implement certain changes to the Aircraft configuration which caused
a change in the Aircraft Basic Price.

Now, therefore, for good and valuable consideration, which is hereby acknowledged, Embraer and Buyer
hereby agree as follows:

1. CHANGE IN THE AIRCRAFT CONFIGURATION
1.1["*

Firm Aircraft #[***] shall be delivered with the [***], as per [***]. There is [***] due to this modification. The
Basic Price for the affected Aircraft shall be [***] by US$[***] ([***] United States dollars) [***].

2. AIRCRAFT PRICES

2.1 Aircraft Basic Price for Firm Aircraft: Due to changes in the Aircraft configuration, Article 3.1 of the
Purchase Agreement shall be deleted and replaced as follows.

“3.1 Buyer agrees to pay Embraer in the United States dollars, per unit Aircraft Basic Price as
indicated in the table below:

Aircraft # Basic Price ( [***])
1to3 USS [***]
4 US$ [**]
7 USS [***]
5,6 and 8to 12 US$ [***]
13to 24 USS [***]
25 USS [***]
26 USS[**]

[ ***] Represents material which has been redacted and filed separately with the Commission pursuant to a request for confidential
treatment pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.




AMENDMENT No. 15 TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT DCT-025/2003

27 US$ [+

28 to 30 USS$ [***]
31to 34 US$ [***]
3510 39, 42 and 43 US$ [***]
Exercised Option [ "**] USS$ [**]
45 to 47 US$ [***]

48 to 50 USS$ [***]

51 to 53 US$ [***]

54 US$ [+

55 to 58 USS$ [***]

59 to 88 US$ [***]

All other terms and conditions of the Purchase Agreement (including Amendment No. 14 of the Purchase
Agreement), which are not specifically amended by this Amendment 15, shall remain in full force and effect
without any change.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]

[ ***] Represents material which has been redacted and filed separately with the Commission pursuant to a request for confidential
treatment pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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AMENDMENT No. 15 TO PURCHASE AGREEMENT DCT-025/2003

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Embraer and Buyer, by their duly authorized officers, have entered into and
executed this Amendment 15 to the Purchase Agreement to be effective as of the date first written above.

Embraer S.A. JetBlue Airways Corporation
By :/s/ Artur Coutinho By :/s/Mark D. Powers
Name : Artur Coutinho Name : Mark D. Powers

Title : COO - Chief Operating Officer Title : Chief Financial Officer

By :/s/ Flavio Rimoli

Name : Flavio Rimoli

Title : Executive Vice President,
Corporate Services

Date: January 15, 2013 Date: December 19, 2012

Place: Sao José dos Campos, SP Place: Long Island City, NY
Witness: /s/ Fabiola Neri Tocci Moreira Witness: /s/ Ursula Hurley
Name: Fabiola Neri Tocci Moreira Name : Ursula Hurley

Amendment No. 15 to Purchase Agreement DCT-025/2003 Page 3 of 3
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Exhibit 10.33(a

LETTER AGREEMENT NO. 9
As of December 19, 20

JetBlue Airways Corporation
27-01 Queens Plaza North
Long Island City, NY 11101

Re: PREPAYMENT AGREEMENT
Dear Ladies and Gentlemen,

JetBlue Airways Corporation (the Buyer ”) and Airbus S.A.S. (the ‘Seller ”) have entered into an A320 Family Airci
Purchase Agreement dated as of Octobétr2l 1 (as supplemented, amended or modified from tartime (the ‘Agreement”),
which covers, among other matters, the sale bys#iker and the purchase by the Buyer of certaibuSraircraft, under the ter
and conditions set forth in said Agreement. ThedBwand the Seller have agreed to set forth inlteiter Agreement No. 9 (the “
Letter Agreement™) terms and conditions regarding the early paymegedfin amounts that will be payable by the Bugethe
Seller in accordance with the terms of the Agredme€apitalized terms used herein and not othendisfined in this Lette
Agreement will have the meanings assigned theretba Agreement. The terms “herein,” “hereof” ahereunderand words ¢
similar import refer to this Letter Agreement.

Both parties agree that this Letter Agreement edglistitute an integral, nonseverable part of sajceAment, that the provisions
said Agreement are hereby incorporated herein feyenece, and that this Letter Agreement will beayoed by the provisions
said Agreement, except that if the Agreement angl ltketter Agreement have specific provisions whéagle inconsistent, tl
specific provisions contained in this Letter Agresnwill govern.




1 PREPAYMENT BY THE BUYER

No later than December 2* 2012, the Buyer will pay to the Seller $200,000,d600 hundred million US Dollars) (the “
Prepayment Amount”), in immediately available funds to:

Account name : [***]
Address : [***]
Account number : [***]
Bank name : [***]
Bank address : [***]
BIC SWIFT : [***]
ABA : [***]

2 APPLICATION OF PREPAYMENT AMOUNT

Provided the Buyer meets its obligation under Glausbove, the Prepayment Amount will then be edpy the Seller agait
the following amounts becoming due from the Bugethe Seller in accordance with the Agreement:

() Predelivery Payments totaling US$[***] ([***]) asetailed in Exhibit 1 hereto, a

(i) The Balance of the Final Price of Aircraft scheduier Delivery in [***] 2013, up to a total of US$f*] ([***]), provided
that, if this amount is not sufficient to cover tBalance of the Final Price of all of such Aircraften only the remainc
of such amount shall be applied to, and the Bulal $e liable for the outstanding amount of, tredaBice of the Fin
Price of such Aircraft.

Except as otherwise contemplated by this Lettere@grent (without limiting any rights Seller may haveler the Agreement or
law), the Buyer shall have no further obligatioriability for the amounts set forth in (i) and)(@bove.

In the event the Agreement is terminated priowtbdllocation of the Prepayment Amount, the Buskall be [***].

3 [+ CREDIT MEMORANDUM

Provided the Buyer meets its obligation under Glalisbove, the Seller will provide to the Buyer*][credit memorandum ¢
US[***] ([***] US Dollars) [***].

[***] Represents material which has been redacted fded separately with the Commission pursuars tequest for confidential
treatment pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Seesiikchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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The [***] will be [***] (the “ Applicable Aircraft ") in [***] of US$[***] ([***]), respectively.

In the event that the Seller does not deliver fihe Applicable Aircraft in calendar year 2013e tharties expressly agree 1
[***]. In the event [***], the Seller agrees [***].

4 ASSIGNMENT

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Letiégreement or of the Agreement, this Letter Agreetmaard the rights ar
obligations of the Buyer hereunder will not be gsed or transferred in any manner without the paiotten consent of the Sell
and any attempted assignment or transfer in cositeon of the provisions of this Paragraph 4 wél ¥oid and of no force
effect.

5 CONFIDENTIALITY

This Letter Agreement is subject to the terms amdlions of Clause 22.10 of the Agreement.

6 COUNTERPARTS

This Letter Agreement may be executed by the [mitiereto in separate counterparts, each of whioknvgo executed a
delivered shall be an original, but all such coypdets shall together constitute one and the sastaliment.

[***] Represents material which has been redacted fded separately with the Commission pursuars tequest for confidential
treatment pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Seesiikchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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If the foregoing correctly sets forth your undenslig, please execute the original and one (1) ¢epgof in the space provic
below and return a copy to the Seller.

Very truly yours,

AIRBUS S.A.S.

By: /s/Christophe Mourey
Its: Senior Vice President Contracts

Accepted and Agreed

JETBLUE AIRWAYS CORPORATION

By: /s/Mark D. Powers
Its: Chief Financial Officer

121217_CT1002197_JBU_LA 9_PREPAYMENT LA96f 5




EXHIBIT 1

PDP Due Dates

[***]

[***] Represents material which has been redacted filed separately with the Commission pursuara tequest for confidential
treatment pursuant to Rule 24b-2 under the Seesifiikchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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Exhibit 12.1

JETBLUE AIRWAYS CORPORATION
COMPUTATION OF RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES
(in millions, except ratios)

Year Ended December 31,

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Earnings:
Income before income taxes $ 20¢ % 145 % 161 $ 104 % (89)
Less: Capitalized interest ()] (5) 4 @) (48)
Add:
Fixed charges 27C 273 272 29¢ 357
Amortization of capitalized interest 2 2 2 2 2
Adjusted earnings $ 47 $ 41t % 431 $ 397 $ 22z
Fixed charges:
Interest expense $ 167 $ 171 % 172 % 18¢ $ 22¢
Amortization of debt costs 9 8 8 9 17
Rent expense representative of interest 94 94 92 10C 112
Total fixed charges $ 27C % 27 % 27z % 29¢ % 357
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges (1) 1.7 1.52 1.5¢ 1.3 —

(1) Earnings were inadequate to cover fixed charge&liBp million for the year ended December 31, 2



JETBLUE AIRWAYS CORPORATION
LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES
As of December 31, 2012

LiveTV, LLC (Delaware limited liability company)
LiveTV International, Inc. (Delaware corporation)
BlueBermuda Insurance, LTD (Bermuda corporation)
LiveTV Airfone LLC. (Delaware limited liability comany)

JetBlue Airways Corporation Sucursal Colombia (@ubéa corporation)

Exhibit 21.1



Exhibit 23

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference irfdtHewing Registration Statements:

(1) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-86444pjreng to the JetBlue Airways Corporation 2002cRtbncentive
Plan;

(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-129238&pjeng to the JetBlue Airways Corporation Crewnib@mStock
Purchase Plan;

(3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-16156&ppeng to the JetBlue Airways Corporation 2008c&tIncentive
Plan and the JetBlue Airways Corporation Crewmengteck Purchase Plan;

(4) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-17494itapeng to the JetBlue Airways Corporation 201g&dntive
Compensation Plan and the JetBlue Airways Corpan&D11 Crewmember Stock Purchase Plan;

(5) Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 3#058) of JetBlue Airways Corporation; i

(6) Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 33#4730) of JetBlue Airways Corporat

of our reports dated February 20, 2013, with reispethe consolidated financial statements of letBAirways Corporation, tl
effectiveness of internal control over financigbeding of JetBlue Airways Corporation and the fioal statement schedule
JetBlue Airways Corporation listed in Item 15(2klided in this Annual Report (Form X)-for the year ended December
2012.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLI

New York, New York
February 20, 2013



Exhibit 31.1

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of the ChieExecutive Officer

I, David Barger, certify that:

1.
2.

b)

c)

d)

a)

b)

| have reviewed this Annual Report on FormKL6f JetBlue Airways Corporatio

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact orténstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntsts.under which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the period

covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamld procedures (as defin
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedaotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durimg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

designed such internal control over finanaégarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitte reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentisi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proms] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

disclosed in this report any change in thestegit's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thainhaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s inted control over financial reporting; and

The registrans other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxon our most recent evaluation of internal abmiver financial reportini

to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commititthe registrant’s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

all significant deficiencies and material weasses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigfgability to record, process, summarize and refiwoancial information; and

any fraud, whether or not material, that inesl\management or other employees who have a samiifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date:February 20, 2013 By: /s/ DAVID BARGER

Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of the ChiefFinancial Officer

I, Mark D. Powers, certify that:

1.
2.

b)

c)

d)

a)

b)

| have reviewed this Annual Report on FormKL6f JetBlue Airways Corporatio

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact orténstate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntsts.under which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the period

covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contamld procedures (as defin
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))iatednal control over financial reporting (as definin Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedaotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtbsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durimg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

designed such internal control over finanaégarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitte reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentisi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proms] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

disclosed in this report any change in thestegit's internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thainhaterially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the registrant’s inted control over financial reporting; and

The registrans other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxon our most recent evaluation of internal abmiver financial reportini

to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commititthe registrant’s board of directors (or pessperforming the equivalent functions):

all significant deficiencies and material weasses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regigfgability to record, process, summarize and refiwoancial information; and

any fraud, whether or not material, that inesl\management or other employees who have a samiifiole in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.

Date:February 20, 2013 By: /sl MARK D. POWERS

Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32
JetBlue Airways Corporation
SECTION 1350 CERTIFICATIONS

In connection with the Annual Report of JetBluewtays Corporation on Form 10-K for the year endedddeber 31, 2012 , as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Februar2@IB (the “Report”), the undersigned, in the catesand on the dates indicated below,
each hereby certify pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Sect@B01as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of theaBaghOxley Act of 2002, that the Report
fully complies with the requirements of Sectiond)3¢r 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1@3U.S.C. 78m or 780(d)) and the
information contained in the Report fairly preseinisall material respects, the financial conditaord results of operations of JetBlue Airways
Corporation.

Date:February 20, 2013 By: /s/ DAVID BARGER
Chief Executive Officer

Date:February 20, 2013 By: /s/ MARK D. POWERS
Chief Financial Officer




